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FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

BE12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20134 20124 20114 20104 20094
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
AR®BTR ARBTT ARBTE ARETI ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E45 RESULTS
WA Revenue 20,771,255 17,517,266 10,767,254 7,621,374 5,803,275
B BT BT I Profit before income tax 3,236,466 2,818,161 2,385,215 1,798,143 1,363,510
SRR Income tax expense (1,519,329) (1,232,777) (941,284) (747,047) (510,691)
EEFIE Profit for the year 1,717,137 1,585,384 1,443,931 1,051,096 852,819
L EFEFE Attributable to:
ARRERREA Equity holders of the Company 981,262 930,819 886,886 691,843 572,072
FEERER Non-controlling interests 735,875 654,565 557,045 359,253 280,747
1,717,137 1,585,384 1,443,931 1,051,096 852,819
KRBERFEA Earnings per share for profit
FEAG T 8 A% 2 7 attributable to equity holders
of the Company
HAR RS Basic and diluted RMBO.17 RMBO0.21 RMBO0.21 RMBO.16 RMBO.13
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEHSE Total assets 47,198,210 40,843,543 36,900,366 28,146,068 16,819,514
BERE Total liabilities (36,600,251) (32,448,516) (31,698,417) (24,392,794) (14,037,090)
10,597,959 8,395,027 5,201,949 3,753,274 2,782,424
KRR FEE AR Capital and reserves attributable
R R (1 to equity holders of the
Company:
BEITREREA Issued and fully paid capital 4,617 4,617 3,466 - .
i Reserves 6,717,031 5,746,486 3,176,350 2,261,968 1,576,808
6,721,648 5,751,103 3,179,816 2,261,968 1,576,808
RS Non-controlling interests 3,876,311 2,643,924 2,022,133 1,491,306 1,205,616
10,597,959 8,395,027 5,201,949 3,753,274 2,782,424
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS FROM 2009 TO 2013

The following charts compare the financial indicators of
our performance from 2009 to 2013:

#F Core earnings®
(AREEEIL) (RMB million)
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Notes
(1) Core earnings excluding tax adjusted fair value gains

(2) Total borrowings less cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

RIRIHRITIER COMPLETED AND PARTIALLY
COMPLETED PROJECTS

AHAREHE

A HEER HESFEHANEEEE FrEERER
GFA Available
for Sale, Lease or Group's Interest
Projects Property Type Use by the Group in the Project
(FFFK)
(sq.m.)
BN
Changzhou
FEE F=EIEE 28 54.78%
Fresh Garden Residential
HORFT R F=EEE 1,424 54.78%
Zhong Liang Town Residential
U ZR T F=EIEE 16,031 54.78%
Four Seasons Future Land Residential
ARKE ERESHENS 3,584 54.78%
People’s Mansion Residential
P IRIE F=18H 4,284 54.78%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
RS F=EIEE 10,904 54.78%
Future Land Blue Diamond Residential
i R [& F=EIEE 5,397 54.78%
Upper East Residential
878 F=EIEE 3,910 99.43%
Fuhan Garden Residential
FTIERE FEEH 13,193 54.78%
Future Land Splendid Park Residential
EN-) - F=x1EH 11,433 55.09%
Yulong Bay Residential
= F=EIEAE 41,068 56.70%
Geniality Bay Residential
S BIR E% FEIEAE 172,457 97.15%
Injoy International Plaza Mixed-use
EREERES FAIAE 4,712 97.15%
Injoy Lifestyle Plaza Mixed-use
W E T FEEH 72,925 54.78%
Future Capital Residential
NEZHE Ex£IEA 27,718 56.99%
Park No.1 Residential
B F=EIEE 4,094 99.43%
Lakeview Residential

i 3 B 2R A PR 2 A Future Land Development Holdings Limited | 7
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EERYFEHAH
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAEEHE
EHA HEER HESFEHANEEER FEERER
GFA Available
for Sale, Lease or Group's Interest
Projects Property Type Use by the Group in the Project
(FFFK)
(sq.m.)
EHES FEIER 227,843 97.15%
Injoy Plaza Mixed-use
EAEIR N F=EIEE 17,886 54.78%
Changzhou New City Residence Residential
BEHM F=EEHE 9,315 54.78%
Golden Future Land Residential
MHES F=IEAE 20,581 54.78%
Future Land Long Island Residential
o EE£IEH 32,222 57.17%
Future Land Southern Metropolis Residential
TR Ex£IEE 31,586 54.84%
Future Land Emporium Residential
R F=EIEE 51,360 54.78%
Xincheng Future Town Residential
TR S AR F=EHEHE 19,205 54.78%
Changzhou Future Land Golden County Residential
B S (Eah=l= 53,260 55.01%
Future Consequence Residential
EMNERBE F=IEAE 67,985 54.78%
Changzhou Fragrant Legend Residential
Em AP T=IEAE 66,263 54.78%
Future France Residential
=& HFAeIEE 24,188 97.15%
Future Royal Bay Mixed-use
LEiEH
Shanghai
T eIk E F=IEAE 74 55.01%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
e = E EE£IEH 1,196 55.01%
Future Land Maple Garden Residential
ERNELE E£IEE 125 55.01%
Clear Water Garden Residential
R ACE=Yo F=EIEE 876 55.01%
Future Land Splendid View Garden Residential
MR =RE F=EHEHE 5,732 55.01%
Future Land Glorious View Garden Residential
BT AR F=IHEAB 29,968 55.01%
Legend Mansion Residential

8 | #FHBRIZEKAEMR AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAREHE

EHA HEER HESFEHANEEER FEERER
GFA Available
for Sale, Lease or Group's Interest
Projects Property Type Use by the Group in the Project
(FFFK)
(sq.m.)
BTtk F=1EE 58,036 55.01%
Park View International Community* Residential
e R E AR F=EIEE 27,098 55.01%
Park View lvy Residential
i#_EI F=EIEE 42,090 55.01%
Exalted Uptown Residential
JETEI (EReSHENE! 62,081 55.01%
YOHO City Residential
REBERE F=1EE 50,197 57.17%
Petrus Hacienda Residential
BES FEEHA 2,013 55.01%
Gorgeous Mansion Residential
BEm
Nanjing
el F=EEH 33,003 55.01%
Future France Residential
P IRIE F=x1EAE 39 55.01%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
i R & T=EIEAE 5,820 55.01%
Upper East Residential
B R AT & AT FEHEHE 4,048 55.01%
New Golden Town Residential
Bt
Kunshan
3FERE F=EIEE 42,901 55.01%
Oannes Residential
B2 LR ek 12 F=£1EH 43,631 54.83%
Kunshan Future Land Territory Residential
BN
Suzhou
BN E T AR F=EIEE 18,979 57.17%
Suzhou Future France Residential
BMNERBE F=EIEE 22,352 57.17%
Suzhou Fragrant Legend Residential
R MR 2 AR F=HEAE 96,963 57.17%
Suzhou Future Land Golden County Residential
19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report

9




EERYFEHAH
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAREHE

EHA HEER HESFEHANEEER FEERER
GFA Available
for Sale, Lease or Group's Interest
Projects Property Type Use by the Group in the Project
(FFFK)
(sq.m.)
EmE™
Wuxi
i) SR [ F=EIEE 50,780 57.17%
Up Town Residential
BRI F=EIEE 20,059 57.17%
Glorious Century Future Land Residential
ERFREH L RATEHE 58,282 97.24%
East China Home Decor Centre Mixed-use
HEm
Wuhan
MWERE F=E18E 60,507 97.15%
Future Land In Spring Live Residential
rRM™
Changsha
T EIRRTEEB FAIAE 92,900 97.15%
Future Land International Metropolis Mixed-use
&t 1,844,610
Total
BERAEERN 1,275,277

Attributable to the Group

* BIE LSS EAR EEFIN S EB * included Park View International Community A (/£ %A) and Park
View International Community B (/&% #BB)

10 | #HBEEZERBER 2T Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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B39 E LF
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

EERGEEEB PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

HEHEER

ER HEER BRI A EEPEEEE 2 SEESFEE FEREOER

Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Names Property Type Completion Date Development Planning in the Project

(FAHXK) (FAXK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)

EMm
Changzhou
SR F=EIHE 20145F4%F % - 38,100 54.78%
Golden Future Land Residential Q4 2014
s R FEBE 201452%F % 35,469 3,433 57.17%
Future Land Southern Metropolis Residential Q2 2014
GAETRI N FEEE 20155F4FE - 239,110 54.78%
New City Residence Residential Q4 2015
FHERS FEEE 20165F4%FE 10,000 332,221 54.78%
Future Land Long Island Residential Q4 2016
R FxEH 2016525 114,037 370,422 54.84%
Future Land Emporium Residential Q2 2016
BINETH S FEEE 20145 2F % 9,558 - 54.78%
Future Land Golden County Residential Q2 2014
BN FEIEE 20145F4%FE - 45,000 54.78%
Future Land Town Residential Q4 2014
EHES fmeIEE 2015F4FF 111,677 156,042 97.15%
Injoy Plaza Mixed-use Q4 2015
ARES FEBE 20145 3% 120,132 - 55.01%
Future Consequence Residential Q32014
Bl FEHE 20155F4FE 296,508 11,788 54.78%
Future France Residential Q4 2015
Bkl (BERAMIRER) F=EIEE 20145 4% 222,871 4,194 54.78%
Future Success (Logistics Hub Land Parcel Project) Residential Q4 2014
FEARHARERAEER AR 20165F4FE - 498,946 97.15%
Xitaihu Road East Project Mixed-use Q4 2016
BMNERE OHEEE) FAIEE 20175F4FE 71,335 929,779 98.57%
Changzhou In Spring Live (Hutang Project) ~ Mixed-use Q4 2017
BNERER FEHE 20155 2% % 273,805 - 54.78%
Chanzhou Fragrant Legend Residential Q2 2015
ik IRIE B fFAIEE 20155F4FE - 103,785 54.78%
New Airport Road Project Mixed-use Q4 2015

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited 11
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EERYFEHAH
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HHHEER
ER HEER BRI A EERPEEEE FEEREEE FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Names Property Type Completion Date Development Planning  in the Project
(F77K) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
=g AR 2014525 % 16,406 - 97.15%
Future Royal Bay Mixed-use Q2 2014
#J1IXB201305013 % FEEE 2016F4Z%E - 155,898 56.68%
S Plot No. JXB20130501 in Changzhou Residential Q4 2016
ﬁ RIEBREER fRAIEE 201454ZFF - 43,463 75.96%
b Wanjiantang Project in Jintan Mixed-use Q4 2014
FME 1,281,798 2,932,181
Changzhou sub-total
LW
Shanghai
EEFBEEA (BRSNS 201454 26,262 91,130 55.01%
Park View International Community A Residential Q4 2014
BEE FEEA 20145 2% 162,048 - 55.01%
Gorgeous Mansion Residential Q2 2014
TEE EEIENE 20145 2F % 136,421 - 27.51%
Golden Territory Residential Q2 2014
BRRE CHERIER) FEHEA 20155 2% % 94,807 - 55.01%
Fragrant Legend (Hongde Road Project) Residential Q2 2015
SR% (B)I%EA\) F=1EE 2014F4FF 109,328 - 55.01%
Bright Green Land (Yun Chuan Road Project) Residential Q4 2014
BED (AKEEKEL) F=£EE 2015F2F % 116,212 - 55.01%
Garden House (Rushui South Road Project)  Residential Q2 2015
FEHMACG-1EE FEEE 20155 2% - 139,600 55.01%
Jiading Future Land A06-1 Land Parcel Residential Q2 2015
FREHMACG-2TE B FEEE 2015F4FE - 95,700 55.01%
Jiading Future Land A06-2 Land Parcel Residential Q4 2015
IR FEHEA 20165 2% % - 195,107 27.51%
Plot in Longxiang Road, Jinshan District Residential Q2 2016
NIk S8 FEHEA 20165 4% E - 46,490 55.01%
Plot of Yongfeng Street, Songjiang Residential Q4 2016
L har 645,077 568,027

Shanghai sub-total

12 | #EEEEZERERAF Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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B39 E LF
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HHHEER
ER HEER BRI A EERPEEEE FEEREEE FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Names Property Type Completion Date Development Planning  in the Project
(F77K) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
BRm
Nanjing
HRE R FEEE 20165F2F % 498,267 82,276 55.01%
Nanjing Future France Residential Q2 2016
WAL IER fReIAE 2015F4FE - 52,650 55.01%
Hubei Road Project Mixed-use Q4 2015
b | FEIHE 2016F3%FF 160,337 225,452 55.01%
Longwan Garden Residential Q3 2016
BE/E 658,605 360,378
Nanjing sub-total
BHm
Wuxi
) R E TEHEA 2014525 % 9,458 117,226 57.17%
Up Town Residential Q2 2014
EHTERXR (RWRKEE) FxEHEA 20145F4FE 232,004 19,996 57.17%
Wuxi Future France (Jincheng East Road Project) Residential Q4 2014
Sy 241,462 137,222
Wouxi sub-total
B
Suzhou
FINE DB FEHEA 20145F4FE 21,098 176,068 57.17%
Suzhou Fragrant Legend Residential Q4 2014
AR (FERE) EESELE 20155 2% % 141,325 122,213 57.17%
Shihu Mansion (Sujie Project) Residential Q2 2015
A FEEA 20175F4FE 263,596 126,640 57.17%
Future Mangrove Bay Residential Q4 2017
RIEBWNES FATEAE 2017 F4FE 183,303 527,845 65.00%
Wujiang Injoy Plaza Mixed-use Q4 2017
SRR E2012-B47-A AR 20165 2% % - 262,712 100.00%
Zhangjiagang 2012-B47-A Land Parcel Mixed-use Q2 2016
SRR E2012-B47-Bi iR fRAIEE 20165 2% - 262,864 100.00%
Zhangjiagang 2012-B47-B Land Parcel Mixed-use Q2 2016

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited 13
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HHHEER
ER HEER BRI A EERPEEEE FEEREEE FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Names Property Type Completion Date Development Planning  in the Project
(F77K) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
BILE& R FxIEE 20145F4FE 181,449 152,646 57.17%
Kunshan Future France Residential Q4 2014
Hrm e A B maER 20155F4FE - 210,497 77.16%
Future Land Territory West Project Mixed-use Q4 2015
B /NG 790,771 1,841,484
Suzhou sub-total
900l
Changsha
Hr BB TEED tRATEE 2016F4FE 201,700 785,198 97.15%
Future Land International Metropolis Mixed-use Q4 2016
EWet 201,700 785,198
Changsha sub-total
REm
Wuhan
ERE FEEE 20145 2F % 38,883 - 97.15%
In Spring Live Residential Q2 2014
HE N 38,883 -
Wuhan sub-total
#HIm
Zhenjiang
FHEER AR 2016F4FE 16,201 241,099 100.00%
Dantu Project Mixed-use Q4 2016
F5G1334 rAIEHE 2016F3FE - 152,632 100.00%
Plot No. G1334 in Danyang Mixed-use Q32016
FH5G1335 fRAIEE 20165F3FE - 233,205 100.00%
Plot No. G1335 in Danyang Mixed-use Q3 2016
FH5G1336 meER 20165F3FE - 129,675 100.00%
Plot No. G1336 in Danyang Mixed-use Q3 2016
FOT/at 16,201 756,611

Zhenjiang sub-total

14 | #EEEEZERER AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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B39 E LF
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HHHEER
ER HEER BRI A EERPEEEE FEEREEE rEEMER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Names Property Type Completion Date Development Planning  in the Project
(F77K) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
FM S
Hangzhou
AMIBERIER EEDENE 20155 4% - 124,276 57.17%
Shunda Road Project in Yuhang District, Hangzhou Residential Q4 2015
BIEETTR21-04 EEDEYE 2016525 ¥ - 22,036 57.17%
Plot No. R21-04 of Shenhua Unit Residential Q2 2016
RIUARREHI ERSENE 20155 4% - 51,562 57.17%
Plot of Future Sci-Tech City in Yuhang District Residential Q4 2015
BUM/NEE - 197,874
Hangzhou sub-total
[=E
Nantong
FIACR130431011 FEEE 2016F4Z%E - 556,728 44.00%
Nantong Plot No. CR13043 Residential Q4 2016
[EEER - 556,728
Nantong sub-total
&t 3,874,498 8,135,703
Total
BERAEE 2,320,834 6,048,654

Attributable to the Group

i 3 B 2R G PR D A Future Land Development Holdings Limited | 15
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
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On behalf of Future Land Development Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the final results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

REVIEW OF 2013

2013 is the first full year since the listing of the shares
(the "Shares”) of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and marks an
important year for the Group’s business development. By
adhering to our strategic policy of “coverage for the Pan-
Yangtze River Delta Region and product diversification”,
the Group achieved outstanding results in each aspect
of contracted sales, land bank, geographical network
and commercial properties, which enabled the Group to
successfully accomplish its business targets of the year and
laid a good foundation for the Company’s development in
the coming year.

With respect to operating results, the Group made a
breakthrough in contracted sales of RMB20 billion for the
year of 2013, reaching approximately RMB20.624 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 27.82%, and
fulfilling and exceeding the contracted sales target of the
year. The total gross floor areas (“GFA") of contracted
sales reached approximately 2,205,800 square metres
("sg.m.”), representing an increase of 18.84% over the
same period in 2012. During the year, the Group’s revenue
increased by approximately 18.6%, as compared to that for
2012, to RMB20,771.3 million. Core earnings (excluding
after-tax fair value gains on investment properties)
attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) rose approximately 5.6%, as compared
to that for 2012, to approximately RMB960.5 million. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.05 per
Share, representing a pay-out ratio of approximately 30%
of the core earnings attributable to Shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
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With respect to land bank, the Group adhered to its
strategy of consolidating the Group’s leading position in
the Yangtze River Delta, leveraging the Group’s strong
financial foundation, seizing opportunities in a timely
manner during the year and after prudent considerations,
the Group has acquired at competitive prices 16 quality
sites amounting to an additional buildable GFA of
approximately 3.54 million sq.m. Our entry into the new
markets of Hangzhou, Zhenjiang and Nantong during the
year also contributed to a more balanced geographical
distribution for our projects, enabling us to consolidate
our leading position in the Yangtze Rive Delta. As at 31
December 2013, we had 93 real estate projects in 10 major
cities in the PRC, of which 51 were under construction
and/or held for future development. The Group has a land
bank of a total GFA of approximately 13.85 million sg.m.,
of which approximately 9.64 million sg.m. is attributable
to the Group’s interests. Such land bank provides strong
support to the Group’s continuous development in the next
four to five years.

With respect to commercial property operation, the
influence of the Group's “Injoy (&1it)” brand has been
further enhanced. Changzhou Injoy Plaza (& /ME1HES)
and Changzhou Injoy International Plaza (& /M& 15 B E
%), both commenced operations in 2012, have successfully
completed their first year of operation and started to
generate relatively stable rental incomes for the Group.
During the reporting period, our three “Injoy Plaza (&1
E35)" projects in Shanghai and Suzhou have commenced
construction. These projects strengthened our project
pipeline supplies for further development of “Injoy (&))"
as a premier commercial property brand in the country.

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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In respect of financial management and monitoring,
the Group adheres to a prudent and stability-based
financial policy. Finance costs are under strict control. We
also aim at improving and maintaining a sound capital
structure through a diverse range of financing channels.
We succeeded in two exercises of off-shore note issues,
which improved the Group's debt maturity profile and
enhanced liquidity. Starting from mid 2013, lowering the
debt indicators has been made an important target of the
Group’s internal management. Efforts have been made
to enhance cash inflow and limit the increase of high
interest debts. As a result of the concerted efforts of the
management, as at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net
debt-to-equity ratio was 52.8%, and cash at bank and on
hand (including restricted cash) amounted to RMB8,297.9
million. We believe that through continuous improvements
in debt maturity profile and enhancing additional liquidity,
the Group’s financial capacity can be further strengthened,
which is favorable to the long-term development of the
Group.

In respect of social responsibility, it is the Group's belief
that corporate social responsibility is one of the core values
and competitive edges for the development and growth of
branded real estate enterprises. Throughout 2013, we were
committed to the promotion of public welfare services,
and contributed to the society by actively fulfilling our
corporate social responsibility. During the reporting period,
the Group launched the “Seven Color Program (L fajt
#H#)” with an aim to provide care and assistance to the
distressed people in China. This included setting up mobile
libraries, donating books to needy students in Liuyang of
Hunan and Lianyungang of Jiangsu, actively promoting arts
and cultural broadcast by organizing ”Art Workshops (£
fli CY5)” and promoting healthy life by organizing “Future
Land « | Run (i « & 01)” mini marathon. We hope to
use the Group's brand name influence coupled with our
actions to continuously promote the development of social
welfare work.
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

In 2013, the demand in Chinese real estate market has
been gradually releasing from the suppression of macro-
control in the past several years, and the PRC real estate
market has undergone a stable recovery, generally
presenting a trend of increase in both sales volume and
price. The continuous growth of disposable income of
Chinese residents, and the advent of urbanization in the
course of long term development, will remain the major
driving forces for the growth of the PRC real estate market
in the future.
estate are likely to be more market-oriented, and mostly
led by local governments. We expect the performance of
the real estate market may be more segmented, which
requires us to better analyze and deal with markets in
different cities, areas and segmented markets.

In addition, the control measures on real

The Group will continue to focus on first and second-tier
cities and to selectively penetrate into certain third and
lower-tier cities. In the next five years, we intend to adopt
a two pronged development approach so that focuses
will be on residential housing and urban complex. While
striving to raise the popularity of our four series of brands
of our residential projects, namely, “First Homes (4@
fit)”, “Sweet Homes (4g44)%)", “Dream Homes (:4%%
)" and “Prestige Homes (GEf§%5)"
premier land parcels for the development of urban
complex projects in order to gradually expand the exposure
“Injoy (FE1)" across the

, we also acquired

of our commercial property brand
country.

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited

— =% %R 2013 Annual Report

19




20

ESRRITHARHRS

CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

BAKERRERE  SEBE EnZl] NBERE
B RHRARE - WERIEELDEREE - AERFS
HERERFIAR - FEMWE ML EE - R FEES
MR RATREEEBE ] Rig > MERESME
BHEHESRA  THRBTRANOBERE  ZEMHE
B e mkEEKENRLREPRT AN - I
5 BEFEME  THEEMTEL - BREERAN - B4
EERABEZTENE N $BRARMERD ROENTS
RIEPIEREEE -

&l

AEENRREREBEANRIF  URERBETINE
BERER AARUBERREZTEANARAZEET K
R REE  AFERH - BEPHOEEMIFHBUARLAH
B HMBAE [ALEH  ARME] WES BREP
BIR R EEAER IR o

BEFRRITHARE
IiRE
2014537178

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report

We will uphold the development strategy of “region
focused, high turnover and product diversification”.
Accordingly, we plan to further explore our existing
regions and seize further opportunities with our land
reserve, acquire new projects at competitive prices and
prudently expand our land bank. With due regard to our
financial position, we will continue to expedite return of
funds through our “rapid asset turnover” strategy, while
at the same time increase our efforts to control our costs
of capital and proactively explore new financing channels
and strengthen our financial structure, so as to remain
profitable in a business environment full of challenges and
opportunities. Through our various efforts including careful
planning, enhanced product standardization, stringent cost
control and a more sophisticated management structure,
we believe that we are well positioned to achieve
stable growth under the volatile and segmented market
conditions.

APPRECIATION

The steady growth of the Group is attributable to the
enormous support from the relevant parties and invaluable
contributions of our staff. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to take this opportunity to express our wholehearted
gratitude to our staff, Shareholders, investors, business
partners and customers for their trust and support. Bearing
in mind the motto of “Hearty Dedication Just For You (LA
LEGH > RITE) ", we are going to create higher values
and returns for our customers, Shareholders and investors.

Wang Zhenhua
Chairman and CEO
17 March 2014
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OVERALL OVERVIEW

The Group achieved contracted sales of RMB20,624.1
million for the year of 2013, representing a year-on-
year increase of 27.82%. Revenue increased by 18.6%
to RMB20,771.3 million as compared to 2012, and core
earnings attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by 5.6% to RMB960.5 million as compared to
the same period of last year.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Property Development

In 2013, the Group achieved contracted sales of
approximately RMB20,624 million, representing an
increase of 27.82% as compared to 2012. The Group
sold approximately 2,205,800 sqg.m. in GFA, representing
an increase of 18.84%
(excluding carparks) recorded in different regions, in
particular, Shanghai, Changzhou, Suzhou and Nanjing,
were approximately RMB5,664.97 million, RMB5,753.85
million, RMB3,818.20 million and RMB2,201.77 million,
contributing to 27.98%, 28.42%, 18.86% and 10.88%
of the Group's total contracted sales (excluding carparks),
respectively.

over 2012. Contracted sales

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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®1:203FXEESHNHEEPA Table 1: Details of contracted sales of the Group in
2013
TREFNR2013F R EEES N IHERN R DM - The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of

the Group’s contracted sales in 2013:

EHHE &t
EEEE SHER
Contracted Contracted
HE A Project/Properties GFA sold sales
(FFAK) (AREBEET
(sgq.m.) (RMB million)
HON Changzhou

BiwRE Fragrant Legend (&& #15) 160,853.1 1,151.02
A5 Future Consequence (B1% ¥ 5) 86,184.5 745.04
E i A Future France (& 5 E0) 112,152.8 679.83
BMEs Changzhou Emporium (EMFE ) 41,183.7 639.14
S ES Injoy Plaza (E1i&E%) 54,258.6 404.86
e Future Royal Bay (5 /& 42,569.5 396.40
Tk E I Future Capital (GET¥8 & FF) 24,298.3 299.16
BukE Future Success (& £ &) 35,236.5 284.90
N T 2 BB Changzhou Future Land Golden County (&M #7354 2f) 21,7723 281.76
BERE In Spring Live (BKE) 33,647.6 202.98
B EEES Injoy International Plaza (& 1H BB &15) 14,650.9 185.10
NEZ5R Park No.1 (REIE5R) 31,978.8 182.80
BN A Changzhou Xincheng Future Town (& M #74 13) 17,717.9 102.60
s Future Land Southern Metropolis (¥73 % #5) 10,298.0 61.15
A Lakeview (HBEZERK) 3,442.5 41.06
ERERES Injoy Lifestyle Plaza (B 1% £/&E%) 2,553.4 38.12
e Four Seasons Future Land (F0Z=$) 3,931.3 22.25
BINFTH AR Changzhou New City Residence (& ¥ 2 £8) 2,441.0 18.61
I ERE Future Land Splendid Park (T3 B8 &) 1,062.2 12.85
iR iR Future Land Scenic Garden (¥ &18) 489.9 3.08
THEE Yulong Bay (E3E/&) 126.5 0.89
B KE Geniality Bay (/&7K /& 106.2 0.27
=M PEt Changzhou sub-total 700,955.4 5,753.85

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report
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ERHE an
BEER SHER
Contracted Contracted
HEZE Project/Properties GFA sold sales
(FHK) (AR¥BE&ET
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
tiE Shanghai
REERE Petrus Hacienda (R 2 E) 63,815.0 2,277.71
EEFR R Park View International Community (/& #7354 2f)* 17.264.9 315.06
IS AR « WHEEE Park View Ivy (F/8¥TH 2D « & &) 32,062.7 593.52
B w R EE Fragrant Legend (& & /W EE) 31,256.4 644.23
BEE Gorgeous Mansion ({E# &) 16,830.3 488.97
SERE Bright Green Land (S22 &) 32,064.0 473.69
BasEis N Shanghai Legend Mansion (_E/& ¥ 2 f8) 20,411.3 425.16
1 TE YOHO City (4&5EHK) 15,317.6 205.21
EBEER Garden House (BE¥ ) 7,664.5 139.75
8 _E Exalted Uptown (i& _E35) 5,446.1 101.67
FFDEF Shanghai sub-total 242,132.9 5,664.97
MR Nanjing
E i A Future France (& 5E0) 200,069.7 1,797.42
EER Longwan Garden (/& {EE) 20,013.8 336.82
i Ep Future Land Golden County (HTii & ZF) 5,231.2 67.53
AR5 Nanjing sub-total 225,314.7 2,201.77
M Suzhou
B Fragrant Legend (& & #15) 119,432.6 1,181.31
RITEWES Wujiang Injoy Plaza (RIT &1 ES) 92,052.6 756.50
B R ED Future France (& 5E0) 90,242.9 675.23
AR NN Future Mansion (FT¥ A £8) 46,529.6 532.40
FAR7pE Future Mangrove Bay (AL15f & 49,403.8 419.37
FTk & BT Future Land Golden County (¥4 25) 26,1442 231.08
FTYk 1 Future Land Territory (3735 8) 2,675.5 22.31
FFM D at Suzhou sub-total 426,481.3 3,818.20
] Wuxi
i 3R 7 Up Town (i# 8 5 E) 99,813.3 763.66
Eim R IL Future France (B £1£) 77,932.4 600.12
ERREH] East China Home Decor Centre (ZERFRKEA [)) 10,600.3 91.05
BT Glorious Century Future Land (B%tE#73) 557.8 3.27
Ei DAt Wuxi sub-total 188,903.9 1,458.11

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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EHHE B
BEmME HES
Contracted Contracted
HEZE Project/Properties GFA sold sales
(FHK) (AR¥BE&ET
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
W] Wuhan
BRE In Spring Live (BX &) 89,992.9 721.82
EZE NG Wuhan sub-total 89,992.9 721.82
=97 Changsha
i BIPR TE D Future Land International Metropolis (73 BIFR fE#F) 138,180.3 598.31
R D&t Changsha sub-total 138,180.3 598.31
ST Zhenjiang
SEOT Sk & _E 9 Zhenjiang Future Land Exalted Uptown (38T #74 i% - 30) 3,398.5 27.64
T )EF Zhenjiang sub-total 3,398.5 27.64
B Car parks 190,410.3 379.47
st Total 2,205,770.2 20,624.13
BT Note:
* BIELESEAR LSS EB * Included Park View International Community A (L/8&#BA) and
Park View International Community B (_t/54 #EB)
T i fEE Land Bank

2013128318 » REEM T #E S 5T4913,854,810
Tk REZEE AR A9,644,765F 7K o it N 15
RARL BEF T KAREE,8205T « AEBMN2013412A31
H& i mmT

ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report
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As at 31 December 2013, the total land bank of the
Group was approximately 13,854,810 sg.m., of which
9,644,765 sq.m. was attributable to the Group's interests.
The average acquisition cost of the Group's land bank was
approximately RMB1,820 per sq.m. The geographic spread
of the land bank of the Group as at 31 December 2013
was as follows:
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®2 AEE/M T EEEHA Table 2: Breakdown of land bank of the Group
hAEE AEEER
BEEEE rEEERE EEEER
BEEEE Aot BEER Aotk
Percentage
GFA of GFA
Percentage attributable attributable
of the to the to the
Group's Group's Group'’s
W City Total GFA total GFA interest interests
(SF772K) (%) (SFF7K) (%)
(sq.m.) (%) (sg.m.) (%)
M Changzhou 5,228,837 37.74% 3,806,487 39.46%
fabis Shanghai 1,492,591 10.77% 716,060 7.42%
AR Nanjing 1,061,893 7.66% 584,147 6.06%
g2 Wuxi 507,804 3.67% 309,785 3.21%
| Suzhou 2,857,082 20.62% 1,951,806 20.24%
=D Changsha 1,079,799 7.79% 1,049,025 10.88%
HE Wuhan 99,391 0.72% 96,559 1.00%
L Hangzhou 197,874 1.43% 113,125 1.17%
T Zhenjiang 772,812 5.58% 772,812 8.01%
Bzl Nantong 556,728 4.02% 244,960 2.54%
&5t Total 13,854,810 100.00% 9,644,765 100.00%
013F AEEFIEWE L HFEEER S 16 - 250758 In 2013, the Group acquired a total of 16 projects to

BRI ARBIZE - AESEMNEH S U o 3L i replenish its land bank, all through government public tender,

B4 /53,544,570F 7K (e iEith NEESEmEAE) - P UREE auction or listing-for-sale acquisition. The Group acquired

KAL) BFFEHAKARKE2,3517C ° approximately 3,544,570 sg.m. (excluding underground floor
area) of land to replenish it's land bank whilst the average
acquisition cost was approximately RMB2,351 per sg.m.

i 3 B2 RGP D 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited | 25
ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report
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3 :12013F1Z12 AN L b UL BB R 4B Table 3: Land acquisition from January to December
2013
HR T AR bR RS BEEEE 8
Attributable Total Land

Project/Land parcel Land use interest Site area GFA premium
(%) (FEFK) (CEFK) (ARBARET)
(%) (sgq.m.) (sgq.m.) (RMB million)

[

Nanjing

HEEER F= 55.01% 95,819 287,457 1,980

Longwan Garden (/& fE[E) Residential

&M

Suzhou

RIERES RE 65.00% 154,313 527,183 528

Wujiang Injoy Plaza (R)IE 1 E3%) Mixed-use

A = 57.17% 122,464 325,946 1,003

Further Mangrove Bay (AL#)) Residential

RKB2012-B47-Attn 1} RE 100.00% 65,678 262,712 345

Plot No. 2012-B47-A in Zhangjiagang Mixed-use

(SRR #2012-B47-Alh38)
SRR 7E2012-B47-Bih RE 100.00% 65,716 262,864 345
Plot No. 2012-B47-B in Zhangjiagang Mixed-use

(FRK#$2012-B47-Bith k)

BN
Hangzhou
RIIEERIAE TE 57.17% 54,033 124,276 314
Shunda Road Project in Yuhang District, Residential

Hangzhou (RIMIEZEFKIAE)
F{E B TTR21-043 3% == 57.17% 11,018 22,036 321
Plot No. R21-04 of Shenhua Unit Residential

(FBTEETTR21-043b38)
RIS B T= 57.17% 32,226 51,562 450
Plot of Future Sci-Tech City in Yuhang District ~ Residential

(RIUASREBH U R)
L&
Shanghai
TR = 27.50% 108,393 195,107 704
Plot in Longxiang Road, Jinshan District Residential

(& ILEEMER I R)
K EATE R FE % 55.01% 39,999 46,490 734
Plot of Yongfeng Street (;k &7 1 1) Residential/

Commercial

26 | #FHBEIZERBMR AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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ERE s T A% LR R EE HEEEE 1B
Attributable Total Land

Project/Land parcel Land use interest Site area GFA premium

(%) (FFK) (FHK) (ARERET)

(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million)
208
Zhenjiang
FH5G13344 1% e 100.00% 43,609 152,632 131
Plot No. G1334 in Danyang (f}5G133443%)  Mixed-use
FH5G13354 1% e 100.00% 66,630 233,205 200
Plot No. G1335 in Danyang (f}f5G1335#13%)  Mixed-use
F5G 133611 o) 100.00% 37,050 129,675 111
Plot No. G1336 in Danyang (J}f5G13364h38)  Mixed-use
FEER ot 100.00% 90,143 210,800 270
Dantu Project (f}HEIER) Mixed-use
M
Changzhou
JXB20130501 3% T,/ ¥ 56.68% 51,966 155,898 196
Plot No. JXB20130501 (JXB201305011th38) Residential/

Commercial
HE
Nantong
CR1304311% FE HE 44.00% 185,576 556,728 701
Plot No. CR13043 (CR130433th 1) Residential/
Commercial

=Ei 1,224,633 3,544,570 8,332
Total
MEXNTRWEHERA Property Delivery and Revenue from Sale of

HZE2013F12A31BLFE - AEEHEYEHERALY
BAR20,421.88 &0 ' B2012F 12 K17.8% - RE=E
2013512 A3 B L FER MY B EEMmMIEA2,475,098F
T B20126F 1 K29.4% < 2013 F AR FHHEER B
FFHARARES 2517 + 820125 1K9.0% ©

Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from
sale of properties by the Group was approximately
RMB20,421.8 million, representing an increase of 17.8%
over 2012. Properties with a total GFA of approximately
2,475,098 sq.m. were delivered during the year ended 31
December 2013, representing an increase of 29.4% as
compared to 2012. Recognized average selling price was
RMB8,251 per sq.m. in 2013, representing a decrease of
9.0% as compared to 2012.

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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TREINN2013FRAEEINHENYEARBOWRALRE
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The following table sets forth the revenue information
relating to the properties the Group delivered for sale

during 2013:

Table 4: Breakdown of property development revenue

by projects in 2013

HE W LN BEmME FHEE
Average
Project City Revenue GFA selling price
(ARE
(ARBEHET) (FFHK) FK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
ERE api! 2,228.1 79,293 28,099
Petrus Hacienda (222 &) Shanghai
EBEE* ubis] 1,790.5 137,035 13,066
Park View International Community* (/8% E8) Shanghai
BPEE M 1,385.9 186,700 7,423
Future Consequence (B i ¥ 5) Changzhou
BimwE N 1,284.8 193,388 6,643
Fragrant Legend (&& #15) Changzhou
RO BIRIEH ED 1,190.9 311,166 3,827
Changsha International Metropolis (KR BIBX7E#F) Changsha
Em RAEL N 1,095.5 187,363 5,847
Future France (& 5 EB) Changzhou
BN EB N 1,067.5 133,949 7,969
Suzhou Golden County (&R/1 <& ZB) Suzhou
85 1 SR ST, w5 952.0 124,235 7,663
Wuxi Up Town (485 i B HE5E) Wuxi
T & B M 8945 74,250 12,047
Further Land Golden County (¥T¥ & 25) Changzhou
o M 818.4 151,209 5,413
Future Land Territory (373 13) Changzhou
i E N M 787.2 72,887 10,801
Future Capital (¥ & /) Changzhou
HRE M 784.4 93,551 8,385
Future Royal Bay (5% Changzhou
REEXRE Bz 678.0 86,319 7,855
Wuhan In Spring Live (R )Z&F K R) Wuhan
kBT A lubis] 661.3 36,838 17,953
Park View Ivy (3T & E8 & &%) Shanghai
i = 9ok finpic 624.1 58,264 10,712
Exalted Uptown (& £ 3#) Shanghai
HbIa R 4,178.7 548,651 7,616
Other Projects (Kb 18 H)
&a&t 20,421.8 2,475,098 8,251
Total
Bt 5E Note:
* BELESEAR L/GREB © * Include Park View International Community A (_E/8&#8A) and Park

28 | #FHBREIZERBMR AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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Of the properties the Group had pre-sold, a total GFA
of approximately 1,421,909 sg.m. with total pre-sale
revenue of approximately RMB13,298.9 million, had not
been delivered as at 31 December 2013. This, however,
laid a solid foundation for a steady growth in the Group’s
revenue for the year to come.

Property Investment

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had
investment properties of 306,598 sq.m. that have already
commenced operations, and rental income from these
investment properties was approximately RMB81.1 million,
representing an increase of 243.2% over 2012. Such rental
income was mainly derived from the commercial complexes
completed in 2012, namely, Changzhou Injoy Plaza (&M1&
&%) and Changzhou Injoy International Plaza (FMZE 17
Bl E%).

In 2013, the Group developed a new investment property,
namely, Wujiang Injoy Plaza (=T & i E#%). As at 31
December 2013, such investment property has not been
completed.

The Group did not hold any other significant investments
except for the aforementioned investment properties as at
31 December 2013.

Table 5: Breakdown of rental income from investment
properties of the Group in 2013

HZ12A31HILLEE
Year ended 31 December

2013%F 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HeWA Rental Income

SES Injoy Plaza (&1} &%) 43,822 22,881
&1 B B Injoy International Plaza (& 13 BIE E5) 36,878 383

PO 2 Sk P Four Seasons Future Land Commercial
Complexes (V8 Z=57 4 7 98) 410 370
a5t Total 81,110 23,634
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’'s revenue comprises income from sale of
properties and, to a lesser extent, property management,
rental and other property related services earned during
the year. The Group’s revenue increased by 18.6%, to
approximately RMB20,771.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB17,517.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. As a breakdown,
income from sales of properties during the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately RMB20,421.8
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.8%;
income from property management and other income
was approximately RMB247.1 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 76.9%; and rental income was
approximately RMB102.4 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 187.4%.

The increase in the Group's revenue was primarily
attributable to a 18.6% increase in the Group's property
sales and the Group’s rental income. The increase in
property sales in 2013 is attributable to a 29.4% increase
in GFA delivered.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of the costs the Group
incurred directly in relation to its property development
activities as well as its leasing and property management
operations. Cost of sales includes construction costs, land
use rights costs, business tax and surcharges, capitalized
interest and other business costs. The Group’s cost of sales
increased by 18.4% to approximately RMB16,088.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately
RMB13,587.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. This increase was primarily attributable to the
increases in the total GFA delivered in the year ended 31
December 2013.
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TRV REEERAERHEEXNANER The following table sets forth information relating to the
Group's cost of sales for the years indicated:

x6  NEEHERSHA Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales
BZ12A3101LEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F &
20124
20134 20124 Cilsd)
Percentage
increase/
decrease in

2013 versus

2013 2012 2012
AR®T T AREFTT (%)
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)
+ 4 (i PRk A Land use rights costs 4,770,651 4,025,794 18.5
BEHEY Construction costs 9,101,315 7,684,444 18.4
BAREH B Capitalized interest 770,865 732,328 5.3
BEBLMINE Business tax and surcharges 1,166,306 977,980 19.3
HARBELSWEMNEE  Accrual of provision for properties
held for sale 79,588 - N/A
Hapask Other expenses 199,313 166,825 19.5
16,088,038 13,587,371 18.4
ERIEEAMELLTE Total GFA delivered (sq.m.)
(FF73K) 2,475,098 1,912,223 29.4
BEFFHKFEHKA Average cost per sq.m. sold (RMB)*
(ARHE) * 5,916 6,507 9.1
EEFFEHKIEHERE Average selling price per sq.m. sold (RMB)
(AR®) 8,251 9,069 -9.0
FHR ARG FHEERN Average cost as % of average selling price
Btk 71.7% 71.7% -0.1

* EESTIROFHRFEREMYEHENTHRK (TREREED *
HERMEEREE)  UFRZERE - LibERRRARER RIS
FIRAFAB R (AR ERBESL -

Average cost per sgq.m. sold refers to the average cost of the
Group's property sales (excluding the Group's leasing and property
management operations) and is derived by dividing the sum of
construction costs, land use rights costs and capitalized interest for

a year by the total GFA delivered in that year.

i RIEREMR AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited | 31
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HEME HERAK
HEMEHAABHEET2012F12A831B LFEHARY
474 OB BT N24.7% EEH E2013F12A31HIEFELDHA
R¥592 088/ o SHEMEHKAIENEERHRAEE
2013 F N E LB BEMBRNES S ERIL AT
ﬁ o
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Gross Profit

The Group's gross profit increased by 19.2% to
approximately RMB4,683.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB3,929.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group reported
a gross profit margin of approximately 22.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2013, slightly higher than that
of approximately 22.4% for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain of its commercial
properties such as retail shops, shopping malls and car
parks for rental income or capital appreciation. The
Group's investment properties are appraised annually
by an independent property valuer. Any appreciation or
depreciation in the Group’s investment property value
is recognized as fair value gains or losses in the Group’s
consolidated statements of income. Valuation gains on
investment properties was approximately RMB37.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. Valuation gains
on investment properties were limited as (i) Wujiang
Injoy Plaza (RTEMES), a newly developed investment
property in 2013 has just commenced construction, and (ii)
the rental rates and occupancy rates for the year for two
major investment properties that the Group holds, namely,
Changzhou Injoy International Plaza (&N & 1% EE E %)
and Changzhou Injoy Plaza (EME1ES), were in line
with the valuation made in 2012.

Selling and Marketing Costs

Selling and marketing costs increased by 24.7% to
approximately RMB592.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB474.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase in advertising and
publicity expenses incurred as the Group launched more
projects for pre-sale in 2013.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 19.3% to
approximately RMB680.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB569.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase in
administrative expenses was primarily attributable to an
increase in staff costs resulting from an increase in the
Group's staff headcount and salary levels of its staff in
2013.

Finance Costs — Net

The Group’s finance costs primarily consist of interest
expenses on bank loans, trust financing arrangements and
senior notes less capitalized interest and finance income.
Interest on borrowings relating to project development
is capitalized to the extent it is directly attributable to a
particular project and used to finance the development
of that project. Finance costs increased by 253.7%, to
approximately RMB394.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB111.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. This increase was
mainly attributable to the uncapitalized finance costs of
senior notes and working capital loans incurred during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense includes provisions made
for land appreciation tax (“LAT”), PRC corporate income
tax and deferred income tax during the year. Income tax
expense increased by 23.2% to approximately RMB1,519.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from
RMB1,232.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The increase was primarily due to the increase in the
Group’s LAT and enterprise income tax in 2013, as a result
of the increase in its properties delivered and therefore
more revenue and profit was recognized during the same
period.

Profit for the Year

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by 5.4% to approximately RMB981.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately
RMB930.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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Core earnings (excluding post-tax fair value gains on
investment properties) attributable to equity holders of
the Company increased by 5.6% to RMB960.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately
RMB909.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources
Cash position

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash at bank and
on hand (including restricted cash) increased by 38.3%
to approximately RMB8,297.9 million from approximately
RMB6,000.2 million as at 31 December 2012. The carrying
amount of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased
by 52.8% to approximately RMB7,411.7 million as at 31
December 2013 from approximately RMB4,852.1 million
as at 31 December 2012. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group had net cash used in operating activities
of approximately RMB3,267.8 million, net cash generated
from investing activities of approximately RMB155.8
million, net cash generated from financing activities of
approximately RMB5,725.3 million and exchange losses on
cash and cash equivalents of RMB53.7 million.

Borrowings and charges on the Group'’s assets

The Group’s outstanding current and non-current
borrowings amounted to RMB13,889.6 million as at 31
December 2013, of which approximately RMB2,174.5
million is repayable within one year, approximately
RMB4,043.5 million is repayable after one year but within
two years, approximately RMB6,931.6 million is repayable
after two years but within five years and approximately
RMB740 million is repayable after five years. The Group’s
current and non-current borrowings increased RMB4,249.5
million to RMB13,889.6 million as at 31 December
2013 from RMB9,640.1 million as at 31 December 2012
primarily as the Group issued two tranches of five-year
US$200 million senior notes and three-year RMB1.5 billion
senior notes respectively in January and April 2013 and
increased certain development loans.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group's bank loans
were approximately RMB11,222.5 million, of which
approximately RMB10,822.5 million was secured by one
or a combination of the following methods: land to be
developed, properties under development, properties held
for sale, investment properties, shares of the Company’s
subsidiaries, bank deposits and/or guarantees by the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Group’s bank borrowings are
from major commercial banks, all of which are independent
third parties.

In addition, the Group successfully issued a tranche
of five-year US$200 million senior notes at a fixed
interest rate (10.25%) in January 2013, and a tranche of
three-year RMB1.5 billion senior notes at a fixed interest
rate (9.75%) in April 2013. These notes were secured by
shares of the Company’s subsidiaries. The issuance of the
above-mentioned notes has not only ensured the healthy
and stable cash flow of the Company in the future, but
also increased the proportion of the Group's long-term
borrowings in the total borrowings from 47% as at 31
December 2012 to 84% as at 31 December 2013, which
further optimized the Group’s borrowing structure. The
Directors believed that the constant optimization of the
Group’s debt level and financial structure had laid a solid
foundation for the Group to weather market volatility and
diminish financial risks.

The weighted average interest rate for the Group's then
bank borrowings and senior notes as at 31 December 2013
was 7.59%.

Gearing ratio (Net debt-to-equity ratio)

The Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio was 52.8% as at
31 December 2013. Net debt-to-equity ratio equals net
debt divided by total equity as at the end of the reporting
period and multiplied by 100%. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash, cash equivalents and restricted
cash. If net debt were calculated as total borrowing less
cash and cash equivalents, net debt-to-equity ratio would
be 61.1%, and such net debt-to-equity ratio increased
from 57.1% as at 31 December 2012, primarily due to an
increase in net debt resulted from the increase in financing
and the increase in operating cash outflow.

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report

35




36

BB WED T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREE

RFZB\BAK  ROBRAEERNERNRBEIEMHIE
R BEEEMRRBER-BRTIHREERRE : OBA
BERERE RS HEMGEER  RNEREBYENIZ
BEXRE - MEREREBES  MAKEAEREEHRT
ZERBASERBRZENRNRITZEANELETE &
AEBERREEMBNENEZEXENTEE - AREWE
REVET B R H1ZE B #R% -

HZE2013F12A318 ' A5EERGE TASBENOMEERY
RBEFREAMASHEERHERNEAXIREBENA
AR #2,980.78 & 7t (E £2012F128318 : H AR
3993.7HE L) c BN ZERIBERRENR/NELELY
REBERA  BREBREZFWAEEEN  WEAAEE
AENSRERITEK -

MR2013F 128318 » ARG FRARIREREERES T
TPEER -EERAETRANECHNBERENEGK -

BRAFRATEESE I -
BEASAEE -

AREEMN2013F12A31B W #EH

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report

Contingent Liabilities

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, banks require the
Group to guarantee its purchasers’ mortgage loans.
Guarantees for mortgages on pre-sold residential
properties are generally discharged at the earlier of:
(i) the issue of the real estate ownership certificate by
government authorities to the purchaser, or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties. If a purchaser defaults on a mortgage loan, the
Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
principal together with accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the
Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee period
typically starts from the date of grant of the mortgage.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s material contingent
liabilities in respect of the guarantees given to financial
institutions for mortgage loan facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
approximately RMB2,980.7 million (as at 31 December
2012: approximately RMB3,993.7 million). In light of the
minimal historical default rates of such mortgage loans
facilities, the Directors considered that the likelihood of
default of payments by the purchasers is minimal and
therefore the financial guarantee measured at fair value is
immaterial.

There are certain corporate guarantees provided by
the Company’s subsidiaries for each other in respect
of borrowings as at 31 December 2013. The Directors
consider that the subsidiaries are sufficiently financially
resourced to settle their obligations.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no
other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2013.
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Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets increased by 22.1%
to approximately RMB221.2 million from approximately
RMB181.2 million as at 31 December 2012. The increase
is mainly attributable to the Group’s acquisition of
available-for-sale financial assets in 2013 that amounted
to approximately RMB40.0 million. There had been
no significant change in the fair value of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2013
from the acquisition cost.

Foreign Exchange Risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash balances
denominated in Renminbi of approximately RMB7,898.0
million, in Hong Kong dollars of approximately RMB90.9
million and in US dollars of approximately RMB309.0
million.

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried
out in the PRC with most of the transactions denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from the exposure of U.S. dollars and Hong Kong
dollars against Renminbi as a result of certain cash and the
settlement of certain general and administrative expenses
and other loans in U.S. dollars or Hong Kong dollars.

In January 2013, the Company issued US$200 million
senior notes to the international capital market at a fixed
interest rate of 10.25% with a tenor of five years to secure
healthy and sound cash flow for the Group in the future.
As a result of the issuance of the senior notes, the Group
became exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against US dollars.

In addition, Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies and the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the Directors monitor the Group’s foreign
exchange exposure closely and may, depending on the
circumstances and trend of foreign currency, consider
adopting appropriate foreign currency hedging policy in
the future.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or assets save as disclosed in this
annual report.

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital
Assets

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual
report, there are no current plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than in the Group's
ordinary business of property development.

Employees and Compensation Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 4,896 full-time
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. 1,476 of these
employees worked in the property development operations,
339 are engaged in management of commercial complexes
and 3,081 are engaged in property management, branded
customer services, property management and other related
operations.

The Group determines the remuneration packages of all
the employees (including the Directors) based on their
performance, work experience and the prevailing market
wage level, and provide promotional opportunities for
them with reference to their individual strengths and
potentials. The remuneration package of the employees
consists of base salary, cash bonus and share-based
payments. The Group has established performance
appraisal system so as to evaluate the performance of
its employees on an annual basis and use the evaluation
results to determine their salary increment or promotion
accordingly. The Group recognized an expense in relation
to share-based payments of RMB25.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (for the year ended 31
December 2012: RMB36.7 million).



EERGREER
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HITESE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

FIREITESR 525 RARMHNESE  HTES Wang Zhenhua (&%), or Chairman Wang', aged 52,
FITRER - TEERMI9FRAMNEWERBES - T is our chairman, executive Director and chief executive
EERABTAEBMNEY - B1996F & —FH L EFMIER officer. Chairman Wang began engaging in property
EEARAF ([FRER]) EECHNEE R - K20014F - development business in China in 1993. Chairman
Eé%%ﬁk%ﬂs Bl =R FRADIEIPHE RN AR AR Wang founded the business of the Group and has been
([CI#FE]) EFENEER  IHETREEREEEME the chairman of the board of directors of Future Land
- HBIRE LBFLFR S Em (R : 900950) ° Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Future Land Holdings") since 1996.
20085 TEEREIENMUEFEEXZERAF ([HBE In 2001, Chairman Wang became chairman of the board
B ZAREMFAEZHBGEAEEE - TEERMN1983 of directors of Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
FIARENIHERERAZE  IUSHMIRESEMFE - Future Land"), a subsidiary of the Company that engages
WH2005F7 AR ERRIESER MEaREEAELRE principally in residential property development and the
ERBELTEML FEFRVAFEZHIBEBRSSNTE B-shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
EgZENPEXETINERECGFNEN SR -1 Exchange (Stock code: 900950). In 2008, he founded
20105 TESREFEGER T [BRSEHESE] HR - » Future Land Wanbo Property Co., Ltd. (“Future Land
2013F 1A - TESREERTIHEAARE - Wanbo"), which focuses on the development of mixed-
use complex project. Chairman Wang graduated from
Jiangsu Broadcast and Television University (T#kEIEE1R
KXE) with a diploma in mechanical engineering in August
1983, and from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
(BT Ft) with an EMBA degree in July 2005. Chairman
Wang currently serves as an executive committee member
of the All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (F
EZ2FHTEHEBAD), and as a vice-president of China
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (T2 B T EKA S
FEHER ). Chairman Wang was named “National Model
Worker” by the State Council in 2010 and was appointed
as a representative of Jiangsu Province for the National
People’s Congress of the PRC in January 2013.

1 BAKEKIAR  TEFR-EEEBRARMOEBREBUKRE - mWang had been managing the Group's business and
EFERABTEFREAEFREITREIMBAFNAEENEBIIS overall strategic planning since its establishment. The Directors
KRB o B - AR T KRR 8RR 8%+ PSP RHESCEA 2. 1KE948 consider that the vesting of the roles of chairman and chief
ERERRRITEERMBIBL S - executive officer in Chairman Wang is beneficial to the business

prospects and management of the Group. Accordingly, the

Company had not segregated the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer as required by Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix

14 to the Listing Rules.

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited | 39
ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report



40

EENSNEERE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BIEMD 395 RARMNATESRARAIREZES
([REBZES]) KB - BALENR2000F MBEAEEH - R
2001 20044 - i BAEIERFIMMEEBNIE - aERE
DEREE Y o 20045 F20074F B A EEIEHT N
Blias aEREMAMmEEE  BABEEEEAEERT
EEREE - B2007F5AE2010668  MEALEEZRTA
LB ESMERE AR - B2010F6 A8 - K
EE—HATRIERNESNERE  2EXZHFBES
AENZBASREEFAEER - BAEM7FEERNRZER
2. RSERMELEA - WHR2000F S &S EE T 24 -
B3 S HE PA20044F BUAS = R4S AN B 4% o BISC 20074 2
¥ERFEEBEIESR S IHEREIEN -

2R - 565% - BABMNNITERRBEIEERLEML -
B ER2006F INEAER - WHR2010FEZXEAFHE
BRRIBEER201MFABIERMEILE - ZEEEER
EEZRBGRAENTEER - AL EN1984F5AZER
BEMTREBRIAS REIREIRSBMEE - RINBA
SEFT R1984F E1995F EE MM /KERAR TIE - B
1995F EZ2002F FEEEMEREERATBKERES
&+ RR2003F 22006 F T EH & K HEHEREFR A
AR BEBBAREEBER  UHEEEEEFERER
TEENEE o BN 2000FEE A TIREAER o

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report

Min Yuansong (B3#E#2), aged 39, is our executive Director
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Min joined the Group
in 2000. Between 2001 and 2004, he served as assistant
president of Jiangsu Future Land, where he was responsible
for marketing in its Wujing branch. Between 2004 and
2007, he served as vice president of Jiangsu Future Land,
where he was responsible for project development of
the Future Land Southern Metropolis project, and gained
valuable experience in project management. Between May
2007 and June 2010, Mr. Min was appointed as a director
and the vice president of Jiangsu Future Land, where he
was responsible for marketing. Since June 2010, Mr. Min
has been a director and vice president of Future Land
Holdings, overseeing our mixed-use complex development
business principally carried out by Future Land Wanbo. Mr.
Min graduated from Wuhan University (EZXZ) with a
bachelor’s degree in science in 1997 and a master’s degree
in economics in 2000. He qualified as a Senior Economist
(7 & A BM) in 2004. Mr. Min graduated from China
Europe International Business School with a Master of
Business Administration degree in 2007.

Liu Yuanman (2/JR®), aged 56, is our executive Director
and head of the strategic investment centre. Mr. Liu joined
the Group in 2006 and was appointed as a vice president
of Future Land Wanbo in 2010 and vice president of
Future Land Holdings in 2011. He is responsible for the
engineering and construction of the Group’s mixed-
use complexes. Mr. Liu graduated from Changzhou
Construction Vocational University (% N T2 £ 8 T K
2) with a diploma in industrial and civil engineering in
May 1984. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked in
Changzhou Marine Products Co., Ltd. (B/HH/KERQF)
between 1984 and 1995 and served as general manager
and chairman of Changxin Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (REFHERZEARAT) between 1995 and 2002
and general manager of Wuxi Jintaihu Real Estate Limited
Company (##5& KNFEHERZEBRAF) between 2003
and 2006, where he was responsible for the overall
business of the relevant companies and gained valuable
experience in project management. Mr. Liu qualified as a
civil engineer in 2000.
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Huang Maoli (EX%]), aged 39, is our executive Director, a
member of the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and joint company secretary (the “Joint
Company Secretary”) of the Company. Madam Huang joined
the Company in December 2011. Madam Huang is primarily
responsible for investor relation and overseas financing activities
of the Company, while overseeing the strategic development
and internal audit and management work of the Company.
Madam Huang graduated from Nanjing University (F85RAE)
with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1994 and a master’s
degree in economics in 1997. Madam Huang obtained an MBA
degree from the Wharton School of Business at the University
of Pennsylvania in 2003. Prior to joining the Group, Madam
Huang held various positions at Goldman Sachs GaoHua
Securities Limited (XS ZEFESFRETLAF]) between May
2007 and December 2011, and served as executive director of
its investment banking division immediately before joining the
Company. Previously, Madam Huang served as a vice president
of Bank of America Corporation strategic planning and
corporate development department between August 2005 and
April 2007.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lv Xiaoping (&N ¥F), aged 52, is our non-executive Director.
Mr. Lv joined the Group in 2001. Mr. Lv served as the vice
president of Future Land Holdings between September 2001
and August 2004. From August 2004 to January 2013, Mr.
Lv had been a director and the president of Jiangsu Future
Land (Stock code: 900950), principally responsible for the
overall management of our residential property development
business carried out by Jiangsu Future Land. Since February
2013, Mr. Lv has been the vice chairman of Jiangsu Future
Land. Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1983. Mr. Lv later
graduated from China European International Business School
with an MBA degree in 2007. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lv worked in Changchai Company Limited, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 000570)
between 1987 and 2001 and served as the secretary to the
board of directors and head of investment of the company,
where he was responsible for business development and
investment strategies.

Wang Xiaosong (EM#2), aged 26, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang is the son of Chairman Wang, executive
Director, chief executive officer and controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Future Land (Stock
code 900950) in 2009 as civil engineer and subsequently as
project manager. Between November 2011 and January 2013,
Mr. Wang became the vice president and general manager
of the marketing department of Jiangsu Future Land where
he was responsible for and gained valuable experience in
sales and market research. In February 2013, Mr. Wang was
appointed as president of Jiangsu Future Land, and has been
responsible for its general management. In addition, since
April 2013, Mr. Wang has been a director of Jiangsu Future
Land. Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University (& A
£) with a bachelor's degree in Environmental Sciences in
2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chen Huakang (FRZEE), aged 61, is our independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the ”“Audit Committee”).
Mr. Chen joined the Group in November 2012. He was
awarded a certificate in Modern Economic Management
Professional Studies R EEEEZE XS E) by Beijing
Economic Management College (1t FUAS I & 32 K 1% 2637)
in 1988. Mr. Chen has been a certified public accountant
in China since 1998 and a registered expert consultant in
Jiangsu Province (TE#R A M FAAER) since 2004. He has
over 40 years of experience in the field of accounting. Mr.
Chen is and has been serving as the principal accountant
and managing partner of Jiangsu Wujin Certified Public
Accountants (L& R &E 25 A= F7), a registered PRC
accounting firm in Jiangsu province, since 1995. He also
served as managing partner of Wujin Assets Valuation
Association (& # & = 57 {f = 7 FT) between 1995 and
2000, and is and has been the president of Changzhou
Jieling Investment Management Consultant Limited (% /i
BEREEEEZXMREMRARF) since 2004. Mr. Chen served
as independent director of Jiangsu Future Land between
May 2002 and May 2010 and the independent director of
Jiangsu Shunfeng Photovoltaic Co., Ltd. (T & B®E Y ERHR
AR AF]) between 2009 and May 2012

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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Nie Meisheng (F&#84), aged 73, is our independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Madam Nie first joined the Group when she was appointed
as an independent director of Jiangsu Future Land between
2007 and 2009. She joined us again in November 2012 as
independent non-executive Director. Madam Nie graduated
from Tsinghua University (&% K22) with civil engineering
in 1963, specializing in hydraulic engineering. Madam
Nie served as independent non-executive director of four
companies listed on the Stock Exchange including Neo-
China Land Group (Holdings) Limited (5 f i 2 &= (3%
f%)%E R 2 A]) (Stock code: 563), Powerlong Real Estate
Holdings Limited (B & EFE R AR A 7)) (Stock code:
1238), Road King Infrastructure Limited (B8SHEZAHRE A
Al) (Stock code: 1098) and Ground Properties Company
Limited (BZEHZE B R A 7)) (formerly known as China
Motion Telecom International Limited (7B i@(= B
BRR2A]) (Stock code: 989) since October 2003 (up to
her resignation in July 2010, September 2009, October
2012 and November 2013, respectively). She also served as
independent director of Jiangsu Future Land between 2007
and 2010. Madam Nie is currently the economic counselor
of the people’s government of Jieyang (#8F%), Guangdong
Province and her appointment commenced in December
2006 and chairlady of China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce (FE2B THEMESEHERS) in 2004,
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Zhu Zengjin (%k3g3), aged 50, is our independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, and a member of Audit
Committee. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in November 2012.
He graduated from Nanjing University (R 5 A £) with a
bachelor’s degree in law in 1985 and from Beijing University
(b AE) with an EMBA degree in 2005. Mr. Zhu was the
head of the business department between July 1985 and
August 1998 and the deputy head and partner between
August 1999 and August 2009 of Jiangsu C&T Partners
Law Firm (T#RtE4CECRERIESFT), respectively. He was
also a listing committee member of the GEM Board of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (71 Bl 38 5 & Al 3 ik
¥ EL Z 8) between August 2009 and August 2011. Since
January 2002, Mr. Zhu has been a committee member
of the Jiangsu Province All China Lawyers Association in
Securities Law (L& & 2B ZMBERREFELELZERE
8) and has been recognized as a Well Known Lawyer in
Jiangsu Province (T &R A% 128M) by the association. He has
served as an independent director of two listed companies
in the PRC, namely Ningbo Yunsheng Co., Ltd. (ZB)FaEFH
f&{n B MR ARF]) (Stock code: 600366) and Bank of Nanjing
Co., Ltd. (FRIBITRMHBER QA (Stock code: 601009),
since March 2012 and June 2012, respectively, and three
other non-listed PRC companies,
Co., Ltd. (BEIEZ5CRR (D B R A R]), Institute of Architectural
Design Co., Ltd. (BRMEETFAMD AR AR and Jiangnan
Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (TF 2 B 2%E1T) since
June 2008, September 2009 and June 2012, respectively.

namely, Guolian Trust
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The table below shows certain information in respect of
senior management of the Company:

"L Fie Bif

Name Age Position

e 6.8 42 B aa s

Lu Zhongming Chief Financial Officer

ARIEEE 61 R B AR EL

Qi Boming Vice President, Future Land Holdings
TREF 57 TLERHT K Bl 4

Xu Guoping Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
H=iB 38 TLER TR B A

Huang Chao Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
abZ 43 TR E B A

Shao Lei Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
RN 44 TLERT R A5 BN IR

Qi Xiaoming Assistant President, Jiangsu Future Land

BERBA - 4255 MABRMNUBRE  S2EXSENNK
MEmEE - EXAETIHTRR LEBEHEIZMETER
20014 MNBBAREE » I 20024 (17T & 5 5l BF 75 A 45 128 o
B2010F# @ BEAE—BEATHTNMESNNREERR
o WHR201 FEFIMIER A B4R EL o PE e AR 1999F 1F
FARIEEBRTERETEE  RR2013F2ERRBERE
WS IEEEBEITEM - RIMBAREBR - FELER1998F
22001 F BEI&HRZE (BATMIERMN2001 FEKMIHBAR
AR BBE IR E -
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Lu Zhongming (F££88), aged 42, is our chief financial
officer, overseeing the accounting and finance functions of
the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in 2001 after Jiangsu
Future Land acquired its listing status on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and became the finance general manager
of Jiangsu Future Land in 2002. Mr. Lu has been a director
of Jiangsu Future Land and a vice president of Future Land
Wanbo since 2010. He became vice president of Future
Land Holdings in 2011. Mr. Lu completed his accounting
study from Nanjing Institute of Finance & Economics (F
REFAEEERE) in 1999, and obtained a degree of master
of business administration from Tongji University (REX
£) in 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu served as
deputy head of finance and audit department of Jiangsu
Wauling (acquired by Future Land Holdings in our B-Share
restructuring in 2001) between 1998 and 2001.
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Qi Boming (Ei{A8A), aged 61, is the vice president of Future
Land Holdings. Mr. Qi joined the Group in 2002. He was
the vice president of Jiangsu Future Land between August
2002 and May 2007, and a director between 2003 and
2010. Mr. Qi has been a vice president and a director
of Future Land Holdings since May 2007 and July 2010,
respectively, and has been overseeing the Group's general
administration and information management. Mr. Qi
graduated from Xi'an Military Institute (FHZZFEEE47) in
political studies in 1979. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Qi was a government official and worked in a number of
government authorities in Wujin (2 i), Jiangsu Province
between 1982 and 2002, including serving as head of the
Health Bureau of Wujing between 1999 and 2002.

Xu Guoping (% Bl ), aged 57, is the vice president
and a director of Jiangsu Future Land responsible for
property management. Mr. Xu has been working in the
Group for over 15 years, and during this period he has
gained extensive experience in construction, engineering
and project management. Mr. Xu joined the Group in
1996. Between 1996 and 2001, he served as vice general
manager of Jiangsu Future Land, responsible for project
management in Wujin area. Since 2001, Mr. Xu has
served as vice president and director of Jiangsu Future
Land. Between 2001 and 2004, he was responsible for
the development of several residential property projects in
Changzhou. From 2004 to the present time, Mr. Xu has
been responsible for engineering, cost management and
procurement. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu served as
head of Wujin Process Design Institute (i T Z =17/
between 1993 and 1995, where he was responsible for
the overall business and operation, and gained valuable
experience in management.
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Huang Chao (Z#), aged 38, is the vice president and
general manager of the strategic investment centre of
Jiangsu Future Land. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
2005. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as
the marketing manager of Changzhou Yikang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (F/MEFEREMEFRZE AR D7)
between 1996 to 2002 and the assistant general manager
of Changzhou Zzhijiang Property Co., Ltd. (&M 2 T &
¥ AR 2D 7)) between 2003 and 2005, where he was
responsible for marketing and sales. Mr. Huang obtained
a degree of master of business administration from Tongji
University (BIEAZ) in 2013.

Shao Lei (AF%), aged 43, is the vice president of Jiangsu
Future Land responsible for the design and technical
support for our residential property development business.
Mr. Shao joined the Group in 2005 and became the
general manger of our technical research institute in 2007.
Mr. Shao graduated from Southeast University (3R & A
&) with a bachelor’s degree in architecture in 1994 and
qualified as a registered state-level architect (20014
R— e MESEAR) in 2001, Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Shao served as head of Changzhou Urban Planning
Design Institute (% /Nm#REIZ%EHFT) from 2001 and 2005
responsible for overall business management and gained
valuable experience in construction and management.

Qi Xiaoming (B/N8A), aged 44, is the assistant president
of Jiangsu Future Land. He joined the Group in 2002 and
has assumed various positions within the Group. Mr. Qi
is also the general manager of Changzhou Future Land
Dongsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Qi
graduated from Hefei University of Technology (& /BT
¥ KE) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1992.
Between 1992 and 2001, Mr. Qi held various senior
management positions in Changzhou Passenger Trucks
Manufacturing Plant (& /& BE&ER), including vice office
manager responsible for general office affairs. Mr. Qi
served as office manager of Wujing Branch of Pingan
Insurance (Group) Limited Company of China (FREFZ{#
%A IR A F]) between 2001 and 2002.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the property
development, property investment and property
management business in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2013 by principal activities is set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of income
on page F-6 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMBO0.05 per Share for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: RMBO0.05) to the Shareholders.

The proposed final dividend will be paid in or around the
end of June 2014 after approval by Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the
Company.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and
paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in
Hong Kong dollars will be converted from RMB at the
average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the period
from 19 May 2014 to 23 May 2014.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group’s
results, assets and liabilities for the last five financial years
are set out on page 5 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The net proceeds from the initial public offering of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange on 29 November 2012
(after deducting underwriting fees and related expenses)
amounted to approximately HK$1,975.8 million. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, such net proceeds
were applied in the manner consistent with that set out in
the Company’s prospectus (the “Prospectus”) dated 19
November 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 13.46% (2012:
15.4%) of the Group’s total purchases and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's purchases in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's
sales to its five largest customers accounted for 0.48%
(2012: 0.64%) of the Group’s revenue and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s revenue in the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of
the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out on pages F-8 to F-9 in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “"Companies Law"”), amounted to approximately
RMB1,446.1 million (as at 31 December 2012: RMB1,955.4
million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Zhenhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. MIN Yuansong

Mr. LIU Yuanman

Ms. HUANG Maoli

Mr. TAN Weimin (resigned on 18 October 2013)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LV Xiaoping
Mr. WANG Xiaosong (appointed on 18 October 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Huakang
Ms. NIE Meisheng
Mr. ZHU Zengjin

In accordance with article 16.3 of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. WANG Xiaosong will
retire from office, and being eligible, has offered himself
for re-election as Director at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with articles 16.18 of the articles of
association Mr. MIN Yuansong, Ms. HUANG Maoli and
Mr. LV Xiaoping shall retire from office as Directors and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 10 April 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 39 to 48 of this annual
report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent for the year ended
31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
(save for Mr. WANG Xiaosong) has entered into a service
agreement with the Company on 6 November 2012 for a
term of two years commencing from the date of Listing
and may be terminated in accordance with the respective
terms of the service agreements. Mr. WANG Xiaosong
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of two years commencing from 18 October 2013,
and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of
the appointment letter.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment on 6 November 2012 for
an initial term of two years commencing from 6 November
2012.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
terminable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during or at the end of the year 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing
the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all
remuneration of the directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a pre-ipo share award scheme
(the "Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) and a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in
the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme” and
"Share Option Scheme” below, respectively.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes
in Directors information are set out below.

Mr. TAN Weimin has resigned as executive Director of the
Company, member of the Remuneration Committee, the
Joint Company Secretary and the authorized representative
of the Company (the “Authorized Representative”) with
effect from 18 October 2013.

Mr. WANG Xiaosong has been appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 18 October
2013.

Ms. HUANG Maoli, executive Director of the Company,
has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Joint Company Secretary and the Authorized
Representative with effect from 18 October 2013.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2013, there were no changes to information
which are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed
by Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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(i) REQARMDAERS

EEpS EEME

Name of Director Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company

1EIRE
BREDI®
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

B8 A REHR

Number and
class of Shares

THRE EREEFEMAIIBAD
WANG Zhenhua Founder of a discretionary trust®
BRI EEXmA?

MIN Yuansong Beneficiary of a trust?
BEnfEAAY

Beneficial owner®

2IRm FrEE@mAQ

LIU Yuanman Beneficiary of a trust®
EnfEE A
Beneficial owner®

=/ FrEEm AL

LV Xiaoping Beneficiary of a trust®
EmfiaA®
Beneficial owner®

FBENR SYEHIA RS

WANG Xiaosong
EmEB A
Beneficial owner®
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Interest in a controlled corporation®

4,080,960,000 E i@z 72.00%
4,080,960,000 Ordinary Shares
6,000,000 E i@ 0.11%
6,000,000 Ordinary Shares
2,000,000 @ % 0.03%
2,000,000 Ordinary Shares
3,750,000 &A% 0.07%
3,750,000 Ordinary Shares
1,250,000 i A% 0.02%
1,250,000 Ordinary Shares
9,000,000 Ei@BA% 0.16%
9,000,000 Ordinary Shares
3,000,000 @M% 0.05%
3,000,000 Ordinary Shares
44,100,000 Ei@EAx 0.78%
44,100,000 Ordinary Shares
2,000,000 @ % 0.03%

2,000,000 Ordinary Shares
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(1) FHREFE S £ BHua ShengfEFERIAILA A » iEiBHua Shengfsit
Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited A2 55 A B9 & 17 18
BEF R F)#754,080,960,000/ A A K4 & ©

(2) BEUERREANMEESARG ZEFEIE THOZEA - B
EHSHAFR [ &R AR /TS ] —& -

(3) F BRI % 4 BDynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd 2 BB BITIRAN B &5

A A - MDynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd.#7%544,100,00002 1% 15 o R
FEREBREERRAREEARN L/ E TR FHROBRN 2
2% B IR 8B Dynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd.Ffi#% 4 #944,100,000
& RS A3 7 #96,000,0008% & 15 2 #E 2% ©

(4) B REERARBEEIRN ZRA R 2 =F+ A=+
—REBRZEES - AHFABHESHAFEREROMBER
B tn ST 8l ) —#f o

Notes:

(1) Mr. WANG Zhenhua is the founder of the Hua Sheng
Trust, through which Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore)
Limited held long position in 4,080,960,000 Shares
through its controlled corporations in its capacity as
trustee.

(2) These Directors are grantees under the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme. Please refer to the section headed
“Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme” in this annual report.

(3) Mr. WANG Xiaosong is the beneficial owner of all the
issued share capital of Dynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd., which in
turn held 44,100,000 Shares. Mr. Wang is also interested
in 6,000,000 Shares out of the 44,100,000 Shares held
by Dynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd., by virtue of his interest in
the Share award granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme.

(4) The Shares were vested on these Directors on 31
December 2013 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme. Please refer to the section headed “Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme” in this annual report.

(i) REBEBATRMDHWER (ii)  Interest in shares of associated corporations
HIRFER
EEpR EEME BEHARARE BHBEDL
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Name of associated corporation shareholding
FHRE BmEnm IR EEAR QA 2.07%
WANG Zhenhua Beneficial owner Future Land Holdings Co., Ltd.
FiREE A A REmD EMNESERERLA 0.51%
WANG Zhenhua Interest in a controlled corporation®  Changzhou Wealth Zone Development
Co., Ltd.
Bt &t Note:
0 TIRERARA BN B LA AR A TS 18% I - ik m Mr. WANG Zhenhua held 8.18% equity interest in
MW B EREERATIEAENEEHERER A T6.22% MK Changzhou Future Land Wande Investments Co., Ltd.
- (BN EBILEFRAF), which in turn held 6.22%
interest in Changzhou Wealth Zone Development Co.,
Ltd.
B AT E SN - M2013F 128318 - IEARQAES Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of

REZBITRABRARBREMEEE (ExREFLHE
GBIEXVER) Bfn ~ MR REFEA AR REREFEE
R E S R EIRPIE352GRE AT ENELMA - iR
BRESFRIZAMEANR R LB P EEESAR

the Directors and the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no time during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

HIRFEN

EEpE B EmtE RDEE REH BHBEDL

Approximate

Number and percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest class of Shares shareholding

Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) ZEEA 4,080,960,000 72.00%
Limited™ A
Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) Trustee 4,080,960,000
Limited™ Ordinary Shares

SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. KB A 4,080,960,000 72.00%
AR
SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. Nominee 4,080,960,000
Ordinary Shares

Infinity Fortune Development Limited™ R SZ#EHIAEEZ 4,080,960,000 72.00%
TR
Infinity Fortune Development Limited®”  Interest in a controlled corporation 4,080,960,000
Ordinary Shares

First Priority Group Limited® REZZEHEEE R 4,080,960,000 72.00%
TR
First Priority Group Limited™ Interest in a controlled corporation 4,080,960,000
Ordinary Shares

EREEREBRAF? EREAA 4,080,960,000 72.00%

Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Beneficial owner

Limited?
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(1) Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) LimitedfE/&Hua ShengfzsE (BT
REXEERFERTAUEAREREEAREARL) HZTABZBH
K& ASCTS Capital Pte. Ltd.#A&Infinity Fortune Development Limited
100%H) B2 8 47 A<+ Minfinity Fortune Development Limited# AFirst
Priority Group Limited 100% #) & & 7T A& AN ©

(2) B I8 E B 18 & AR A F) HFirst Priority Group Limited#5 4 100% 8 2 21T A%
PN

Br EXHEFEEIN - R2013F 128310 - EFWTHE - £

MAL (UFEFRARRETEITHRAR) RARR MM
MR D T EBREE SRR RO EXVEEE2 %37 247
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ERBERRERREREGHHNER
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e84 (TwmAREBREKEMER) PEEKHEREEE
Az o
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REZE2013F 128318 LFE » AR A EAT M2 A
EBEE HERBERARQRFEA LHES -

Notes:

(1) Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited, as trustee of the
Hua Sheng Trust, which was established by Mr. WANG Zhenhua as
settlor in favour of his family members, held 100% of the issued
share capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited through its
nominee SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd., which in turn held 100% of the

issued share capital of First Priority Group Limited.

(2) Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is held as to 100% of
its issued share capital by First Priority Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2013,
the Directors were not aware of any persons (who were
not directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No controlling shareholders or its subsidiary had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance, whether for the provision of services or
otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. WANG Zhenhua and Wealth Zone Hong Kong
Investments Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”)
has executed a deed of non-competition through which
they have irrevocably and unconditionally warranted and
undertaken to the Company not to, whether directly or
indirectly or as principal or agent, and whether on its/his
own account or with each other or in conjunction with
or on behalf of any person, firm or company or through
any entities (except in or through any subsidiary of the
Company) engage in businesses that are in competition
with the Group.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing
to the Company of their compliance with the deed of
non-competition for disclosure in this annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance by each of the Controlling
Shareholders with the undertakings in the deed of non-
competition during the year ended 31 December 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any
of the Controlling Shareholders of the undertakings in the
deed of non-competition given by them.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December
2013, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the businesses of the
Group.



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BRERXRS
EFEHR - AGIBRRMEIONNOEES R SR

KETHRANFBIAATR TN ERLFERFAFEMER
5 BE2013F12A3MBIEFE - AEEMETL ETR
AREARAERRENEAHERFHFEWERS -

BXRLBRENR T EBFTE
AATIFR2011FIR 12 B B XA 5B E/ IR D 2R T

El
==}

o

=]

ARBRMERAFEER RN ERE - EEBE
ETERERTBRAR (LEZRMRBAEAEERH
BRERREFLERNESR) AELNERALSHE
) B RRER RO M 2 — B

-

2. BT

RIEEXAAEENRG BEEE - B ALEER
LRifEE (THRABMEBRYE ([BEAL]) BHE
ARG - AMER AT 2 HEEITRA319% < ZRBE
HEBREERATMNIER  AAAAETATHAR
IR ZE E R Wellink Global (PTC) Limited & Dynasty
Snow (PTC) Ltd. ([ZFEA]) 174 $£181,050,000
R TR - B Z=2013F 128310 BEATERKRT
£ £181,050,000 8% 0 (TE&@AR D) ©

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party
transactions set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group had not entered into any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which
are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Award scheme on
12 September 2011.

1. Objective

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme to recognize the contribution of certain
of our employees and officers, especially those
whom we consider have contributed to the early
development and growth of the Group, and to
align their interests with those of the Shareholders.

2. Implementation

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, a
total of current and former employees, officers
and business partners of the Group (the “Selected
Persons”) were awarded Shares representing
approximately 3.19% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. At the direction of Wealth
Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited, the Company
issued at nominal value a total of 181,050,000 new
Shares to Wellink Global (PTC) Limited and Dynasty
Snow (PTC) Ltd. (the “Trustees”), for the benefit
of the Selected Persons. As of 31 December 2013,
a total of 181,050,000 Shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) were granted to the Selected Persons.
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Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The vesting principles of the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme are summarized as follows:

Note:

(M

The Selected Persons are not entitled to
exercise or enjoy the rights to, or to transfer
the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of
the Awarded Shares.

Vesting period for a Selected Person is
determined based on his or her (i) performance
appraisal; (i) length of service; and (iii) seniority
(if applicable).

The Awarded Shares granted to any
particular Selected Person will vest in four
equal tranches on 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015 and 2016 (Note 1), respectively.

The first vesting date for all the relevant
Selected Persons was 31 December 2013
(Note 1).

The Selected Persons are not required to pay
any consideration for the Awarded Shares
for the purpose of vesting.

Vesting period of a Selected Person is
subject to postponement in the event of
unsatisfactory work performance based on
his or her annual performance appraisal (if
applicable).

Prior to vesting, the Selected Persons are not
entitled to the voting rights to the Awarded
Shares.

All dividends declared and paid in respect
of the Awarded Shares shall be held by the
Trustees for the benefit of the respective
Selected Person pending vesting.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Shareholders dated
30 June 2012, the vesting period of the Awarded Shares
awarded under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme was
amended from four years from 2012 to 2015 to four
years from 2013 to 2016.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board may determine at an exercise price
determined to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive
directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group.

B RZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited

— =% %k 2013 Annual Report

63



64

EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BATREMNBRE

ARRRABEABRE AR E AT EALEARZS
BREREREN —AMOBHOXIHERN TARA
0.10/8 T FIRE AR L ERENR(ER - BRER
BREERE RO EAEN - ZFHAMEME
R TFRE - BHEMIR2 R H AR 1 fB I
& - RREBIRMERT S MR 8B AT D RIE2 R
BRI EORNEE - ERANRNBEARK
NEMZAEEN —FEURETEEHR - BEER
BE—AMOBERRBRAZOXEHBEINA - WK
HEE AR ARV RE R R A A HER S - BIRA
BN MIEREL o

RTEE LR

R IR AR AR 5T Bl e AN 2 AT {A] H 4t BR 4 5 81 AT B
REMEREMIEORNDEE (BEERLEETH
EATES M ARITER BB KR G) ERAH
TERB ETHSE BB HITRO B8 (BT RE
REEEEETEM A ERTHNTMRG) 10%
(& RIBERERR) » B1566,800,0000% /%% ([318 £
PRI -

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report

Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted
and accepted by the grantee and to have taken
effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly
signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$0.10 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances
be refundable. Any offer to grant an option to
subscribe for Shares may be accepted in respect
of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect
of a board lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such
number is clearly stated in the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the option. To
the extent that the offer to grant an option is not
accepted by any prescribed acceptance date, it shall
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted (including Shares
in respect of which options, whether exercised or
still outstanding, have already been granted) under
the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue on the date of Listing (but taking
no account of any Shares which may be issued
under the exercise of the Over-allotment Option
(as defined in the Prospectus)), being 566,800,000
Shares (the “Scheme Limit”).
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Maximum number of options to any one
individual

The total number of Shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, outstanding options
and Shares which were the subject of options
which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other scheme
of the Company but subsequently cancelled (the
“Cancelled Shares”) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for
the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates is required to
be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options).
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Restrictions on the times of grant of
options

A grant of options may not be made after a price
sensitive event has occurred or a price sensitive
matter has been the subject of a decision until such
price sensitive information has been announced.
In particular, no options may be granted during
the period commencing one month immediately
preceding the earlier of (i) the date of the Board
meeting; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to
publish an announcement of the results for any
year, or half-year, or quarterly or other interim
period and ending on the date of actual publication
of the results announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge,
mortgage, encumber or create any interest (legal
or beneficial) in favour of any third party over or
in relation to any option or attempt so to do (save
that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose
name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme may be registered). Any breach
of the foregoing shall entitle the Company to
cancel any outstanding options or any part thereof
granted to such Grantee.

Time of exercise of option and duration
of the Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
after the date upon which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of
10 years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted. No option may be granted more
than 10 years after the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme by the then sole Shareholder
of the Company (the “Adoption Date”). Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the Adoption Date.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options,
provided that the total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of Listing.
The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules,
provided that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time.

As at 31 December 2013, no option under the
Share Option Scheme has been granted by the
Company.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
made charitable and other donations of approximately
RMB4.2 million (2012: RMB4.3 million).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There is no material post balance sheet event undertaken
by the Company or by the Group after 31 December 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with
the management and external auditor the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Group successfully issued a tranche of five-year
US$200 million 10.25% senior notes and a tranche
of three-year RMB1.5 billion 9.75% senior notes (the
“Notes”) in January and April 2013, respectively, pursuant
to which the Company will make an offer to repurchase all
outstanding Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal amount of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the repurchase date,
upon the occurrence of, among other things, the Permitted
Holders (defined below) are the beneficial owners of
less than 50.1% of the total voting power of the voting
stock of the Company accompanied by a rating decline.
Such requirements as to the maintenance of the level of
ownership in and composition of the members of the
Board result in the disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules.

In this paragraph, “Permitted Holders” means any or all of
the following:

(i) Mr. Wang Zhenhua;

(i) any affiliate of Mr. Wang Zhenhua;

(i) the trust of Mr. Wang Zhenhua or the legal
representative thereof; and

(iv) any legal person both the capital stock and the
voting stock of which (or in the case of a trust, the
beneficial interests in which) are owned 80% or
more by Mr. Wang Zhenhua or any of his affiliates.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance practices. The Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2013 with deviation from code provision
A.2.1 which has already been stated in the Corporate
Governance Report in this annual report. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 71 to 86 of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 16 May 2014 to Wednesday, 21 May 2014,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity
of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday, 21 May
2014. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 15 May 2014.

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed
final dividend is Thursday, 29 May 2014. In order to
determine the rights of Shareholders entitled to receive
the proposed final dividend, which is subject to the
approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will also be closed
from Tuesday, 27 May 2014 to Thursday, 29 May 2014,
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 26 May 2014.

19 % B Z KRB BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report

69




EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RHARNBRERE

REARFAIAFANEMRREEHAA  BEANFHREH -
RRABEBEITRABEDED25% (BRZPIRTERBE LT
BAPTHAENREARIHRBEDLL) —ERAREH

B ED

BEBOKESHMESMNEZ2013F12A318LEFE—
BETADRAZEE -

ROFKEEFMEBMBREERFIBFAE LRIE
HEERURBEERSE FHEBREIRKEGTME
BARARBZBRARER  BREERRBFAE LR

2o

AEEGD

EBEER

70

FIRESRE
E& - 2014FE3H17H

i 3 B 2R G PR 2 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

ZZ— =443 2013 Annual Report

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital, being the prescribed
minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held
by the public at all times as of the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. WANG Zhenhua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save for the
deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Zhenhua, Mr. MIN Yuansong, Mr. LIU
Yuanman and Ms. HUANG Maoli, two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LV Xiaoping and Mr. WANG
Xiaosong, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHEN Huakang, Ms. NIE Meisheng and Mr. ZHU
Zengjin. The biographies of the Directors are set out under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all
times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, listed issuers are
required to appoint independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board by 31
December 2012. The Company has three independent
non-executive Directors currently representing one-third of
the Board and therefore the Company has complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Under code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed
issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy by
1 September 2013. The Company has adopted a board
diversity policy and therefore complied with this code
provision. A summary of the board diversity policy is set
out under “Board Committees — Nomination Committee”
below.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his/
her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.
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Mr. WANG Xiaosong is the son of Mr. WANG Zhenhua, the
executive Director, chief executive officer and Controlling
Shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal
relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive directors are invited to serve on
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to
disclose to the issuer the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and an indication of
the time involved, all the Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments and any change to the Company in a
timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Mr. WANG Xiaosong, as a newly appointed Director,
is provided with necessary induction and information
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide all Directors with updates on latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements from time to time. The
Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Joint Company Secretaries from time to time
update and provide written training materials relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a Director and all
the Directors study such materials, and they are asked to
submit a signed training record to the Company on an
annual basis.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and performed by different individuals. Under the current
organization structure of the Company, Mr. WANG
Zhenhua is our Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. With extensive experience in the property
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of
the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured
by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals.
The Board currently comprises four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Save for Mr. WANG Xiaosong, the non-executive Director,
each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 6 November 2012 for a term of two years commencing
from the date of Listing and may be terminated in
accordance with the respective terms of the service
agreements.

Mr. WANG Xiaosong has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of two
years commencing from 18 October 2013, and may be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company on
6 November 2012, for an initial term of two years
commencing from 6 November 2012.

None of the Directors has a service agreement which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for
election by Shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment and new Directors appointed
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by Shareholders at the next following AGM of
the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are set out in the Company's
articles of association. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession
planning of Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly, at least four times a year, and at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For
other Board and committee meetings,
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board
papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
Joint Company Secretaries with copies circulated to all

reasonable notice

Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after the date on which the meeting was held. The
minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
Directors.
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REBZE2013F12A31BIEFE EFLRTINEETE For the year ended 31 December 2013, 9 Board meetings
EREESHREZSEEANBEAEIRTER were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at
these meetings is set out in the table below:

ma}

BHERE T HERE

Attended/

EE Directors Eligible to attend
FHRESLE Mr. WANG Zhenhua 9/9
REMLEE Mr. MIN Yuansong 9/9
2JRm Mr. LIU Yuanman 9/9
BARSE (R2013F10H18H Mr. TAN Weimin (resigned as an 8/8

FEHTER) executive Director on 18 October 2013)
=mAF L L Ms. HUANG Maoli 9/9

BNESE A Mr. LV Xiaoping 9/9
TRENEE (R2013F10418H Mr. WANG Xiaosong (appointed as a non-executive 11

L (TRIHHTEE) Director on 18 October 2013)
PREEFRSE A& Mr. CHEN Huakang 9/9
EFEZL Ms. NIE Meisheng 9/9
RIGHE S & Mr. ZHU Zengjin 9/9
ETRFERZINEESSR Model Code for Securities Transactions
AARIEHM ETARRIK e +AERETR  (FREEBE The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
FETESCGZEBETER - KR EESIEFLEETEN in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
% BSEEWRENREZRE2013F12A318 EFERETZ conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
AE<p Al o made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each of the

Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

RBZE2013F12A31BIEFE - ARATFERMN—ENE During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
BAT?ETH'JFEJTTEE’MEEJEﬁﬁ# XS ERsr=rAl - BA has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
ReJREA AR SEERBENARFAREERZEH employees’ securities transactions on terms no less
EE - exacting than the standards set out in the Model Code
for compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of inside information of the Company in

respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
material transactions (in

particular those that may involve conflict of interests),

and risk management systems,

financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense
and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Nomination Committee
which include:

(i) to develop, review and implement the Company’s
policy and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and directors;
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(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report; and

(vi) to develop, review and monitor the implementation
of the Shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure its effectiveness, and make recommendation
to the Board where appropriate to enhance
Shareholders’ relationship with the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
updated the compliance manuals on notifiable transactions
and price sensitive information (inside information)
in accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for
its employees to report unpublished price sensitive
information (inside information) to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the
Company’s continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. ZHU Zengjin (chairman), Ms. NIE
Meisheng and Mr. MIN Yuansong, the majority of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

- to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations regarding any
proposed changes;

- to identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors;

- to make recommendations to the Board on
appointment or re-appointment of and succession
planning for Directors; and

- to assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors.
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The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the
duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
decision. Their written terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

With a view to enhancing Board effectiveness and
corporate governance, the Board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy with
measurable objectives. The Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance and blend of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of
candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities essential to the
Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will
review such measurable objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 2 meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held and the attendance
record of the Nomination Committee members is set out in
the table below:

BHERE, HERE
= Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
RIGHE S & Mr. ZHU Zengjin 2/2
migER T Ms. NIE Meisheng 2/2
MEMLEAE Mr. MIN Yuansong 2/2

REESETEBELFATESNBELIEREEREIESN
BEEH-

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and considered
the re-appointment of the retiring Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. ZHU Zengjin (chairman), Ms. NIE Meisheng and
Ms. HUANG Maoli, the majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors. Ms. HUANG Maoli
appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee
on 18 October 2013, in place of Mr. TAN Weimin who has
ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 18 October 2013.

has been

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management/determining remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions. Their
written terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BHE2013F12A31BILFE - HHEESERT2RGER For the year ended 31 December 2013, 2 meetings of the
FTMEZEE K ERNHERSEEHN TE Remuneration Committee were held and the attendance
record of the Remuneration Committee members is set out
in the table below:
EHERE WHERE
Attended/
= Directors Eligible to attend
RIGHE ST Mr. ZHU Zengjin 2/2
EIGELZ LT Ms. NIE Meisheng 2/2
FikAZ LT (R2013F 10/ 18H Ms. HUANG Maoli (appointed as member of -
B TAFNZE K E) Remuneration Committee on 18 October 2013)
BEAREE (R20137F10718H Mr. TAN Weimin (resigned as member of 2/2
FHEEWZE 2 E) Remuneration Committee on 18 October 2013)
HNEE e TENEAEZETAIERITESENESETRL The Remuneration Committee reviewed the appointment
{EHR - letter and terms of office of Mr. WANG Xiaosong in

FHMZEeRmMRIARAEETRSMNEEENH MK
R URERNATEESREREEENFHESHERAES
SRHER -

relation to his appointment as non-executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management
of the Company, and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration

band (RMB’000)

Details of the remuneration by band of the six members
of the senior management of the Company, whose
biographies are set out on pages 46 to 48 of this annual
report, for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
below:

BAEE
Number of individual

2,000 to 3,000
3,000 to 4,000

2,000 to 3,000
3,000 to 4,000

BEREES
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HERBBEFNERELRERY  BEARAES
AHRESERRBAE T MM ER - BT ERMER - 15
JIREREERLTR
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. CHEN Huakang
(chairman), Ms. NIE Meisheng and Mr. ZHU Zengjin. The
main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

- to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the internal audit division or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

- to review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and

- to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures, including the adequacy of
the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, 3 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held and the attendance record
of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table

below:
EHRERE, WHERE
EE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
PREEFR S Mr. CHEN Huakang 3/3
mgER T Ms. NIE Meisheng 3/3
RIGHESEE Mr. ZHU Zengjin 3/3

ERZESENTUBRBRRS  ARERF  REEE (2
RARBEEH RMBERBETANER BTEENL
B BIRELREERERR)  AREERGIBIE - A
MEREIMNEREE - EFQURRHELZZEGHEE - X
£ - BHESREE RSN AZ BRI 12 H AV (R 23 -

WETERTARRAREFRRARMREREN R RAE
B ARBINERBEI T RE ARSI RN ZEBET
EMEABRROZBRRE - AR REEFHTH  ERE
AARETARMERER  AEERECEETELERN
TETRIBHRER - ELI A 88 E RO B 3 AT S AN 1 B A Uk A it

ESFRAVBBRRNVYBRREM

FEPHO HARIAQRFTHZE2013F12A318EFERN
HEREANBE  UEEQA TR AQATRAEENSENR
ARAREBMOEBERBELR -

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting
system, compliance procedures, internal control (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions),
risk management systems and processes and the
re-appointment of the external auditor. The Board had not
deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

They also reviewed interim and final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as
the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in the course of
audit. There are proper arrangements for employees, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters.
Their written terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and
cash flows.
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The management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page F-1 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role
in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.
The major tasks of the internal audit department are
reviewing the financial conditions and internal control of
the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular
basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and considered
the internal control system to be effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Annual audit and interim review fees of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 payable to the external
auditor are approximately RMB3.2 million. In addition,
there are fees of approximately RMBO0.3 million for non-
audit services related to tax consultation incurred in 2013.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. HUANG Maoli,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed.

the Joint Company Secretary,

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong
Kong laws, the Company also engages Ms. MOK Ming
Wai, director of KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company
secretarial services provider), as its Joint Company Secretary
to assist Ms. HUANG Maoli to discharge her duties as
company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate
contact person at the Company is Ms. HUANG Maoli, the
executive Director and Joint Company Secretary.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Ms. HUANG Maoli
and Ms. MOK Ming Wai have undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors
to make informed investment decisions.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company, and the chairmen of the
Board Committees of the Company will attend the AGMs
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor
of the Company will also attend the AGMs to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a Shareholders’
establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and its Shareholders and
maintains a website at www.futureholdings.com.cn,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

communication policy which aims at

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at Shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in a timely manner after each
Shareholder meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration
at a general meeting according to the Companies
Ordinance and the Company’s articles of association. As
regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board could send their
enquiries to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 8th Floor, Gloucester Tower, 15
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong (email address:
ir@futureholdings.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no
significant change in constitutional documents of the
Company.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUTURE LAND DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Future Land Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages F-3 to F-150, which comprise the
consolidated and company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of income, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BEARAE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20134128318 As at 31 December 2013

®12H31H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
BisE ARBTT ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME - BEMRKRE Property, plant and equipment 7 116,009 117,074
B Investment properties 8 3,307,000 3,105,600
m A E Intangible assets 9 9,836 7,267
REEE N B NIRE Investments in associates 10 43,468 229,890
RAEETENE Investment in a joint venture 11 10,000 -
BIETEHEE Deferred income tax assets 25 499,738 361,193
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 12 221,187 181,187
—+ it (s F Land use rights 13 367,248 367,248
Hpth U 308 Other receivables 16 198,538 -
4,773,024 4,369,459
RBEE Current assets
HE B FRIE Prepayments for leasehold land 14 3,285,498 4,313,847
EIFEREREEME Properties held or under development
for sale 15 28,728,964 24,493,752
B 5 & E A R GRIE A Trade and other receivables and
SEENE O] prepayments 16 2,112,831 1,666,266
ZPREIIR S Restricted cash 18 886,180 1,148,089
BEMBEESEY Cash and cash equivalents 18 7,411,713 4,852,130
42,425,186 36,474,084
EERH Total assets 47,198,210 40,843,543
FEERER OWNERS’ EQUITY
RARESZEE ARG Capital and reserves attributable to
BRAR #iE equity holders of the Company
BT R Issued and fully paid capital 19 4,617 4,617
G Reserves 21 6,717,031 5,746,486
6,721,648 5,751,103
FEERER Non-controlling interests 3,876,311 2,643,924
RSB Total equity 10,597,959 8,395,027

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-3
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BHEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20134128318 As at 31 December 2013

®W12H31H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
BisE AR¥TT AREETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
=E LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 22 11,715,075 4,509,670
EIEFAEHRARE Deferred income tax liabilities 25 432,922 402,872
12,147,997 4,912,542
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 ME M ER A Trade and other payables 24 10,368,476 9,597,029
TEEMEBWFIE Advances from pre-sale of properties 23 10,235,042 11,663,869
BNERFTIS T B (& Current income tax liabilities 1,673,306 1,143,835
B Borrowings 22 2,174,501 5,130,436
FETRR 2. Dividends payable 929 805
24,452,254 27,535,974
BEH%E Total liabilities 36,600,251 32,448,516
EankaEEE Total equity and liabilities 47,198,210 40,843,543
RBEEZRE Net current assets 17,972,932 8,938,110
EELERTHEAR Total assets less current liabilities 22,745,956 13,307,569
BEF-NMBEZEF150EMMFERMBREN—E5 o The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of
these financial statements.
Wang Zhenhua Huang Maoli
FiRE EHXF
Director Director
EFE EFE

F-4 | $#3E%EZERER AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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EAEEERER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

20134128318 As at 31 December 2013

®12H31H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
BisE AR¥TT ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
R RRIHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 17 450,012 424,271
RBEE Current assets
B 5 N A E U IR Trade and other receivables 16 3,834,468 718,417
BEeMREEED Cash and cash equivalents 18 7,497 895,307
3,841,965 1,613,724
BEEAH Total assets 4,291,977 2,037,995
B ERER OWNERS’ EQUITY
AATEREFEA Capital and reserves attributable to
BB R#E equity holders of the Company
BT KRB Issued and fully paid capital 19 4,617 4,617
s Reserves 21 1,536,108 2,019,589
ERBE Total equity 1,540,725 2,024,206
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BN Borrowings 22 2,667,075 -
RBEE Current liabilities
B S E A E 5B Trade and other payables 24 84,177 13,789
BEHEEE Total liabilities 2,751,252 13,789
EEREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 4,291,977 2,037,995
REBEEEE Net current assets 3,757,788 1,599,935
EELAERTHARE Total assets less current liabilities 4,207,800 2,024,206
BEF-NMBEZEEF1S50EMMFEAMBREN—5 o The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of
these financial statements.
Wang Zhenhua Huang Maoli
FiRE HEF
Director Director
Ea EE

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

HBZ1283181LEE
Year ended 31 December
2013% 20124
2013 2012
BisE AR¥TT AREETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue 26 20,771,255 17,517,266
SHE AR Cost of sales 28 (16,088,038) (13,587,371)
EX Gross profit 4,683,217 3,929,895
BEWMEARBEKS Fair value gains on investment properties 8 37,839 31,086
$HE RN & SHRA Selling and marketing costs 28 (592,032) (474,921)
ITERF Administrative expenses 28 (680,028) (569,883)
HAb A Other income 27 151,674 9,475
HibFAS Other expenses 27 (4,152) (4,347)
Hib iz — 558 Other gains — net 27 46,270 13,626
mEFE Operating profit 3,642,788 2,934,931
U Finance income 29 121,793 48,052
B E AR Finance costs 29 (516,693) (159,712)
MERAE — FHE Finance costs — net (394,900) (111,660)
FE(HEEE N R ELE Share of results of an associated company 10 (11,422) (5,110)
R AT 15 54 AT 7 Profit before income tax 3,236,466 2,818,161
ey Income tax expense 31 (1,519,329) (1,232,777)
FEFME Profit for the year 1,717,137 1,585,384
EEEEFE - Attributable to:
RARERFTEA Equity holders of the Company 981,262 930,819
IEIE R = Non-controlling interests 735,875 654,565
1,717,137 1,585,384
BRATESTEAENG Earnings per share for profit attributable
FENZRER to equity holders of the Company
— ERE#EE - Basic and diluted 32 RMBO0.17 RMBO.21
RE Dividends 33 283,400 283,400

FFRTEZFF150ENKMEAMEREN—35 ©
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The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of
these financial statements.



BofzEKRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

HBZ1283181LEE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
BisE AR¥TT AREETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
EERHE Profit for the year 1,717,137 1,585,384
Hip 2 mEk = Other comprehensive income - -
FEXEWEALE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,717,137 1,585,384
EhHEFE2ERRAE Attributable to:

ARFIERIFEA Equity holders of the Company 981,262 930,819
SRR A Non-controlling interests 735,875 654,565
1,717,137 1,585,384

FF-1BEEFF-150BMM T AT BHIREN—EH © The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of

these financial statements.
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EHEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

RARERRE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Bx ROVEE Efbfits REEA it FERER ERlE
Share Share Other Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Sub-total interests equity
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(HzE19) (HE21) (HsE21) (HzE21)
(Note 19) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 21)
ROBEIR1ANES Balance at 1 January 2013 4,617 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,961,347 5,751,103 2,643,924 8,395,027
2EKE Comprehensive income
EENE Profit for the year - - - 981,262 981,262 735,875 1,717,137
ek e Other comprehensive income = = = - - - R
ENGEE Total comprehensive income - - - 981,262 981,262 735,875 1,117,137
REFAETHRS Transactions with owners
SEARERRAMERS  Capital injections from
non-controlling interests - - - - - 809,000 809,000
ERDAERERNRNZEE Pre-IPO share award scheme
(Pi£20) (Note 20)
-REEERKER - value of current employee
services - - 25741 - 25,741 - 25741
0MEREHE (M7#33) 2012 final dividend (Note 33) - (283,400) - - (283,400) - (283,400)
FRAKRE Dividends of subsidiaries - - - - - (65,546) (65,546)
FEANRARAEAE  Total contributions by and
distributions to owners - (283,400) 25,741 - (257,659) 743,454 485,795
pEEI e Gain from acquisition of
FREBIMER additional interest in a
FEH M subsidiary from non-controlling
(fiizF40) interests (Note 40) - - 246,942 - 246,942 (246,942) -
EERERBIEEEAN  Total transactions with owners,
RHBE recognized directly in equity - (283,400) 272,683 - (10,717) 496,512 485,795
R2013F128310 /48  Balance at 31 December 2013 4,617 1,679,240 95,182 4,942,609 6,721,648 3,876,311 10,597,959

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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EHEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

KRARERE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R RiaE Efthfe REEA it FERER BRAE
Share Share Other Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Sub-total interests equity
ARETIT  ARBTR  AR¥TR  ARETR  ARETx ARETT  ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(HzE19) (HE21) (HsE21) (Mx21)
(Note 19) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 21)
RO1NE1A1ANES Balance at 1 January 2012 3,466 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,179,816 2,022,133 5,201,949
2EKE Comprehensive income
EEAE Profit for the year - - - 930,819 930,819 654,565 1,585,384
ek e Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
ENGEE Total comprehensive income - - - 930,819 930,819 654,565 1,585,384
REFAETHRS Transactions with owners
BrLEk (z19) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 19) 1,151 1,602,620 - - 1,603,771 - 1,603,771
ERDAERERNRNZEE Pre-IPO share award scheme
(Hf3t20) (Note 20)
-REEERKER - value of current employee
services - - 36,697 - 36,697 - 36,697
FRARE Dividends of subsidiaries - - - - - (32,774) (32,774
FEANRARAEAE  Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 1,151 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,640,468 (32,774) 1,607,694
R20125128310 48  Balance at 31 December 2012 4,617 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,901,347 5,751,103 2,643,924 8,395,027

FF-11BEZEFEF- 15080 AT SHREN—

L2

The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of

these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHZE2013%12 831 H [L4E/E For the year ended 31 December 2013

BZ12A310LFE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
i AR®TT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RESEE Operating activities
weER) (FTA),/ B3R E Cash (used in)/generated from operations 35 (918,758) 3,161,944
2R A Interest paid (1,241,203) (1,023,291)
AR B AT1E PRC income tax paid (518,158) (561,268)
BN E L HIEED PRC land appreciation tax paid (589,730) (514,816)
KR (FTA) PSR E€F% Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (3,267,849) 1,062,569
RETH Investing activities
NEEEE Additions of investment properties (163,561) (551,308)
NEWME - BENMRE Additions of property, plant and equipment (34,431) (20,925)
FEDE  BENMBREFTSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 35 15,580 835
,J\\EEE/EF Additions of intangible assets 9 (4,987) (3,457)
REEBENRE Investment in a joint venture 11 (10,000) -
RN T B N O = R Capital reduction from an associate 10 175,000 -
WEIHEESmEE Acquisition of available-for-sale
financial assets 12 (40,000) (25,187)
HETFRR - HKIERAEEIRE Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed 38 89,843 -
2 U A% 8 Dividends received 27 6,605 5,042
2 HF B Interest received 29 121,793 48,052
BREEERE,(FiA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
REeFHE investing activities 155,842 (546,948)
RMEEE Financing activities
BB RIE Proceeds from borrowings 15,652,864 6,249,311
fﬂ%f’ﬁmﬁfﬁﬁ%%’(lﬁ Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 2,691,503 -
EE%TK Repayments of borrowings (14,006,687) (7,475,768)
R B R B AR R Increase in restricted cash relating to
PR I35 4 4840 financing activities 18 371,815 (229,589)
MARARERFFE AZTRE Dividends paid to equity holders of
the Company (283,400) -
BEZZECE RN o Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (65,422) (32,774)
FEIE IR Tx)\E’JﬁZIK% Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 809,000 -
N AR 1T R K Advance from non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary 555,580 -
BITE B FTISFE Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 19 = 1,668,936
AR R B TR AN Payments of share issuance costs 19 - (65,165)
BETETESHRESEE Net cash generated from financing
activities 5,725,253 114,951
RENMBESEYEMTE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,613,246 630,572
FONRENBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 4,852,130 4,221,558
ReEMRSZEYELEX Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents 29 (53,663) -
FRNESHNRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 18 7,411,713 4,852,130

FF11TEZEFHF-1

SOEMMERAMBHRERN—D -

these financial statements.
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The notes on pages F-11 to F-150 are an integral part of
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Future Land Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 23 April 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-
1112, Cayman Islands.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are property
development and property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Company’s parent company is Wealth Zone Hong
Kong Investments Limited (“Wealth Zone Hong
Kong”) and the Company’s ultimate holding
company is First Priority Group Limited, both of
which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr.
Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang” or the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

To prepare for the initial listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Group has undertaken a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) pursuant to which the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
19 November 2012.

The Company’s shares began to list on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 29 November 2012
(the "Listing"”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless
otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements set out
on pages F-3 to F-150 have been approved and
authorized for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company on 17 March 2014.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

The Reorganisation for the Listing referred to in
Note 1 above involved combination of a number
of entities that were under the common control of
the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Wang, and was
accounted for using merger accounting. The net
assets of these entities were consolidated using
the existing book values from the Controlling
Shareholder’s perspective. The results were
combined from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities first came
under the common control, where this was at a
later date, regardless of the date the Group took
actual ownership. No amount was recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time the Reorganisation
took place.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5 below.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i) New standards and amendments
adopted by the Group in 2013

The following new standards and
amendments to existing standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2013 and are
relevant to the Group’s operations.

. HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation
of Financial Statements” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012). The main change
resulting from the amendment
is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) on
the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013). The amendment
requires new disclosure requirements
which focus on quantitative
information about recognised
financial instruments that are
offset in the statement of financial
position, as well as those recognised
financial instruments that are
subject to master netting or similar
arrangements irrespective of whether
they are offset.

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-13
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i)

New standards and amendments
adopted by the Group in 2013 (Cont’d)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013). The standard builds
on existing principles by identifying
the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an
entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of
the parent company. The standard
provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess.

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) “Separate
Financial Statements” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013). The standard
includes the provisions on separate
financial statements that are left
after the control provisions of HKAS
27 have been included in the new
HKFRS 10.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i) New standards and amendments
adopted by the Group in 2013 (Cont’d)

° HKFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements”
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2013). The standard is a more
realistic reflection of joint
arrangements by focusing on
the rights and obligations of the
arrangement rather than its legal
form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and
joint ventures. Joint operations arise
where a joint operator has rights to
the assets and obligations relating
to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Joint ventures arise where the joint
operator has rights to the net assets
of the arrangement and hence equity
accounts for its interest. Proportional
consolidation of joint ventures is no
longer allowed.

. HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) “Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures”
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2013). The standard includes the
requirements for joint ventures,
as well as associates, to be equity
accounted following the issue of
HKFRS 11.

. HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013). The standard includes
the disclosure requirements for all
forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles.

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-15
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i)

New standards and amendments
adopted by the Group in 2013 (Cont’d)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2013). The standard aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs.
The requirements do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should
be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other
standards within HKFRSs.

HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12 (Amendments)
“Transition Guidance” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013). These amendments
provide additional transition relief
to HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted
comparative information to only the
preceding comparative period. For
disclosures related to unconsolidated
structured entities, the amendments
remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods
before HKFRS 12 is first applied.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i) New standards and amendments
adopted by the Group in 2013 (Cont’d)

o Annual improvements 2011 — These
annual improvements address six
issues in the 2009-2011 reporting
cycle. They include changes to
the following standards which are
relevant to the Group’s operations:

HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”

HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”

HKAS 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting”

° Annual improvement 2012 -
Amendment to HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”. This amendment is a
clarification that there is no change
in measurement requirements for
short-term receivables and payables
when the effect of not discounting is
immaterial:

The adoption of the above new standards
and amendments and other newly effective
HKFRSs starting from 1 January 2013 did
not give rise to any significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial
position for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(ii)

New standards,amendments and
interpretations that are required to be
adopted by the Group after 2013

Certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations of HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective for the
annual period beginning on 1 January 2013.
Those that are relevant to the Group’'s
operations are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for
annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015)
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets (effective for
(Amendment)  annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014)
HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

Financial Instruments Presentation
on Asset and Liability offsetting
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

Consolidation for Investment Entities
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

Amendment to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, 12
and HKAS 27

Financial Instruments (effective for
annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014)

Amendment to
HKAS 39
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(ii) New standards,amendments and
interpretations that are required to be
adopted by the Group after 2013 (Cont’d)

Annual The amendments include changes
improvements  from the 2010-2012 cycle of the
2012 annual improvements project

that affect 7 standards: HKFRS 2
"Share-based Payment”, HKFRS 3
"Business Combinations”, HKFRS
8 "Operating Segments”, the
basis for conclusion on HKFRS
13 “Fair Value Measurement”,
HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”, HKAS 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” and HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets”. (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014)

Annual The amendments include changes
improvements ~ from the 2011-2013 cycle
2013 of the annual improvements

project that affect 4 standards:
HKFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards”, HKFRS 3 "Business
Combinations”, HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement” and HKAS 40
“Investment Property”. (effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2014)
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2 EAREHEREE @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 REEXE (F) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(i) FKEBR2013FE# K BRABFETER (i)  New standards,amendments and
55T RZ2EE (2) interpretations that are required to be
adopted by the Group after 2013 (Cont’d)
20134 - AEEWEREFERMAD \MER The Group has not early adopted any new
AR FETER]  (EFT R RE - KEE standards, amendments and interpretations
ERTE L ERaT R - BAT R BN E - that have been issued but are not effective
I B NFEEARN E AR S H AR ER 7 K& in 2013. The Group is in the process of
EERVBRAEEFNEAZE - making an assessment on the impact of

these new standards, amendments and
interpretations and does not anticipate that
the adoption when they become effective
will result in any material impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial

position.

2.2 FARTFE 2.2 Subsidiaries

= 2.2.1 &4 2.2.1 Consolidation
FRARIEAEERA BTN —HEE (BEEEBLE A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
)  BAEBRELE—HER EBma gk aEE entity) over which the Group has control. The
SR OISR A G N REEHZBRITERIMPE Group controls an entity when the Group is
ZERRE - G AREBEHZEE - TARINE exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
FIEEREAEE s BREZAAHAR - TARIEE its involvement with the entity and has the ability
HliER IEE BRBEZRIEEHAR - to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.
EERNAFMRS £HMEEEAR MR ZME Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
2T ETUHE BRRNEENAREARSHME expenses on transactions between group companies
AEEFMEIB I T IALE - FTRAINEFERDIR are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
EEEHNE) - URREREBFREMAERG - inter-company transactions that are recognised in

assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.
FRARIMEBERETPREEREZD NG HEE Non-controlling interests in the results and
BERXR AHFIBER At 2EKREREEHIERE equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
BRPEFIR o the consolidated statement of financial position,

consolidated statement of income, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
as described below to account for business
combinations, except for the Reorganisation
which had been accounted for as stated in
Note 2.1 above.

Under the acquisition method of accounting,
the consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred also includes
the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in consolidated statement of
income.
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2.2

2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in
consolidated statement of income or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held
equity interest measured is less than the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
of the subsidiary acquired as in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of income.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the other owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(iii)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment (Note 17). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2.2

2.2.2

2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Separate financial statements (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates or associated companies are all entities
over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
and other reserve movements of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Associates (Cont'd)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income, and its share of post-
acquisition movement in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. The Group determines at
each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in
the consolidated statement of income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.
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2.4

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as Mr.
Wang who makes strategic decisions.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
CODM that are used to make strategic decisions.



B Ot AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

2 EBEAESHHEEME @)
2.6 HMEmE
() DEREIEK
REEMSERPBHREFMIGER - B
ZEBCEHET BCOERERERYEE
([hEe R ]) 58 - MRAEEMALH B
ERAEMLNTE  HEREREUARE
25 ARBDAATNNEEERAEE
25 -
(i) XBRAEH

SINER SRR HEANRITEXTRERY
BREW  INABEEMAENREAEAD
WERBE AL ZHEENIRFREX
RBUINESHEMNEREERABEMELR
EXRE  HRAHANERAER -

HEBRRE RS EFEYABOEN K
REBRENBERAN [BERAZIKA] AT
27 A EMER WaE RBERENBRA
B [Etlas s EiE — F8] BTN 25 »

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
("the functional currency”). Since the
majority of the assets and operations of the
Group are located in the PRC, the financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is
the functional currency of the Company and
the presentation currency of the Group.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the statement
of income within ‘finance income or costs'.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the statement of income
within ‘other gains or losses — net'.
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2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position of
the Group entities are translated at
the closing date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of income and statement
of comprehensive income of the
Group entities are translated at
average exchange rate; and

(o) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 35 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture, fittings and equipment 5-10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised as “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of income.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property also includes property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings owned by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. In
this case, the operating lease is accounted for as if
it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised and presented
separately in the consolidated statement of income.

Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are performed at
balance sheet date by external valuers.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

Property under construction is measured at fair
value if the fair value is considered to be reliably
measurable. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until such
time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed, whichever is earlier. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its then carrying amount shall be recognised in
the consolidated statement of income. Investment
property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market
has become less active, continues to be measured
at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred.
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2.9

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Intangible assets
Trademarks

Trademarks of the Group are separately acquired
trademarks which are shown at historical cost.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks over their estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Computer software of the Group comprises
acquired computer software which is capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have
not yet been available for use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Properties held or under development for
sale

Properties held or under development for sale are
included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The costs of properties held
or under development consist of costs of leasehold
land, construction expenditure, capitalised
borrowing costs and other direct costs incurred
during the development period. The costs of
properties held are determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that development
project attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business as determined
by management with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing
costs.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is stated-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual ownership right exists.
Land use rights are acquired by the Group for
development of properties. Land use rights held for
development for sale are inventories and measured
at lower of cost and net realisable value, of which
those within normal operating cycle are classified
as current assets and included in properties held or
under development for sale, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current
assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties
(Note 2.8).
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2.13

2.13.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, and
available for sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of reporting
period, which are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise certain items in “Trade and
other receivables and prepayments” and
bank deposits included in “cash and cash
equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the
statement of financial position (Note 16 and
Note 18).

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.
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2.13

2.13.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated statement of income.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.13.3 Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors are experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.13.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.13.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (i) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of income on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of income. If, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated statement of income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate.

For derivative financial instruments which do not
qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
income.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income.
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2.16

2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Trade and other receivables (Cont'd)

When a trade or other receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for
trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
the consolidated statement of income.

Trade and other receivables are included in current
assets, except for those maturing more than twelve
months after the reporting period (or out of the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer)
which are classified as non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within twelve months after the
reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period when they are incurred.
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The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference are not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations
of mainland China, the mainland China based
employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the mainland China
under which the Group and the mainland China
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries, subject to a
certain ceiling.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
mainland China based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the municipal and provincial
governments.
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2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled pre-IPO
share award scheme, under which the Group
receives services from employees and certain
former employees, officers and business partners as
consideration for equity instruments (awards) of the
Company. The fair value of the current employee
and certain former employees, officers and business
partners services received in exchange for the grant
of the shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the shares granted:

o including any market performance
conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions;
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

Non-market performance vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
shares that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market performance vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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2.24
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2.23

2.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

The grant by the Company of its shares to the
employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries,
with a corresponding credit to equity account of
the Company.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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2.24

2.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Cont'd)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
properties and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminated sales
within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:
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2 EAREHEREE @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
225 WARER (&) 2.25 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(i) HEYF (i) Sales of properties

HE WA Y S8Rk & B W0 e E Revenue from sales of properties is
TEH (AEBRYEDLRIR) WIREHEE B recognised when the risks and rewards
BERMEINER - Bt A E®mRKEE#A of the properties are transferred to the
FEWGRIBRS - 77 T OAHERR - WA TER B HRD purchasers, which is when the construction
REEVMERBRNIZE KD BNRRaHE of relevant properties has been completed
ERERANRDEE N LR [TBEEWHEE and the properties have been delivered
WkaE | - to the purchasers pursuant to the sales

agreement and collectibility of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition
are recorded as “Advances from pre-sale of
properties” in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

(i) HLHUA (i)  Rental income
REREHEMBEMENES WA - LE Rental income from properties being let
BOETEHERANER under operating leases is recognised on a

straight line basis over the lease terms.

(iii)  RBEHA (iii)  Service income
AR U AR B R IR RIS E R4 - WEEHh Revenue from services is recognised when
A SEM R ST R A R AN 4858 - HEE & R services have been provided, total amount
I [B1 7 8 FE U SR IB R TR o of revenue and costs can be estimated

reliably and the collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(iv) FIEHA (iv) Interest income
FIEWAF A ERF R ERRBLLLOIRER - Interest income is recognised on a time-
EREWRBBLRBER  NEEBEEREEE proportion basis using the effective interest
BEETRESE (BNMETAMRETE R, method. When a receivable is impaired, the
BEOEETREBERE) - WHEBHEITRIE Group reduces the carrying amount to its
AR BUA o B E F FEUGRIE 8 ) B recoverable amount, being the estimated
AN B REBRNERER - future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired

loans and receivables is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-49
ZZ— =443k 2013 Annual Report



F-50

B Ot R R EE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

2 EASHBEEHBE @)

2.25 WARER (&)
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2.25

2.26

2.27

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate. Government
grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to an
entity within the Group with no future related costs
are recognised as income of the period in which
they become receivable.

Financial guarantee liabilities

The Group provides financial guarantees for certain
property purchasers on mortgage facilities with
banks.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
liabilities. After initial recognition, such contracts
are measured at the higher of the present value
of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.
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2.28

2.29

2.30

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised, as a liability where applicable, in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are properly
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Subsequent events

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period (“adjusting
events”) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
when material.
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3 WHERRER 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEENEBAZZABBRER  mS5EAR (B
SMNERKR - BRER  BRERERAAEBENXE
%) FERARIEADESRER - AEEMNEREAR
EEAFIN RIS AN - X FHKIDE
RERBEHAKENHEEEBROTHEE -

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

% 3.1 WEEE 3.1  Market risk
(i) SPE [ B (i) Foreign exchange risk

BREIBELRD (BREERRAHAEE - RITE

The Group is engaged in the development,

BERBETEAZETIIAST ([BT]) siFET
(ML) 5HE) 4N REBERPBERER
MEMRAE HEREE ETHER5Y
AANRESTE - W2013512A318 » A%&E
FTEMEERABEUAARESE  ETH
& REFABITHFETE -

ARAREZHFRABANDEEERAR
%o Bt UBTTRETAHEMNR © RER
T R INEE BB o BT R ETTH AR B EEE X
MR EBAREMNEEER - AEEBA
WESNE L PR - AT EEBEIEE
NG [ B 3 1A 4 BB ERERAT B ©

MR2013F12A31H - MARBEEBLEET
FHE B E5%  MAAEMmAEREERE
T FERBREEFEEA THRARE
47,647,0007T (20124F + A R #12,052,000
L) FERERARE BT RETTEMNRT
HEHRREERFINEWZ  BBFTE -
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sale and management of properties solely
in the PRC with almost all the transactions
denominated in RMB, except for certain
financing activities, including the initial
public offering, borrowings from banks
and issuance of senior notes which are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD")
or United States Dollar (“USD"). As of 31
December 2013, majority of the Group's
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB
except that certain cash and borrowings are
denominated in HKD or USD.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries’
functional currency is RMB. Accordingly,
cash and borrowings denominated in HKD
or USD is subject to foreign exchange risk.
Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
and USD against RMB will affect the Group’s
result of operations. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management closely
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will take actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2013, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD and USD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB47,647,000 (2012:
RMB12,052,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of net foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD and USD denominated
bank deposits and borrowings.
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3 BEERERE @
3.1 THEERE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) EEEE (i) Price risk
ARAREFRFREEEHEEARKRAR The Group is exposed to price risk because
DIEAAHNESHEE  WAEBEEZE of investments held by the Group and
% o classified on the consolidated statements

of financial position as available-for-sale
financial assets.
. . L N - In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s
EERR - ARBRALAMASLOERR exposur: to price risk with regard to Fi)ts
% 7 , = E =, Ré
"FTEKH *%ﬁx?TﬁﬁmE/;E{? investments is not significant since it is
ﬁﬁ?"‘"ﬁﬁ%%;‘ﬂi}% %EXK%\IJ?&E E’]E the Group’s policy not to invest significant
%?Xﬁ c MEREAREERRIERT AE amounts that might have a detrimental
17 impact to the Group’s financial results.
All investments must be approved by the
Chairman of the Board before they may be
entered into.
TEE MO EAATEEERARNBENALE The following table summarises the Group’s
BEF THS%  ZEHWE S EERE A other comprehensive income increase/
EEEMEEmUWEREN MR E - decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity
securities classified as available for sale if
the fair value of the securities increase/
decrease by 5%.
HZ12A31HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
ARBTR ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
— E#5% - 5 percent higher 8,295 6,795
— T 5% - 5 percent lower (8,295) (6,795)
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3
3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets.

The Group's exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings.
Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
has not hedged its cash flow or fair value
interest rate risk. The interest rate and terms
of repayments of borrowings are disclosed
in Note 22.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates, because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.
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3.1 THEERE (&)

(iii)

BERBRAREEFERR (&)

20135 M20124912 8318 » 4% B EZF
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BAE BIALEEZ2013F 820129127
31HIEFEMBRBIEREME R EF B
R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, if
interest rates on borrowings at floating rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the post-
tax profit and capitalised interest of the
Group for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 would have changed as
follows:

BZ128310LFE
Year ended 31 December
2013 20124
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ET T
BELEFIEE M, CRd) Post-tax profit increase/(decrease)
— FH#AS01EE 2, - 50 basis points higher (6,361) (4,814)
— TNHA50EZESE - 50 basis points lower 6,361 4,814
BARR BN S CFd) Capitalised interest increase/(decrease)
— EFASOEES, - 50 basis points higher 35,379 26,246
— TFAS01EES - 50 basis points lower (35,379) (26,246)
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3 BEERERE @
3.2 ZERR

AEBYBEAKTEERR - AHEERGBRTD
TRHYERITE N E 5 M E (b & YRR AR E B 5 A K B

HREERMEEARNERNERERR -

ReX5RNEEEERSNSREE - TREIIN

20134 F20124F12 A31 BRRITIE &S 64 -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of bank deposits
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The table below shows the
bank deposit balances as at 31 December 2013 and
2012:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
201345 20124
2013 2012
RXEYHF Counter party ARET AR®T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR B KB A SRITHIE R Deposits in the four major state-owned

banks of the PRC 6,901,344 3,761,048
R BEEM FTETHER Deposits in other listed banks of the PRC 870,278 1,327,230
REMIBITHER Deposits in other banks 521,408 899,831
8,293,030 5,988,109

EEERMIERZERSUTFNTIEOTAMES

EfIEE -
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Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.
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3 BEERERE @
3.2 fEERRE (&)
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HipENFEETERRNAEEBRRPEKEES
FIAMIZ S o AREE R ) B % 15 L B b R YR IR DATE
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3.3 RBESER

AEEEERE S ERABDHEE S IUERITEMEE
EERBMARREAREUREEMFERNLEET K

G ©

3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of properties are made to buyers with an
appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payment. Meanwhile, the
Group has the right to cancel the sales contract in
the event that the buyers default in payment, and
put the underlying properties back to the market
for re-sale. Therefore, the credit risk from sales of
properties is limited.

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables from
related parties and deposits made in the ordinary
course of business. The Group closely monitors
these other receivables to ensure actions are taken
to recover these balances in the case of any risk of
default.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain
sufficient cash through internally generated sales
proceeds and an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its operation needs and
commitments in respect of property projects.
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3 BHHEREE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 EEAR @) 3.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
TRDIBIER2013F &2012F12 A31HEA B F 55 The table below analyses the Group’s financial
HEOFIeR AR - A BAER DT ASE e /mE liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
& RAKBENEHAERARURAGTE - on the remaining period as at 31 December 2013

and 2012 to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

—FHR —EZf “Enf RENRE Rt
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

ARBTRE  ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TT  AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

RH2013%F12A31H As at 31 December 2013

EEARd (Hi22) Borrowings, principal (Note 22) 2,174,501 4,043,500 6,983,880 740,000 13,941,881
TRHEZF S Interest payments on borrowings 976,258 764,017 647,021 83,629 2,470,925
B S MEERFE Trade and other payables 10,007,801 = = - 10,007,801
EIRE Dividends payable 929 - - - 929

EEEEREEYEMER Guarantees in respect of mortgaged
IR EMER (FfH3F37)  facilities granted to purchasers of

the Group's properties (Note 37) 2,783,155 197,561 - - 2,980,716
15,942,644 5,005,078 7,630,901 823,629 29,402,252

R2012%12A31R As at 31 December 2012
ERARe (fi22) Borrowings, principal (Note 22) 5,130,436 2,700,670 1,359,000 450,000 9,640,106
FIERF B Interest payments on borrowings 586,905 261,389 201,499 67,328 1,117,121
ZSANEMENTE Trade and other payables 9,388,569 - - - 9,388,569
RS Dividends payable 805 - - - 805

BEBEREEYEMER Guarantees in respect of mortgaged
BT ERIER (MF3E37)  fadilities granted to purchasers of

the Group's properties (Note 37) 3,261,710 731,975 - - 3,993,685

18,368,425 3,694,034 1,560,499 517,328 24,140,286

Mt ERFERBAERIAREE - WHRE20134 /20124128 Note:  The interest on borrowings is calculated based on
31EATRHEREE  FBFIBSBIEMA20136 /2012412831 borrowings held as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
HEE R R GH - without taking into account future borrowings. Floating-

rate interests are estimated using the current interest rate

as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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3.4
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i) REFERDIMETRRIL 2 A T HZ IR A
RER SR B R R B R E & AR

ii) HEF BIRITMEA S BB R B S (EH

BUEEERRSEERE
i)y  HEDNSERHAREGEE WAEARAKEY
%E’Jix%fﬂgf‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ HBRITEREAR

SEESEENHEMLER IR

iv) ERESHERAEERTIYEREEERY
X -AEBENSERELTABERMHEEIN
EERBETER

EXEBRER
AEEMNERERNERDAREAEEEEEL
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REFBLRAEELRER  ARETREAEIN TR
ROBEEE - BITHRILEEEARET -

3.4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Due to dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the management of the Group is closely monitoring
the risk of the liquidity and takes the following
actions to manage the liquidity risk:

) prepares annual cash flow forecast and
updates such forecast on a monthly basis to
reflect the latest changes and monitor the
liquidity risk closely;

ii) maintains strategic cooperation with major
banks and other financial institutions to
secure credit facilities where appropriate;

iii) continues to obtain longer term financing
facilities,
project bank loans with pledge of the
Group’'s properties or other resources
of funding which the Group considers
appropriate;

mainly issuance of senior notes,

iv) proactively promotes the sales of the
Group’s completed properties and pre-sales
of properties under development. The Group
also considers the flexibility of adjusting the
price and volume on sale of properties for
management of liquidity risk.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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3 HBEREE @) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3. EBEXEBERE (#) 3.4 Capital risk management (Cont'd)
REENPBEEABLRERHER o I XIRRE The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
BRERNERNEREFE - EHFEREBEREERE gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
ReMReEEY - EALEIERAHEEABRANT divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
TR BTN B FENE o total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Total capital is calculated as total equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt.

2013 F12012F 128310 » AEBEEREL X The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December
W 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124F
2013 2012
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
[EErE Total borrowings 13,889,576 9,640,106
B ReMIBEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (7,411,713) (4,852,130)
BR5FEE Net debt 6,477,863 4,787,976
TR Total equity 10,597,959 8,395,027
BARBE Total capital 17,075,822 13,183,003
BEAMGBHLER Gearing ratio 38% 36%
BEBGBHEN2013FE128318EN TEEAL The increase in the gearing ratio as at 31 December
HE BTN AERIE o 2013 resulted primarily from the increase in the

balance of total borrowings.
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D ABEEME

TRABBEEIITRAABEARNERITA - T
FIEHRHERIT

- HREEXAENEERMSHRE CRERE)
(£—8) -

- BRE-EMEEORESN  BEXBBENT
B (mER) fiEE (MEBITLEY) &
=M AE (F=F) -

— CHEETBRROTSHENEEGEE
A EOBAE T TEREAR (E=
B) -

AEEAHEESREEBBE =-BRANEER

=
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TR BZ2F|AREBRN2013F 201212 A31 8%
DREEFENEREE - F2HWESHIEEME
BARBEFENENEE -

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group
are measured at fair value by Level 3.

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2013 and 2012 respectively. See Note 8
for disclosures of the investment properties that are
measured at fair value.

B BB E=E a&f

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AR®TRT AR®TR AR®BTR AR®T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AItHESFEE  Available-for-sale financial assets
A2013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013

= = 221,187 221,187

M2012512 8318 At 31 December 2012

- - 181,187 181,187

HZE2013FM012F12A3MHEFEF=ZETASR

RO BHNHE12 -

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

The changes in Level 3 instruments for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are presented
in Note 12.
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AREEMLS @

EERT ST RGN ERIAZ ARBEEANEE
BERBNTSREER - IRZBEATARH MR
RN ZTE - KHE SN EXEE - K
ERBEEREERBTIES YREERELSEER
B RAYMERIZNER EEHER  ZTHERR
RRR e ZTAFAE—E -

WIERRBMSEENTHTE (PIaGINTET
B) RABERNGEEZIETE - ZFHEERARER
PR A BRI SR M & A BB IR E B A
ERgfhat - WA ETAAABEFTENMAERZ2H
BRAEBRME  RZTAFAE_E -

IR ZAEE2HAIFENTEETHEE - B
FZITEFAB=E -
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FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Cont'd)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
instrument is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.
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5.1

BERERHhEH R A B

BEFRABDRBBEERIABAR (BEEER
BRTEARKEMH 2 ARIEH) (EISETG - BEE
FRARREHZEMEARRR - REEE  gttELZ
BRHEAELESERNEEERAER - AEEERN T —
EFBFEAHEERBBERABLREAFRBNE
R RRER T X °

BEEELUXRBEHNEBRE

AEEDEBN L RAERAETTHFEREZH
EME - ANAEEETYEMBIAR HE THHE
5T - BEE B W RE R ANBURNE AR X
ROGEE - RELRVFAZEBNNE - BEERR
RERFEHZBREERFBERL TEA BB RERE -
ERMERBLZHS RO TEEERR - HHEERE
B s NRERBERRGEENSER - 5 IR
REBREMEDEHARBERRBENEERRESE

S
5 o

5.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The management makes estimates
and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are outlined below.

Development costs directly attributable to
property development activities

The Group allocates portions of land and
development costs to properties held and under
development for sale. As certain of the Group’s
property development projects are developed and
completed by phases, the budgeted development
costs of the whole project are dependent on the
estimate on the outcome of total development.
Based on the experience and the nature of the
development undertaken, the management makes
estimates and assumptions concerning the future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Given the uncertainties involved
in the property development activities, the related
actual results may be higher or lower than the
amount estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Any change in estimates and assumptions
would affect the Group’s operating performance in
future years.
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5.2

5.3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Provision for impairment of properties
held or under development for sale

The management makes provision for impairment
of properties held or under development for sale
based on the estimate of the recoverable amount of
the properties. Given the volatility of the property
market in the PRC, the actual recoverable amount
may be higher or lower than the estimate made as
at the end of the reporting period. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect the Group’s
operating performance in future years.

Land appreciation tax of the PRC

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
in the PRC. However, since the implementation
and settlement of the tax varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, significant
estimate is required in determining the amount of
the land appreciation tax. The Group recognises the
land appreciation tax based on management’s best
estimates according to its understanding of the
interpretation of tax rules by various tax authorities.
The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.
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5.4

5.5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cCont'd)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income tax
in the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for corporate income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that we initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax expense in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation techniques. Details
of the judgement and assumptions have been
disclosed in Note 8.
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5.6

5.7

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cCont'd)

Classification of subsidiary, joint venture
and associate

In the normal course of business, the Group
develops properties together with other developers
or institutions, through entering into co-operation
agreements with these parties. The rights and
obligations of the Group and the other parties are
stipulated by respective co-operation agreements,
article of associations of the project companies, etc.
Because of the complexity of the arrangements,
significant judgement is needed in determining
whether the project company is subsidiary, joint
venture or associate of the Group.

The Group makes judgement based on the
substance of the arrangements and the definition of
subsidiary, joint venture and associate as disclosed
in Notes 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4.

Joint arrangements

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its
joint arrangement. The Group has joint control
over this arrangement as under the contractual
agreements, unanimous consent is required from all
parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

The Group’s joint arrangement is structured as
a limited company and provides the Group and
the parties to the agreements with rights to the
net assets of the limited company under the
arrangements. Therefore, this arrangement is
classified as a joint venture.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
CODM that are used to make strategic decisions.
The chairman, Mr. Wang has been identified as the
CODM.

The Group manages its business by two operating
segments, which is consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

° Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
domestically listed foreign investment shares
(the "B share company”).

o Property projects not within the B share
company (the “Non-B share companies”).

The B share company is mainly engaged in
development of residential properties, while the
Non-B share companies are mainly engaged in
development of mixed-use complexes. All the
property development projects are in the PRC, and
accordingly majority of the revenue of the Group
are derived from the PRC and most of the assets
are located in the PRC.

The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and profit before income tax and fair value gains
on investment properties. The measurement basis
excludes the effects of income tax expense and fair
value gains on investment properties.
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6 TEER &®) 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cCont'd)
BZ2013F12831ALFE
Year ended 31 December 2013
BAZ A FBRAF ABE #eH rEEEH
B share  Non-B share Total
company companies segment Elimination  Total Group
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEHA Segment revenue 16,583,969 4,188,605 20,772,574 (1,319) 20,771,255
BRISEMEAREE Segment profit before fair value
WM ERAS gains on investment properties
Al 27 and income tax expense 2,973,596 318,804 3,292,400 (93,773) 3,198,627
Eip T 0N Finance income 52,466 69,327 121,793 - 121,793
Bl & X AN Finance costs (66,254) (450,439) (516,693) - (516,693)
FEM#EHE Depreciation and amortisation (16,371) (5,500) (21,871) - (21,871)
il =N ES Share of results of an associated
company (11,422) - (11,422) - (11,422)
FEMNEHEOT : A reconciliation to profit for the year is as follows:
HHBRRIEEE Total segment profits before
AR EEREA fair value gains on investment
PSR R A& properties and income tax
DE ARG expense after elimination 3,198,627
REWMENRBEY  Fair value gains on investment
properties 37,839
Frig B Income tax expense (1,519,329)
EEFIE Profit for the year 1,717,137
R2013F12A31H
As at 31 December 2013
DEEE Segment assets 33,886,077 13,334,828 47,220,905 (22,695) 47,198,210
DHEERE Segment assets include:
REE D BIHRE Investments in associates 43,468 = 43,468 = 43,468
REBLENKE Investment in a joint venture 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000
REETDEE Additions to non-current assets
(BemIAM (other than financial
ELEHBEE) instruments and deferred
tax assets) 29,933 173,046 202,979 - 202,979
PEBE Segment liabilities 27,005,135 9,617,811 36,622,946 (22,695) 36,600,251
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6 DWER @ 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
HZE2012F12A3181LFE
Year ended 31 December 2012
BAX A 7] E NG| DEAE #8H AEBAR
B share Non-B share Total
company companies segment Elimination Total Group
ARBFL ARETT ARBTFT ARBTFIT ARBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
HEUA Segment revenue 14,300,447 3,221,061 17,521,508 (4,242) 17,517,266
BRISEMEARER Segment profit before fair value
WaERAmEHAY gains on investment properties
il ) 70 B ) 4 AR and income tax expense 2,336,309 497,652 2,833,961 (46,886) 2,787,075
BB A Finance income 39,759 8,293 48,052 - 48,052
AR Finance costs (51,199) (108,513) (159,712) - (159,712)
FEM#EHE Depreciation and amortisation (15,458) (6,050) (21,508) - (21,508)
NS Share of results of
an associated company (5,110) - (5,110) - (5,110)
FEMBEHEOT : A reconciliation to profit for the year is as follows:
%Tfﬁ%éﬁ%&%%% Total segment profits before
AR EERE fair value gains on investment
Fﬁfﬁﬁﬁrﬁﬁﬁl E’] properties and income tax
DEFE B expense after elimination 2,787,075
REMERNABEKS  Fair value gains on
investment properties 31,086
RS Income tax expense (1.232,777)
FEFE Profit for the year 1,585,384
2012412 A31H
As at 31 December 2012
DEEE Segment assets 29,280,647 11,581,191 40,861,838 (18,295) 40,843,543
NEEERE: Segment assets include:
RS A RIHIRE Investments in associates 229,890 - 229,890 - 229,890
NEITRHEE Additions to non-current assets
(BRE2FIAM (other than financial
EEFREEE) instruments and
deferred tax assets) 15,590 640,106 655,696 - 655,696
DEEE Segment liabilities 23,904,212 8,562,599 32,466,811 (18,295) 32,448,516
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7 Y - MEMRZE 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
rEE Group
) B £B HE .
BF "E &L WS &t
Furniture,
Motor  fittings and Leasehold
Buildings vehicles equipment improvements Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RH2013F1818 At 1 January 2013
B A Cost 59,320 29,297 37,152 48,946 174,715
2 E Accumulated depreciation (6,307) (13,166) (14,881) (23,287) (57,641)
REFE Net book value 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
HZ2013%12H31A8 Year ended 31 December 2013
HEE
FEPREFE Opening net book amount 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
RNE Additions - 12,221 12,884 9,326 34,431
e (fFE35) Disposals (Note 35) (113) (1,121) (397) (14,412) (16,043)
HEER (M328) Depreciation charge (Note 28) (1,895) (2,538) (6,917) (8,103) (19,453)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 51,005 24,693 27,841 12,470 116,009
R2013F12A31A8 At 31 December 2013
BN Cost 59,138 37,024 46,998 32,620 175,780
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (8,133) (12,331) (19,157) (20,150) (59,771)
BREFE Net book value 51,005 24,693 27,841 12,470 116,009
R2012F181A8 At 1 January 2012
%N Cost 59,805 28,983 27,104 39,621 155,513
ZENE Accumulated depreciation (4,555) (10,876) (9,783) (13,283) (38,497)
RESE Net book value 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
HZ2012%512A8318 Year ended 31 December 2012
EFE
FHREFE Opening net book amount 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
NE Additions - 859 10,741 9,325 20,925
& (FIEE35) Disposals (Note 35) (327) (92) (471) - (890)
WEER (M28) Depreciation charge (Note 28) (1,910) (2,743) (5,320) (10,004) (19,977)
FEAREEFE Closing net book amount 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
R2012F12H31H At 31 December 2012
AR Cost 59,320 29,297 37,152 48,946 174,715
ZEIE Accumulated depreciation (6,307) (13,166) (14,881) (23,287) (57,641)
REFE Net book value 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
HE2013F R2012F12A31BLEE - A& HY The Group's depreciation charges of property,
¥ BEMRENTEEA BRI ATTRAZHE plant and equipment have all been included in
AR o administrative expenses or selling and marketing
costs for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.
2013512318 © lRELRER A K¥42,332,000 Property, plant and equipment with a total carrying
7L (20124F - &) 0% - MEMREEEIFIERSE amount of RMB42,332,000 as at 31 December
BEfERAERS (H5E22) ° 2013 (2012: Nil) were pledged as collateral for the
Group's borrowings (Note 22).
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8 REYHE 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT B &5t
Under

Completed development Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
A2013F1H18 At 1 January 2013 3,105,600 - 3,105,600
NE Additions 35,736 127,825 163,561
AR EERE Fair value gains 9,664 28,175 37,839
A2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 3,151,000 156,000 3,307,000
20121818 At 1 January 2012 4,200 2,439,000 2,443,200
NE Additions - 631,314 631,314
THH % T (a) Completion of projects (a) 3,070,314 (3,070,314) -
AR EERE Fair value gains 31,086 - 31,086
20126128318 At 31 December 2012 3,105,600 - 3,105,600
(a) REEEMEN SN ENES —BHEENE (a) The portion of Phase | of Injoy Plaza and
BRESE D RIR2012F3A R12A% T - Injoy International Plaza used as investment

properties were completed in March and
December 2012, respectively.

HE2013F12A31HLFE - BIEBEAKREDERN No borrowing costs were capitalised in investment

EAREEERA (20129F + A R¥80,006,0007T - properties for the year ended 31 December 2013

BEXEEE11.06%) ° (2012: RMB80,006,000 with capitalisation rate of
11.06%).

AREESE Fair value hierarchy

REBAMBREMENLARBEHOUE=EBtE " & Fair value of all of the Group’s investment

BEATABERBAER - properties are measured at Level 3, with significant

unobservable inputs.

FRNEBEF— R =B 7EEE - There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.
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8 REWHEmw 8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
FREXATTEZRRAE (F3E) ETARE Fair value measurements using significant
BEFf 2 unobservable inputs (Level 3)
IP1 1P2 IP3 Hith a5t
IP1 1P2 IP3 Other Total

ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETRT
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B4t Opening balance 1,685,000 1,416,400 - 4,200 3,105,600
NE Additions - - 127,825 - 127,825
i B EBERE Capitalised subsequent expenditure - 35,736 - - 35,736
RELAREE Net gains from fair value adjustment 5,000 4,664 28,175 - 37,839
B F
HASK 45 84 Closing balance 1,690,000 1,456,800 156,000 4,200 3,307,000
AEBNLEBRRE Valuation processes of the Group
B EWER2013F X2012F12831BHBLE All investment properties were revalued as at 31
EEEBGLEMBERITERDEMEITER - December 2013 and 2012 by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, and independent professional
qualified valuer.
AEBERNI SIS REBIAERMTETHHE - The Group’s finance team will review the valuation
B performed by the independent valuers, including:
. BB HEREANMEEZHAE . verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;
. HEF-FENGHERSETHERGIHEYE . assesses property valuation movements
HEZE when compared to the prior year valuation
report;
. BB (L ERDEITATAR © . holds discussions with independent valuers.
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HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

REWE @)

EESZ
AEENREDETZRRETVHBEESHIHY
x([iP1]) - HEHES BB (T1P2]) R
IENES =8 ([1P3]) < IP1RIP2H5 AL
RABEI&E B MM D RIFR2012F12 A R3A %
T o IP3AAR BT ERA &N - R 2015F K AR
T o IP1 - IP2FNIP3RI R EEEE D B A£142,556F 7
K (B3E39,879F FKMEE) » 163,526F 5K (&
$521,3005F 5K EE) A R171,651F 75 K (B
62,450 F F R B E kit FTERRERE)

AEERERNREMERDREE - Wit MAAAK
BRER A AN e SERK % B35 1R B R E A B AR AN IA R BR B 3R
THRZHEENEE  KEEZMESREASE RO
FEETE TURENTEX - MIERTREMEMS -
BEDRBRELEBHREAFEONFEE W
A (Bt EMERARAZANBEERAERR) (Fi
BERNEAHE RSB ERERTS LN RERRE
H o

FABETDELEZS -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd)
Valuation techniques

The Group's investment properties comprise mainly
a portion of Injoy International Plaza (“IP1"), a
portion of Phase | of Injoy Plaza (“IP2”) and a
portion of Phase Il of Wujiang Injoy Plaza (“IP3").
IP1 and IP2 are both located in Changzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, and were completed
in December and March 2012, respectively. IP3 is
located in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, and
will be completed by end of 2015. Total gross floor
area of IP1, IP2 and IP3 are 142,556 square meters
(including carparks of 39,879 square metres),
163,526 square meters (including carparks of
21,300 square metres) and 171,651 square meters
(including carparks and underground ancillaries of
62,450 square metres) respectively.

For investment properties under construction, the
Group adopted investment approach, and have
taken into account the expended construction costs
and the costs that will be expended to complete the
development to reflect the quality of the completed
development on the basis that the properties will
be developed and completed in accordance with
the Group’s latest development plan. For completed
investment properties, valuations were based on
investment approach by capitalisation of the net
rental income derived from the existing tenancy
agreements with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the properties and by reference
to comparable price in an active market.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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8 KREYHFm 8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
ERFERERFTTEZHAE (F3B) #TQ AE Information about fair value measurements
HEEWNEE : using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

R20135
12A318 TABERBAER
S WATE #ERE TABRBAR TABERAAE (METYE) WEE ALEENEE
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Relationship of
(AR¥Tr) Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs unobservable
Description (RMB'000) technique(s) inputs (weighted average) inputs to fair value
IP1 1,690,000 #HE* e BARTELBENNRERR  BHAlEEES -
Investment Term yield BR AT YR (R R 5 U R A U A RO AnEEGE
approach TEIERFE - BEEEAE45%-  The higher the term yield, the
5.5%(5.4%) ° lower the fair value

Term yield of 4.5%-5.5% (5.4%),
taking into account of yield
generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to
reflect the certainty of term income
secured and to be received.

ERkax EARMELBRNENEEEN TS EREEEEES -
Reversionary yield HeMAREMNSEE &R DAEERE
HEA55%-6.5%(6.4%) ° The higher the reversionary
Reversionary yield of 5.5%-6.5% yield, the lower the fair

(6.4%), taking into account annual  value
unit market rental income and unit

market value of the comparable

properties.

REUMTISEN  BAARKSOT/ THAEBAAR THEMHESHS -

ik B3I/ FHk (BAARY9 AnEEES
Market unit rent T/ FHXK) The higher the market unit
of individual unit  RMB50 - RMB317 per square meter rent, the higher the fair
per month (RMB 96 per square value

meter per month)
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8 REWEm 8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
R2013%F
12A31H TIBRHAER
HER MATE HERE TABRRAE TAEERAE (MELHY) WEE QLAEENBR
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Relationship of
(AE¥F¥xm) Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs unobservable
Description (RMB’000)  technique(s) inputs (weighted average) inputs to fair value
P2 1,456,800 KE% bl G EBARUEHENENGEERR  BBKERES
Investment Term yield BT R S U ER AR B I A O B AnBEEBE
approach TR - MERZEEA4.5%-  The higher the term yield, the
5.5%(5.1%) ° lower the fair value
Term yield of 4.5% - 5.5%(5.1%),
taking into account of yield
generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to
reflect the certainty of term income
secured and to be received.
ERRE BARUBHENENERENTS EERERHE -
Reversionary yield ~~ BEMARBUTSEE  ERK  AxEEHE
#@ER5.5%6.5%(6.3%) ° The higher the reversionary
Reversionary yield of 5.5% - yield, the lower the fair
6.5%(6.3%), taking into account value
annual unit market rental income
and unit market value of the
comparable properties.
FENRTIHEN  SAAREIT/ THAZEEAAR MHENHSHER -
ik 1631,/ FAk - (BAARKEST AnEEES

Market unit rent
of individual unit

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited

T/ FHK)

RMB30 - RMB163 per square meter
per month (RMB57 per square
meter per month)

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value
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8 REWEmw 8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
H2013E
12A31H TIBRHAER
HER WATE RELE TABRRAE TABEERAE (MELHY) WEE QLAEENBR
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Relationship of
(AE¥F ) valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs unobservable
Description (RMB’000) technique(s) inputs (weighted average) inputs to fair value
IP3 156,000 REZ  BERIH KHEE BARTEALBMENFEENTS EHENEEES -
EETAR Reversionary yield HeWARBAMSEE EHK  AnEEUE
Investment BEBT% ° The higher the reversionary

approach with
estimated costs
to complete

F-76
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BB EN
ik

Market unit rent
of individual unit

FRTIMMRR
pEN

Estimated
construction costs
to completion

RERERNERE
BIAEMMEE
pillap:s

Estimated profit
margin required
to hold and
develop property
to completion

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

Reversionary yield of 7%, taking into  yield, the lower the fair

account annual unit market rental value
income and unit market value of
the comparable properties.
BAAREIIT /FHAZEBAAR BRUGEES -
135w/ Fhk e (BAARKEA AR EEME

T/ FHK)
RMB33 - RMB135 per square meter

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair

per month (RMB45 per square value
meter per month)
AR#548,288,0007T Rt ERmAds -
RMB548,288,000 AR BEWE
The higher the estimated
construction costs, the
lower the fair value
M (EER20% MEMNEEYS  RAERY
20% of property value &

The higher the profit margin
required, the lower the fair
value
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HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

8 REWEmw 8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
THEEBIEIERNE  WEEANEE Wtk The rental rates were estimated depending on
H1E BB TISEEMEAMMEE - $EIEA1ET§H& the actual location, type and quality of the
HEREATHEE  CELENERRAASE R properties, and taking into account market data
FRATILE B E £ R BRRA AN B EE ﬁﬁﬂqéiﬁ’\]@%& and projections at the valuation date. The Group
RANEEYENRTBE SEE - considers the market data when estimating the

yield rate. Construction costs incurred are based
on the actual costs incurred as reflected in the
accounting records, while the construction costs to
incur are based on the most updated budget for
the construction of the properties.

WERESEENHSEE  WRENMEIKAIRE Were the rental rate, yield rate and the construction
[& #9788 B 2 N sk R 2 10% - 75’:‘2013@%1]2012@ costs to incur assumed to increase or decrease by
12ABZREDENREAEGESOT ¢ 10% from management’s estimate, the carrying

amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 would have changed as follows:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR®ETF T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EEE I CRid) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
— S EEEM0% - 10 percent rental rate higher 292,594 232,688
—HEBEERI10% - 10 percent rental rate lower (294,723) (225,982)
BEMELM,CR) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
— TR EEIEIN10% - 10 percent yield rate used higher (253,566) (199,859)
— AW ERRL10% — 10 percent yield rate used lower 283,968 233,448
BEYEE I ) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
— E AR R AL INI0% — 10 percent construction costs to incur higher (49,258) TE A N/A
— BEERNERNIFL10% - 10 percent construction costs to incur lower 49,258 TEA N/A
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BEYE @)

RERTYEMS  [HEDEEKREBRLONRE
FHEBA (T EMERRAZENEERALE R
®) FHERNEAERERERLEE  BRREEY
ERBRARAIELE X2 EF@M SN LLEIH
EXSEL - THIERTRENEHESRACRKEH
FBRARER

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cCont'd)

For completed properties, valuations were based on
either capitalisation of net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the properties
or on direct comparison approach assuming sale
of each of these properties in its existing state

with the benefit of vacant possession by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The following
rental income from completed investment
properties has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of income:

HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F 20124
2013 2012
AR¥TT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AL ON Rental income 81,110 23,634

AEBRKEMENESREBRTFESTAOT

The Group's interests in investment properties at
their net book values are analysed as follows:

MW12831H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR®ETF T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

EHE - In the PRC, held on:
HLERIOFEFLEHE (MHL20135F  Leases with original term of 40 years

12A318 - # R HAFE A (and remaining unexpired period of 33 years

33M%364F) and 36 years as at 31 December 2013) 3,302,800 3,101,400
LEARTOFEFLEHE (MHL20134F  Leases with original term of 70 years

12A318 - # R HAFE A (and remaining unexpired period of 54 years

544F) as at 31 December 2013) 4,200 4,200

3,307,000 3,105,600

Investment properties with a total carrying amount

M2013F12A31A EEM AL EBEHN A ARKE
3,236,563,0007T (20124 : A R #1,416,400,000 of RMB3,236,563,000 as at 31 December 2013

TL) MIEEYECEBEREBIEROERR (M (2012: RMB1,416,400,000) were pledged as
22) o collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 22).
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9 ®|EEE 9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
rEH Group
g B E &5t
Computer
Trademarks software Total
AR®FT AR®T AR®T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2013F1818 At 1 January 2013
AN Cost 800 11,895 12,695
STy Accumulated amortisation (747) (4,681) (5,428)
BREFE Net book amount 53 7,214 7,267
HZE2013F12831BLEE Year ended 31 December 2013
FUREFE Opening net book amount 53 7,214 7,267
NE Additions - 4,987 4,987
e (KiiE28) Amortisation charge (Note 28) (53) (2,365) (2,418)
FREEFE Closing net book amount = 9,836 9,836
7A2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013
D% Cost 800 16,882 17,682
B i Accumulated amortisation (800) (7,046) (7,846)
R FE Net book amount = 9,836 9,836
20121818 At 1 January 2012
B%N Cost 800 8,438 9,238
REtie Accumulated amortisation (667) (3,230) (3,897)
BREFE Net book amount 133 5,208 5,341
HZE2012F128318LEE Year ended 31 December 2012
FYREFE Opening net book amount 133 5,208 5,341
RE Additions - 3,457 3,457
BB A (KIsE28) Amortisation charge (Note 28) (80) (1,451) (1,531)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 53 7,214 7,267
720126 12H31H At 31 December 2012
D% Cost 800 11,895 12,695
Efe i Accumulated amortisation (747) (4,681) (5,428)
REDFE Net book amount 53 7,214 7,267

HE2013F R2012F12A31HIEFE  AEBEER
BEMNEHEBHACREGTATHBAX -

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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The Group’'s amortisation charges of intangible

assets have all been included in administrative
expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012.
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10 REBEQIANRE - F&E 10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES -
GROUP
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LERDIFed-2S Opening balance 229,890 235,000
— FAShanghai Lan Tian Business — Investment in Shanghai Lan Tian Business
Development Property Co., Ltd. Development Property Co., Ltd.
(['Shanghai Lan Tian]) F3% & (a) (“Shanghai Lan Tian") (a) 10,000 10,000
—-RESBZHEMERZEAR — Investment in Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real
~aEl ([ EegE ) BIRE D) Estate Development Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng”) (b) 219,890 225,000
Ve Deductions
— REBBZHHIRE () — Investment in Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng (b) (175,000) -
JEIE A Share of results
— 88 2 (b) - Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng (b) (11,422) (5,110)
HAR 56k Ending balance 43,468 229,890
— FAShanghai Lan Tian Business — Investment in Shanghai Lan Tian Business
Development Property Co., Ltd. Development Property Co., Ltd. (a)
& (a) 10,000 10,000
—-RESBZHREMEREAR — Investment in Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real
NEHIRE (b) Estate Development Co., Ltd. (b) 33,468 219,890
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10 REZQATNERE - FA5£8 @) 10

(a) Shanghai Lan Tian#2010%F8 A4 AL » &
EBHEA LA RI20% AL HE -

RNEEE(HShanghai Lan TianfEEURE
EMEEERBEIRNT

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES -
GROUP (cont’d)

(a) Shanghai Lan Tian was established on 4
August 2010. The Group owns 20% of
equity interest in this company.

The Group’'s share of results and the
aggregated assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Lan Tian are as follows:

FsERES F (BB
I»d BEE BEE A bl
% interests Total Total Total Net (loss)/
held assets liabilities revenue profit
ARBTFT ARETFT ARETT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REBEZE2013512A310  As at and for the year ended
IFFE 31 December 2013 20% 10,053 - - (4)
REEZE2012512A318  As at and for the year ended
ILFE 31 December 2012 20% 10,057 - - 15
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10 REEQATNRE - A58 @) 10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES -
GROUP (cont'd)
(b) EBEZWE2011F3A829HK Y - NEE (b) Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng was established
BB ZREIS0%M R - R20134F - L8 on 29 March 2011. The Group owns 50%
Z R & 350,000,0007T ° fHFEHD - ANEEE R of equity interest in this company. In 2013,
Z A EUE A R 175,000,000 ¢ I 3G EH Shanghai Wan zhi Cheng reduced its paid in
BRI LR EMRE - capital by RMB350,000,000 and accordingly
the Group received RMB175,000,000 from
the company and recorded it as a reduction
of investment in an associate.
REBEREIBEZHNEEULRBENE The Group’s share of results and the
BEREIRIAT - aggregated assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Wan Zhi Cheng are as follows:
FrisfEs
BAt mEE YR 1N FEE
% interests Total Total Total Net
held assets liabilities revenue loss
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEZE20135128318  As at and for the year ended
HFE 31 December 2013 50% 869,630 836,162 458,157 11,422
REEZE20124128318  As at and for the year ended
IFEE 31 December 2012 50% 859,407 639,975 - 5,110

BEAKBERFELEE ZMS0%MERE - £
AEBBER B8 Z MR ETERZ R
AE - RIRE LB &S Z W EM50% M E R
BAFIAWAER  EtREEURZHES

The Group accounts for its investment in
Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng as an associate
although the Group holds 50% of equity
interest. According to the contract with

SRUMEMENENZES L EEZH - A
- AREAH EEBEZWENEATE -

the other 50% equity interest holder of
Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng, the other investor
controls Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng with
majority seats on the board of directors
and other contractual rights. The Group,
however, has significant influence over
Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no associate,
which is material to the Group.

EERA  HENAEENEBEEANBLEAT -
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11 NEELEMKRE - XEH 11 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE
- GROUP

BZE20135F

128318 LLEE

Year ended

31 December

2013
AR¥T
RMB’000
AfETETENARES Capital injection to a joint venture and ending balance
—RER DEFHBEEFR AR - Investment in Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate
(I L&) (a) Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Xudi”) (a) 10,000
Mz s  BEEMEARERA S EESABNRAERE - Note:  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the joint venture.
(a) BB E2013F 10811 B - NEEE (a) Shanghai Xudi was established on 11
BZATI50%FEE © October 2013. The Group owns 50% of
equity interest in this company.
REBFEWN BB ESUAREENEE The Group's share of results and the
MEEDIRIOT ¢ aggregated assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Xudi are as follows:
Fits
EEEI HWEE HEE AU A FER
% interests Total Total Total Net
held assets liabilities revenue loss
AR¥T R AR T AR%ET AR¥ TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEZE20135128318  As at and for the year ended
WHFEE 31 December 2013 50% 372,523 362,565 - 42
EERE LEMHEAEEMSIIEBE In the opinion of the directors, Shanghai
K o Xudi is not material to the Group.
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12 AHHEESHEE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
REE Group
BZE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
LEEIEE Opening balance 181,187 156,000 (a)
i Acquisitions 40,000 (c,d) 25,187 (b,c,d)
HiR 4 8% Ending balance 221,187 181,187
(a) MR20105942H - AEBEUREBEBARE (a) On 2 September 2010, the Group acquired
156,000,0007C Y& &R N SR 1T 1% A AR 1k 1% equity interest in Bank of Suzhou at a
E&RVEEDBIF2013F %2012412A31H consideration of RMB156,000,000. There
B AR BEESKEBRAT EEXEEH - is no significant change in fair value of the
financial asset as at 31 December 2013 and
2012, respectively from the acquisition cost.
(b)  2012F4R108 AEBEURBARE (b) ~ On 10 April 2012, the Group acquired
5,187,0007C Y2 fEShanghai Jingying Investment 6.19% equity interest in Shanghai Jingying
Management Limited Partnership 6.19%H#) Investment Management Limited Partnership
fEiE - HTHSMEER2013F12A831HHAR at a consideration of RMB5,187,000. There
R BEMREUEER AW EE KT - is no significant change in fair value of the
financial asset as at 31 December 2013 from
the acquisition cost.
() R2012F10A158 » REBUKEBARE (0) On 15 October 2012, the Group acquired
50,000,000t (A E #20,000,0007T & A 5.26% equity interest in Shanghai Wuling
IR #15,000,0007T X 8 2 7 5l 7 & £2013 Investment Management Limited Partnership
FR2012F 128318 IEFERNSN) WE at a consideration of RMB50,000,000,
Shanghai Wuling Investment Management with an amount of RMB20,000,000 and
Limited Partnership 5.26% E9R%HE © 1tk IES Rl RMB15,000,000 already paid during the
BER2013F12A31 B A EEAE W E year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
AR S KEH) o respectively. There is no significant change
in fair value of the financial asset as at 31
December 2013 from the acquisition cost.
(d) M2012F11 A28 - AEBUREARK (d) On 2 November 2012, the Group acquired
25,000,0007T (A K #20,000,0007T & A R 2.72% equity interest in Gefei Assets
#5,000,0007C XIEE D BIRAE 220134 & Management Limited Partnership at a
20125123318 EFE R X ) W EEGefei consideration of RMB25,000,000, with
Assets Management Limited Partnership an amount of RMB20,000,000 and
2.72%IRHE o ITES BB ER2013F12 A RMB5,000,000 already paid during the
3MHAAABEMRATWEK AL EEKED) - year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
respectively. There is no significant change
in fair value of the financial asset as at 31
December 2013 from the acquisition cost.
39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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13 TiH{EHAE - KEHF 13 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP
W EREE A—TEF IS ST S EE MR EEEER The balance represents land use rights to be used
BRESARNMERZELIHEEN LHEAE - 12013 for development of properties for sale in the future
F12A318  lREREAARY367,248,000TH) - upon obtaining the necessary approval to re-zone
i AREDEBEREBEROERD (F5E22) - the site for commercial use. As at 31 December
2013, land use rights with a total carrying amount
of RMB367,248,000 were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s borrowings (Note 22).
14 FHETHFENTE - KXEH 14 PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD
LAND - GROUP
AN £ B R #H 22013128318 B A R # The Group made prepayments of RMB3,285,498,000
3,285,498,0007T A A I8 B & + #b {F F # (2012 for the acquisition of leasehold land as at 31
F: AR#4,313,847,0007C0) ° December 2013 (2012: RMB4,313,847,000).
15 ZISGEIEZHEEYF 15 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
rEH Group
M12H831H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR®TT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BFHRENEEL Leasehold land to be developed 1,548,783 1,518,738
EREIEEME Properties under development for sale 19,493,659 17,089,398
TLFEYE Properties held for sale 7,954,743 6,235,028
28,997,185 24,843,164
W OREEIE R Less: Provision for impairment loss (268,221) (349,412)
28,728,964 24,493,752

ELFEREREEMRIUNTE -

HE2013F12A318EFE  RELFESMIEEH
EMEFENMEREREARL A AR 682,958,807
70 (20124 + AR#776,028,0007T) °

The properties held or under development for sale
are all located in the PRC.

Borrowing costs capitalised in properties under
development for sale and held for sale for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were approximately
RMB682,958,807 (2012: RMB776,028,000).
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15 ZIBEHERHEENE W 15 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (cont'd)
BE201B3F1I2ANBLEFE BREACER The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 7.37%
7.37% (201248 : 9.71%) o for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
9.71%).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s
following leasehold land to be developed,
properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 22).

MA2013F %2012 12A318 » REFNU T8 PRI
MEELH  ERESENT IFEYEBIRIME
AEEERIEP R (FFE22) ©

M12H31A
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEMHEREE Carrying value pledged:
1S TFHRENHEE i Leasehold land to be developed 322,704 642,204
TEEEEE Properties under development for sale 8,628,317 7,234,330
TLHEME Properties held for sale 768,023 931,768
H OEZ2013FN2A3MH EFE MR AR X For the year ended 31 December 2013, the cost
R ABEKRAN T TIFEMERKN A A of properties held for sale recognised as expense
B #14,803,610,0007C (20124 : A R & and included in cost of sales amounted to
12,575,554 0007T ) » 3 75 1 3] V5 {2 B 18 A R 16 RMB14,803,610,000 (2012: RMB12,575,554,000),
160,779,0007% (20124F : # B A R #132,988,000 accompanying by a reversal of provision for
) BB AERA o impairment of RMB160,779,000 (2012: reversal of
< A &

RMB132,988,000) credited to cost of sales.

20134128311 - IR E A/ A K 6,600,726,000

- y - As at 31 December 2013, properties under
7t (20124 © AR #6,205,262,0007T) M 7E & #5 &

development for sale with a total carrying amount

MRETEHR —FARTOMRIRR AN - &EA of RMB6,600,726,000 (2012: RMB6,205,262,000)
EEREETIIEYX - MEEEHE LT RN were related to property projects which were not
—FART - T TRHENERIHEMENHMAARTE scheduled to complete within one year although
AR —FAEE pre-sales of some of these properties may occur.

All the leasehold land to be developed were not
scheduled to complete within one year. The other
balances in properties held or under development
for sale were expected to be recovered within one
year.
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16 EBEZVNHMEWREBERBENRE 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS
REME Group
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
2013% 20124F
2013 2012
AR¥T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 EWRIE Trade receivables 2,250 3,265
PR EE Notes receivable 4,400 300
B EWHRIAESET Total trade receivables 6,650 3,565
Sk FEUCGERIE R (B B S Less: Provision for impairment of receivables - -
B S rEIEIE — 558 Trade receivables — net 6,650 3,565
TEfT AN INE () Prepaid business tax and surcharges (a) 567,828 645,416
B TSR Al - M 2 (E T (a) Prepaid income tax and land appreciation tax (a) 382,333 377,514
FEUR B T IR (F1RE39) Receivable from a related party (Notes 39) 362,565 180,000
FIZRFE 2 (D) Tender deposits (b) 276,420 196,190
FET R A AN Prepayments for construction costs 157,406 89,491
SR E LEHEMRE R () Deposit for trust financing arrangement (c) 125,000 -
REERAEEFLAIZE) Deposits with public housing fund centres (d) 122,920 116,989
HE ERERRES() Deposits for timely project construction (e) 101,125 -
VI HERER® Deposits for property maintenance (f) 73,538 -
B E TR R A B WS IE Receivable in connection with the disposal
of a subsidiary 35,156 -
HAh, Others 100,428 57,101
2,311,369 1,666,266
B EAth FEUGRIE 89 IF BN AR Less: Non-current portion of other
2B (c ~ f) receivables (c, f) (198,538) -
ENEAER 19 Current portion 2,112,831 1,666,266

BORRFIEEEREYMEHENRENMERE - Y
—RREITEBEERRREB=(EA
WUER - M EEENH S —ARTE U o

KIHEMMERIA

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of
properties and leases of investment properties.
Proceeds in respect of properties sold are normally

received within three months after signing of
related sales and purchase agreements, and
rentals in respect of leased properties are generally

received in advance.
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16

B 5 M H it fE WO TH R TR RRIE (30

(a)

EER  WmMEBMIMIZET RN AREBKE
EPEMREEMW - WEBNHIENEH
WAFER B FIETEN SR - BEHh - ERTEE
ARBUAR - A K BRI TE M K5 % E
15%T EOFERTFMEFTIFASTHEA - EIH
B R FTSH RERSIEIB A FOR -

HREBRTHNERERENRERES &
RERKOIHERERE T FAN A -

AEEREFRARIGEESHEREARER
Jiangsu International Trust Co., Ltd7F AR
# & AR ®125,000,0007T ° #2013F 12 A
31H - ZZFAFEMJiangsu International
Trust Co., LIdZEEERZZHEERME - RE
SR 2015FEE -

IESRARESRES RO RE AE
REEEETEBFEENEFAEEER &
LIRS HRBASBMELMEMBEEREERE
UEEELMESDES T OIRE T AR

ZHERBHRRAABNEREZRRES - HHER
MRIEBEERBREPKD - IR EARNRI2ME
AmigE -

ZHERBHBRRBEARNEBYEEINOME
HERED  BRERNTFRKE -

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

Business tax, surcharges and land
appreciation tax are provisionally levied
when the Group receives advances from
customers and the prepaid taxes are
recorded as prepayments before the relevant
revenue is recognised. In addition, a deemed
profit at 5% to 15% of advances received
by the Group is added to the accounting
income when calculating taxable income and
the prepaid income tax is similarly recorded
as prepayments.

This balance represents the tender deposits
for bidding of land use rights, which will
be subsequently received or transferred to
prepayments for leasehold land.

The Group deposited RMB125,000,000
in Jiangsu International Trust Co., Ltd. for
revolving trust financing to its subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2013, the subsidiaries
had repaid all the trust financing to Jiangsu
International Trust Co., Ltd. and the deposit
will be refunded in 2015.

This balance represents the deposits paid
to public housing fund centres to secure
the housing fund loans taken by certain
property purchasers of the Group. Such
deposits will be released upon the issue
of the properties’ ownership certificate by
government authorities to these purchasers
and submitted to the public housing fund
centres.

This balance represents the deposits for
timely project construction, which will
be subsequently received in the course
of construction and are expected to be
recovered in the next 12 months.

This balance represents the deposits for
property maintenance after first delivery
of the relevant properties, which will
be subsequently recovered in ten years
thereafter.
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16 B 5 M HE WA R AN KE (30 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)
B 5 EWFRIAER2013F &2012F12 A31BHERE D The aging analysis of trade receivables as at 31
WranT - December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Less than 1 year 6,650 2,555
—E=F Between 1 and 2 years = -
—EB=F Between 2 and 3 years -
=FUE Over 3 years = 1,010
6,650 3,565
E’\2013¢ﬂ]2012¢12ﬂ31EI%KXE’]H*KFQH % The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31
MERERFIEMREE o AEBEW ARG EEE December 2013 and 2012 is the carrying value of
ﬁuu ° each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral security.
A2013F M2012F12A318 - E S ME b fEUREUIA As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value
HAREEEAKRIERS of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying amounts.
2013 20126128318 + B S M E b fE W RIE As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying

RIEMRENEAEEZZUAREE -

amounts of trade and other receivables and
prepayments are primarily denominated in RMB.

AN Company
R12A31H

As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR®TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JFE R B3 T BB (FMP3E39) Receivables from related parties (Notes 39) 3,832,174 717,847
H fth UK BR 3R Other receivables 2,294 570
3,834,468 718,417
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16 EBESZMEMERIRRENRE @) 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

FEUNRRE R IB M E b E N R IBERR SR DT 2 S 1S The aging of the receivables from related parties

A o and other receivables are all within 1 year.

JE W 38 7 FRIB A B FEIRIE R A B E B AR EE The fair value of the receivables from related parties

HBE o and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts.

FEWFRARIFIEARE  SERRERFEERS - K The amounts due from subsidiaries are interest-

NAENEMAERFATINZEIRERNFATIHEIR free, unsecured and have no specific repayment

R g UE o terms. The Company’s intention is that the amounts

due from subsidiaries will only be recalled when the
subsidiaries have surplus cash.

FEUR B8 5 FRIE A H b pE W R IBBR E (B LA 5l § 5t The carrying amounts of the receivables from
& : related parties and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

MR12H831H

As at 31 December
2013% 20124F
2013 2012
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREE RMB 2,487,464 -
ETT usb 926,190 -
BT HKD 420,814 718,417
3,834,468 718,417

17 RFRINEE 17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NN Company
(a) REFNGHRE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
M12H831H

As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
K ETRRIERE - A Unlisted equity investments, at cost 450,012 424,271
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17 RFRANRE @ 17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
RAFIEERZENTFRARNLIERFIHERMD AR AR The Company’s indirectly held subsidiary, Jiangsu
B—RREEBLER G EMHIBRAR - REEF Future Land Co., Ltd. is a Shanghai Stock Exchange
ARIEF W ER M B R A A A937,728,000 listed B share company. The number of shares of
Rty o ZERMAEEAR  TEHESE - B Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. held by the Group
2013128318 » IEHAHERKMBRAFNE is 937,728,000 shares. Such shares were legal
B RE R ETR0.607%TT ° person shares and cannot be freely traded. As at
31 December 2013, the quoted price of the freely
tradeable shares of Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. is
USDO0.607 per share.
RABFRABIAR2013F K2012F 12 A31BHFFIEH Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31
REHETBRERM T4 - RFARINEREL EIEH December 2013 and 2012 are set out in Note 41 to
BEEE - RFRAFIRENEIKRER T ARRAFA the consolidated financial statements. No provision
AEEME R AR EE ARG ZEE 8 (H3520) © for impairment has been made against investments
in subsidiaries. The increase in investments in
subsidiaries pertains to the Pre-IPO share award
scheme (Note 20) granted to the employees of the
Company'’s subsidiaries.
18 HITNMFHEES 18 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
rEE Group
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2013% 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITMF BB S Cash at bank and on hand
AARKEHE Denominated in RMB 7,898,005 5,665,041
MASETTAHE Denominated in USD 308,965 47
B TTEHE Denominated in HKD 90,923 335,131
8,297,893 6,000,219

M2013F12A8318 * ARBERTERNERMNE R
1.70% (2012512 A31H : 0.91%) °

The effective interest rate on the Group’s bank
deposits as at 31 December 2013 was 1.70% (31
December 2012: 0.91%).
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18 HBITMFHEBEL 30

AEBNREMRASFEMEELT

18

CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group were
determined as follows:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
2013F 20125
2013 2012
AR®TT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RITAMF AR Cash at bank and on hand 8,297,893 6,000,219
W ZBREIE S Less: Restricted cash (886,180) (1,148,089)
7,411,713 4,852,130

AEENXRERSBEATRE

Restricted cash of the Group comprised of the
following:

MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20125
2013 2012
AR%TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERTEBERFRRK Deposits for letters of guarantee issued for
HREBES project construction 81,261 22,107
ZBRRES Margin deposits for notes issued 659,238 637,748
BREEZRBEFRES Q) Deposits as security for property purchasers’
mortgage loans (a) 71,907 42,645
VEREFIEMEER (HM5F22)  Deposits pledged for borrowings (Note 22) 73,774 45,589
T BATF K (b) Time deposit (b) = 400,000
886,180 1,148,089

(a) BUEIRBRHRTEIARNBRAEEETE
FEEBRBSE TR M T ERERMERTE
Ko BLEFFER Y XA #E f R &P
BHRELEEE L MIZBRITIRRE TN
FER o

(b) R2012F 128318 - EEXRHEHEFRH
REEIRITIEE  XER2013FEE -

F-92
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(a) These bank deposits are restricted to secure
the bank loans taken by certain property
purchasers of the Group pursuant to the
local regulations of certain cities. Such
deposits will be released upon the issue
of the properties’ ownership certificate by
government authorities to these purchasers
and submitted to the mortgage banks.

(b) The time deposit is restricted for application
of bank borrowings as at 31 December
2012, which was repaid in 2013.
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18 HRITNFHEBE @) 18 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(Cont'd)
AT Company
MW12A831H
As at 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R{TAFER S Cash at bank and on hand
AAREHE Denominated in RMB 2,594 877,935
AZEITEHE Denominated in USD 2,374 47
LA TTEHE Denominated in HKD 2,529 17,325
7,497 895,307
2013128318 - ARABRITEROEENEA The effective interest rate on the Company’'s bank
0.11% (20124 : 0.22%) ° deposits as at 31 December 2013 was 0.11%
(2012: 0.22%).
19 RX 19 SHARE CAPITAL
AEBMARAT Group and Company
(a) ZEREK (a)  Authorised shares

EERSTEE
Number of
authorised

shares
BT
HKD share

R2012F1 818 ~ 120124
12A318 K%20135F12A31H

As at 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2013

10,000,000,000

(b) ERITRE (b)  Issued shares

ERITROEE ZER
Number of Ordinary
issued shares shares
£180.00138 T AR
HKDO0.001 each RMB
201214818 As at 1 January 2012 4,250,000,000 3,466,077
AT EBA() Issuance of ordinary shares (i) 1,418,000,000 1,150,992

20125128318 R As at 31 December 2012 and
A2013F12831H 31 December 2013 5,668,000,000 4,617,069
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19 BAEX @
(b) EBFTEREG (&)

(i) R2012F11 8298 » KA AIF EHi%
f%1.455% JT % 71,418,000,0000%
FROOIEBETHATEER  WE
1548 %8#92,056,100,0005% 7T (FHH K
AR #1,668,936,0007T) HYFRIE © Ff
1S FIB B 4B % 771,418,000,000/% /5
TEBRAERLAEAREKT 150,992
TTH & %A AR 1,667,785008
T MBRBETHREZEENER
# A R #65,165,0007T 12 B A R
1,602,620,0087T * L& REEE AN D &R
EER (FIsE21) o

20 DARHAHERNM

- RIE2011FIA12BMRER  AARRMEXAH
BERRM BB S ([IRGHRENETE]) - BEBERHD
st - A $£159,800,0000% A% 5 121,250,000/
BHEDBIETMETRETRTEES (BEESE) IE
FE=F - F=FBRENEENETE=FRR - &
FE=HRBNRMD AR ELBERE -

ERETHAIRE (BEESE) ORH  EAQRR
20126 A30BAIE BB AR ZFAR AT ERLE
TMEEEREEBIARDEBRMBERT - BEMRKRH
A] % B 720124 « 20134 ~ 20144 F2015412 A
BTENMNEMNHSE °

F-94 | ##H%REREMR DT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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20

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)
(b) Issued shares (Cont'd)

(i) On 29 November 2012, the Company
issued 1,418,000,000 HKD ordinary
shares of HKD0.001 each at HKD1.45
per share in connection with the
Listing, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HKD2,056,100,000
(equivalent to RMB1,668,936,000).
The excess of RMB1,667,785,008
over the par value of RMB1,150,992
for the 1,418,000,000 HKD ordinary
shares issued, net of the relevant
incremental costs of RMB65,165,000
directly contributable to the new
shares issued, was credited to
“share premium” with amount of
RMB1,602,620,008 (Note 21).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to a resolution dated 12 September
2011, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”).
Under the Share Award Scheme, a total number of
159,800,000 shares and 21,250,000 shares were
issued and granted to selected current employees
(including directors) and certain third parties,
respectively. The third parties include former
employees and certain third party companies. The
shares granted to third parties are for recognition
of their past services.

For shares granted to current employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria
of the Company being listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
before 30 June 2012 and the employee being still
on service at the end of each vesting period, the
granted shares can be vested in four equal tranches
on 31 December 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.
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20 UROEBEROZMN @) 20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd)
MR2012F6 8308 + ANAFUSET ARG T B0 On 30 June 2012, the Company modified the
ERARAIN2012F6 A30BANEBHE R HE condition for the share-based payments by
RARER EMEEZRE2013F12A4318A] extending the criteria of the Company being listed

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited before 30 June 2012 to 31 December

2013.
BB BB R 81 H I D R 2011498158 (1% The fair value of the shares granted under the
HHE) AR EEAEARE119,766,3097T @ LB Share Award Scheme as at 15 September 2011,
BRBEEEMEET  HABEEBBFEAMS the grant date, was RMB119,766,309, and was
FREEZ BEEBEEMFIETRBEEAE AG determined using the asset-based approach and
NEBBFERZEMGER BT REWEFH the overall result was also cross-checked by using
T sEME MIETRBIRAFERATELRA T EM the market approach. Various valuation methods/
B WABEEERENEETEIEREESN - techniques were applied to determine the value of

each asset/liability under the asset-based approach,
for example the investment properties were
valued using the residual method while the non-
tradable shares were valued using the comparable
company method with option pricing model to help
determine the illiquidity discount.

BE2013F12A31BEFE - REERARTET For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
TR ENRMEERARY25,741,0007T (Mt5E30) recognised an expense of RMB25,741,000 (Note
(20124 : AR™36,697,0007T) KEM - 30) (2012: RMB36,697,000) in relation to the share

award by the Company to the current employees.

TREEZEREHZE2013F12A3IHIEFERTFETE The following table discloses the movement of
BHARN B E S NF2013F12A31H #HATTE the Company’s shares granted to the selected
EOZA/NET ErlE employees for the year ended 31 December 2013

and outstanding at 31 December 2013:

RERDEB

Number of

E& Employees awarded shares
A2013FE1H 1B MKRITHE Outstanding as at 1 January 2013 181,050,000
FNEREE Vested during the year (43,225,000)
FARRDE Unallocated during the year (9,250,000)
A20135F128318 HRITHE Outstanding as at 31 December 2013 128,575,000

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-95
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21 AALTEZEBEAERENEHMESE 21 OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
REE Group
1R E HitifE REEF =i
Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FifE(a))
(note (a))
R2013FE1 1B KR Balance at 1 January 2013 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,961,347 5,746,486
2HEkE Comprehensive income

FEFHE Profit for the year - - 981,262 981,262

Hi 2 E WS Other comprehensive income = - - -
FEXHRSAT Total comprehensive

income for the year - - 981,262 981,262
EERNETHRS Transactions with owners
BRAREERRM ZEE 2 Pre-IPO share award scheme
(P45E20) (Note 20)
- B RERKER - value of current employee services - 25,741 - 25,741

P8 (KzE33) Dividends (Note 33) (283,400) - - (283,400)
BEAHER S REHE Total contributions by and

distributions to owners (283,400) 25,741 - (257,659)
M FEFE AR AR 3R Gain from acquisition of additional

e ¥ R RIEAS interest in a subsidiary from

e RSOk E non-controlling interests (Note 40)

(Mi5E40) - 246,942 - 246,942
BEEREZEIEERTA Total transactions with owners,

WS HEE recognized directly in equity (283,400) 272,683 - (10,717)
M2013F12 8318 &R Balance at 31 December 2013 1,679,240 95,182 4,942,609 6,717,031
Rk Representing:

EEAMRE (b)) Proposed final dividend (Note (b)) 283,400 283,400
Hith Others 1,395,840 6,433,631

1,679,240 6,717,031
RA2012F1 818 &ER Balance at 1 January 2012 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,176,350
2HikE Comprehensive income

FEFE Profit for the year - - 930,819 930,819

Hit 2 HE e Other comprehensive income - - - -
FEXHKRSARE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 930,819 930,819
HEBAETHRS Transactions with owners
BITERR (PRE19) Issuance of ordinary shares (Note 19) 1,602,620 - - 1,602,620
BIRDRESAIRG 2R 2 Pre-IPO share award scheme
(PEE20) (Note 20)
- BERERBEE — value of current employee services - 36,697 - 36,697
BEALERD KA Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,639,317
R20125E12B31 B & Balance at 31 December 2012 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,961,347 5,746,486
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21 EARARESRAABRGNHMREE @ 21

OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY (cont'd)

¥ NN Company
BRE Hitvf b RitE#E &t
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
ARETT ARETT ARETIT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(KH5E@))
(note (a))
R2013F1 B 1B HE R Balance at 1 January 2013 1,962,640 64,222 (7,273) 2,019,589
2HES Comprehensive loss
FEEE Loss for the year - - (225,822) (225,822)
Hit 2 HEEE Other comprehensive loss = - - -
FEZEBREE Total comprehensive loss for the year - = (225,822)  (225,822)
BEEAETHRS Transactions with owners
BRAREERR K R 2 Pre-IPO share award scheme
(Ff5E20) (Note 20)
- REEERKER - value of current employee services - 25,741 - 25,741
& (FIFE33) Dividends (Note 33) (283,400) - - (283,400)
BEALERDIKEH Total contributions by and
distributions to owners (283,400) 25,741 - (257,659)
A20135FE12B31 B WS ER Balance at 31 December 2013 1,679,240 89,963 (233,095) 1,536,108
e Representing:
EmARBRE (MEb) Proposed final dividend (note (b)) 283,400 283,400
EHih Others 1,395,840 1,252,708
1,679,240 1,536,108
A2012F1B 18BN & Balance at 1 January 2012 360,020 27,525 (3,215) 384,330
2HER Comprehensive loss
FEBE Loss for the year - - (4,058) (4,058)
Hin2HEEE Other comprehensive loss - - _ _
FEXHERES Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (4,058) (4,058)
HEREEAETHRS Transactions with owners
BITE®A (P3E19) Issuance of ordinary shares (Note 19) 1,602,620 - - 1,602,620
ENGE G BE Pre-IPO share award scheme
(F4&E20) (Note 20)
~ B EERBERE ~ value of current employee services - 36,697 - 36,697
BEALERDIKEHE Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,639,317
R2012512 A31 B &Rk Balance at 31 December 2012 1,962,640 64,222 (7,273) 2,019,589
e Representing:
BRI S (b)) Proposed final dividend (note (b)) 283,400 283,400
Hith Others 1,679,240 1,736,189
1,962,640 2,019,589
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N R EERSHR% BEQAESA
TOREMER BRAH25% °

BE8IN AEE T RESRRERE
W2 B)ETHEEHEDESRMRE

M2013F12A31H & & F 2 A & 8
BRARABIBEEANAESEBEEAR
#1,113,262,0007T (2012 : A R
921,259,0007T) ° i& L & FET AR EE AR
BEAF -

REMESESE QRE (2003FE5T M) £34
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OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (cont'd)

(a)

In accordance with the Company Law of
the PRC and the articles of association of
the PRC subsidiaries, these subsidiaries
registered in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of its annual statutory profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the
statutory surplus reserve (“SSR") account.
When the balance of SSR reaches 50% of
the registered capital/share capital of these
subsidiaries, any further appropriation is
optional. The SSR can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase paid-in
capital. However, SSR shall be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of registered capital/
share capital after such utilisation.

The SSR are non-distributable for cash
dividends except in the event of liquidation
and are subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations.

As at 31 December 2013, total SSR of these
subsidiaries attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB1,113,262,000
(2012: RMB921,259,000). These amounts
were included in retained earnings of the
Group.

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman
Companies Law (2003 Revision) and the
Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to
a solvency test on the Company and the
provision of the Articles of Association of
the Company. Details of the proposed final
dividend are set out in Note 33.
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22 fEw 22 BORROWINGS
*%ME £ F
Group Company
R12A318 M12H31H

As at 31 December As at 31 December

20135 20124 20134 20124
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTRT ARBTT AR®TR AR%®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000

JEENER - AL A T#E  Non-current, secured and borrowed

BA from:
— $77(a) — Banks (a) 10,179,459 6,242,070 - -
1**%@%“?% Trust financing arrangements
— EHER() — conventional loans (b) - 1,875,460 - _
- 201851 AEEAE S =4 - Senior notes due January 2018
(T2018FZE# 1) (c (i) (2018 Notes”) (c (i) 1,189,147 - 1,189,147 -
—2016F4 A RIHAMB L= — Senior notes due April 2016
(F20165F 54 1) (c (i) (2016 Notes") (c (ii) 1,477,928 - 1,477,928 -
JEBNER « EIK KA —ZKEE1T  Non-current, unsecured and
fBA borrowed from a bank 400,000 - - -
13,246,534 8,117,530 2,667,075 -
B REBE A BIEA SR Less: Current portion of long-term
borrowings (1,531,459) (3,607,860) - -

11,715,075 4,509,670 2,667,075 -

BIER ~ B KA A T Current, secured and borrowed

BA from:
— #R17(a) — Banks (a) 643,042 1,210,716 - -
EEmELH Trust financing arrangements
— EHER(b) — conventional loans (b) = 311,860 = -
Eﬁmﬁmﬁ’]ﬁﬂ/ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ Current portion of long-term
borrowings 1,531,459 3,607,860 - -

2,174,501 5,130,436 = -

B BIZRAMAT Future Land Development Holdings Limited | F-99
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22 fER @ 22 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
(a) AEBEMNZERTERHRSE THENEEL (a) These bank borrowings of the Group are
o EEWE TIASEWE (ME15) secured by leasehold land to be developed,
EYE (BI5E8) « T AR (FHsE13) - properties under development, properties
VI - BB MR (HEE7) "ﬂﬁﬁ{’ﬁ(ﬁﬁ held for sale (Note 15), investment
FT41) MIRTHER (MIE18) MRk m AR properties (Note 8), land use rights (Note
K F ARG R - 13), property, plant and equipment (Note

7), shares of subsidiaries (Note 41) and
bank deposits (Note 18) of the Group or
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company
for each other.

(b) ZEERTBHETRARNETRELHE (b) These borrowings are mainly in the form
RNl - ERERETHELTHE R A S EH of trust financing arrangements with trust
ERXARIGINHNERDE - Ertm i LHEE financing companies. The conventional
THEZRETEISENEREEDME (H loan trust financing arrangements are loan
FE15) MIAREEF R AMAR N (M 5E41) K agreements entered into by the Group and
o trust financing companies. The borrowings

under trust financing arrangements are
secured by certain properties held or under
development for sale (Note 15) and shares
of subsidiaries of the Group (Note 41).
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BRAERE
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M2013F 1A - RARIEITASTE A2
BETHRFHELERE ([2018F%
Bl 2ERERTMEELRRT S
£ o 2018 F RIEAZEILETE - EE
EFFE10.25%5T 8 + B2013F7A4
3THABRSEFEMIA3IARTA
JMBREZREFINEEXEBTYFR
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RIE2018F ZIEMIEK - EHEATEMN
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. B TNXFEEMEDA1 A3
A#E121E A BB E R 2% -
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ek EB52018F 2% - EREI(E
BERTXAEASHES L
IEETFIARFAE (B) - &
E(TERE) BRBEA

Year

22
(@]

BORROWINGS (cont'd)

Senior notes

(i)

2018 Notes

In January 2013, the Company
issued five-year senior notes with
principal amount of USD200,000,000
(“2018 Notes"), which were listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The 2018 Notes are
denominated in USD, and bear fixed
interest rate at 10.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on
or on the business day nearest to
31 January and 31 July of each year,
beginning 31 July 2013.

According to the terms of 2018
Notes, the Notes may be redeemed
in the following circumstances:

° At any time and from time to
time on or after 31 January
2016, the Company may
redeem the 2018 Notes,
in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equal to
the percentage of principal
amount set forth below, plus
accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but excluding) the
redemption date, if redeemed
during the 12-month period
commencing on 31 January
of any year set forth below:

e E %

Redemption Price

B201651A318%£201741A30H
2017F1A31BA k2%

31 January 2016 to 30 January 2017
31 January 2017 and thereafter

105.1250%
102.5625%

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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22 B @ 22 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
@ BRERE (8) (c) Senior notes (Cont'd)
(i) 20185 4 (5&) (i) 2018 Notes (Cont'd)

F-102

RAFBIA 201651 A318 2
AT A {7 B P B 175 B (2 2 33648 3
R E - BREEKENR2018
FEBEAREHI100%INEEF
EREFARSFE (1) -
HZE (TR BEEAH-

NAFAIF2016F1 A31B 2
A {E RIS R e B 7B T
HHEBR T TERAEE
FISREEE R EZERS
HBEEM35% - BEOERAZE
N4 #9110.25% O & 51 F1 A A+F
MB(WAE) BEE (T8
BRI BH : EWRIERIRET
BEHE LRSS BRENCS%N
It FE [ 1 D R (8 58 I I B B R
TRRAA A B & A RIB 60K A
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At any time prior to 31
January 2016, the Company
may at its option redeem
the Notes, in whole but not
in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the 2018
Notes plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued
and unpaid interest, if any,
o (but not including) the
redemption date.

At any time and from time
to time prior to 31 January
2016, the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount
of the Notes with proceeds
from sales of certain kinds
of its capital stock, subject
to certain conditions, at a
redemption price of 110.25%
of the principal amount
of the Notes, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any,
o (but not including) the
redemption date; provided
that at least 65% of the
aggregate principal amount
of the Notes issued on the
original issue date remains
outstanding after each such
redemption and any such
redemption takes place within
60 days after the closing of
the related equity offering.
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22 fBER @ 22 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

(0) BERERE (B)
(ii) 20165 24k

2013548 - KRB ZETALBERA
R %1,500,000,0007T ) = 4F Hi 1B %
F#& ([2016F K ]) - ZFRBER
IEEHFZ ST LT ° 2016F ZHE LA
ARMEEE - RETEFMFEIT75%5T
g - B2013F10A23 8BRS EF
EMAA238 R10A238 sk 2 & #
MMEEABYFBEINM -

RIFE2016FRBERER - NAF B
SER 2 EEDD2016F I - B
EERENREBEARNSH00%INEE
wEREFSMRMSFE (W) HE
(TE3E) BEIBE -

REELREERARARTETLAMEBEETANILER
PIRE - FFERE  ARFHEKENIIREED R
TR REEE L AR BERNVSERE XR2013
F12A31BLEFEK -

FHEEZRES—REMT  ;ETIFREPBEIERTE
ML FRARER ([FRARERAD  RBET
RFRAERAN IR EEIR o

(c) Senior notes (Cont'd)

(i) 2016 Notes

In April 2013, the Company issued
three-year senior notes with principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000
(“2016 Notes"), which were listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The 2016 Notes are
denominated in RMB, and bear fixed
interest rate at 9.75% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on
or on the business day nearest to 23
April and 23 October of each year,
beginning 23 October 2013.

According to the terms of 2016
Notes, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2016 Notes,
in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the Notes
plus the applicable premium as of,
and accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but not including) the
redemption date.

The early redemption options are regarded as
embedded derivatives not closely related to the host
contract. The board of directors is of the view that
the Company has no plan of any early redemption
and the fair values of the above early redemption
options were insignificant on initial recognition and
as at 31 December 2013.

The above senior notes are general obligations
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries other than those
established under the law of the PRC (“Subsidiary
Guarantors”), and secured by a pledge on the
shares of certain initial Subsidiary Guarantors.

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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22 B @ 22 BORROWINGS (cont'd)
A2013E K20129E12 8318 » IERHE WD HS The maturity of non-current borrowings as at 31
PIREAR December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
rEE b N
Group Company
®12A31H R12A31H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
2013F 20124 20134 20124
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥TRT ARETT AR®BTRT ARKBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB‘000 RMB'000
—ZEWEF Between 1 and 2 years 4,043,500 2,700,670 - -
—ERF Between 2 and 5 years 6,931,575 1,359,000 2,667,075 -
BBRF Over 5 years 740,000 450,000 = -
11,715,075 4,509,670 2,667,075 -
2013420124612 8318 » IEFHEEF E5 The weighted average effective interest rates as at
U 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITIER Bank borrowings 6.85% 6.76%
R E 3k Trust financing arrangements TEHA N/A 13.50%
BAEZRE Senior notes 10.72% TEA N/A
EREEFMEEERALBHEENT ! The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-
current borrowings are as follows:
XEH LU
Group Company
BEE ANREE BEE AREE
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT AR%ETR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
RITIER Bank borrowings 9,048,000 4,509,670 9,048,000 4,509,670 - - - -
20185 2% 2018 Notes 1,189,147 - 1,225,075 - 1,189,147 - 1,225,075 -
2016F 15 2016 Notes 1,477,928 - 1,503,135 - 1,477,928 - 1,503,135 -
11,715,075 4,509,670 11,776,210 4,509,670 2,667,075 - 2,728,210 -
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22 B @ 22 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
2018F ZiE M2016F RN A BEIRERT IS The fair value for 2018 Notes and 2016 Notes are
WEFE  ERAnBEIENE—E - based on quoted prices in active markets and are
within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
BITERO AR EERARDERS - AR EENR The fair value for bank borrowings equals their
SRENASENZFNRE  ERNALBESEN carrying amount. The fair value is based on cash
E_E o flows discounted using appropriate rates and are
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
REBEFTNFREET R LA RENEE B D The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest
H (ABFEERE) T : rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or
maturity whichever is the earlier date is as follows:
Group ~EA RnE
rEE ZUR +=@F —EEF HBIF &t
6 months 6-12 Over
or less months  1-5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT AR®TR ARBTFT ARETT AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAFERBEBENER Borrowings included in non-current liabilities:
#2013 12A31H As at 31 December 2013 2,400,000 4,010,000 4,915,075 390,000 11,715,075
20129 12A31H As at 31 December 2012 1,785,600 1,209,370 1,514,700 - 4,509,670
HARBEBHER: Borrowings included in current liabilities:
R2013F12H318 As at 31 December 2013 1,841,501 333,000 - - 2,174,501
2012412 A31H As at 31 December 2012 5,040,436 90,000 - - 5,130,436
Company ~EA NE
VN RN +=@F —EEF HBIF &t
6 months 6-12 Over
or less months  1-5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT AR®TR ARBTFT ARBTT AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
stASEREBEBAER - Borrowings included in non-current liabilities:
2013 12A31H As at 31 December 2013 - - 2,667,075 - 2,667,075

201212 A31H

As at 31 December 2012

FFAREBBENER
2013F12A31H
2012128318

Borrowings included in current liabilities:
As at 31 December 2013
As at 31 December 2012

o1

BB R EMAEA%AEARES,117,617,000

B RIZER AR A E Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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RMB5,117,617,000 are at fixed interest rates.
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22 fBER @ 22
7 82 (B {8 50 ) B TR A T 1) B M 1

BORROWINGS (cont'd)

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

rEE ARAF
Group Company
®W12A318 ®12A318

As at 31 December

20134 20124 20134 20124
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETRT AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB'000

As at 31 December

AR
ES

RMB
usb

12,634,887
1,254,689

1,477,928 -
1,189,147 -

13,889,576 2,667,075 -

23 TEEVERAWE

AREBEEYFERT LA HRA ARG HEEYRLFRET
PUERGRIA © 5 LM% P IR
A5 {F T8 & ) R FEUK

XIE - AKH

I8 o

24 EBFZNEAENIE

RIRTE AR B SH S TR

23

24

ADVANCES FROM PRE-SALE OF
PROPERTIES — GROUP

The Group starts sales of properties and collection
of proceeds from customers before the properties
are completed and ready for delivery. Such proceeds
from customers are recorded as advances from
pre-sale of properties before relevant sales are
recognised.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEE Group
R12A31H
As at 31 December

2013%F 20124
2013 2012
AR®TR AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB RE Trade payables 8,276,829 8,223,769
ARES Notes payable 659,238 637,748

EE—FFA Advance from a non-controlling shareholder
FEE J&Hﬁ%é’ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂ ) of a subsidiary (a) 555,580 -
E B A A 1A Business and other taxes payable 233,539 208,460
RIRERBEREEE Maintenance & decoration fees collected on behalf 152,591 122,198
fEstITE Accrued payroll 127,136 71,912
FEAHF B Interest payable 118,392 125,396
KU T Deed tax collected on behalf 105,364 127,673
JEASTRAE T BB (FMP3E39) Payables to related parties (Note 39) 50,000 -
JEZEGRE A E 2(b) Temporary funding payables (b) 18,000 18,000
Hi Others 71,807 61,873
10,368,476 9,597,029
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24 EZMEMENTIER @) 24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)
AEE (&) Group (Cont’d)

(@ ZEERTHE BEEREERTHERERK (@  The advance is non-interest bearing,

R BZREERZTEELRERE  BERZ unsecured and has no fixed repayment

FRAAEMKE  BIEAEERENEER terms. However the advance has repayment

Kz FraHEmammEER GRITEZRBRIN) priority over any advances from other

BASER - shareholders of the subsidiary, including

those from the Group, and other borrowings
(except for bank borrowings) to the

subsidiary.
(b) EERSERESY AENMIEMEL A (b) Temporary funding payables are payables to
Tt BEEm o non-related parties which are non-interest

bearing and unsecured.

B 5 e R IE R E ZB 20139 K20129612A31 The aging analysis of trade payables and notes
BRSO - payable as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARBT T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR Less than 1 year 8,673,152 8,694,356
== Between 1 and 2 years 178,168 120,120
—E=4F Between 2 and 3 years 56,826 27,644
=FLAE Over 3 years 27,921 19,397
8,936,067 8,861,517
A20134EM20124E12 A318 - EZME M EN FUIAE As 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value of
WA EBEEEREERS - trade and other payables approximate their carrying
amounts.
#2013 120126128318 + B S ME A B 308 As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying
HEEEEBEEZAARERHE amounts of trade and other payables are primarily

denominated in RMB.
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24 EBZWHAMEMRIE @ 24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont'd)
AN Company
M12H31A
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERFE Interest payable 79,297 -
% ENEEER Professional fees payable 4,880 13,789
s 84,177 13,789
R2013FF2012912 A31H » B FME b & I8 The aging analysis of trade and other payables as
BRI 2HIPEFE - at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are all less than 1
year.
EA2013¢W2012¢12)EJ31 B E5MEAMENRIE As 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value of
MARBEEEREEERS trade and other payables approximate their carrying
amounts.
20136 M20124F12A318 * BSMEMEN B As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying
RIBREEN T 7| EHEHE - amounts of trade and other payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

M12H831H

As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR®BTT AREETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ESH usD 52,078 -
ARHE RMB 27,219 -
BT HKD 4,880 13,789
84,177 13,789
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25 BELEFREH 25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
rEH Group
®12A831H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
OB ANELEHEEE Deferred tax assets to be recovered
—+ZEAR — within 12 months 45,059 19,234
—+-{@A%E — after 12 months 454,679 341,959
499,738 361,193
BFEFWELEHEERS Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
—+=@AR — within 12 months (35,810) (22,120)
—+=-EA% — after 12 months (397,112) (380,752)
(432,922) (402,872)
EIETRIBEE /(BE) F58 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 66,816 (41,679)
FEFREHERE NEEIIRET The gross movement on the deferred income tax
account is as follows:
HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F 20124
2013 2012
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
F4 At beginning of year (41,679) 19,403
B, () AFIEE Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
(BF5E31) statement of income (Note 31) 108,495 (61,082)
FR At end of year 66,816 (41,679)
M2013F 128318 - AR #82,242,0007T HY i £E f As at 31 December 2013, deferred income
EBHREEFRLEMSHAGEEHEEEE (2012F : A tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
RH#47,423,0007T) ° amounted to RMB82,242,000 were offset (2012:

RMB47,423,000).
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25 EERBH & 25
REZE20135F R2012F12A3MBIEFE - BERE
MEENABENFRBEZS (REEREER—HBA
SEHER AR PRI

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The gross movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, are as follows:

EIEFBHREE Deferred income tax assets
RIKE baf
REER NERE &R THEER  ATERS &t
Provisions for Land Elimination of
properties appreciation inter-company
Tax losses  held for sale Accruals tax  transactions Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
®2013%181A At 1 January 2013 167,802 87,353 4,590 147,946 925 408,616
g/ (3H) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
AHFIER statement of income 108,622 (20,298) 6,146 79,306 (#12) 173,364
R2013%12A31H At 31 December 2013 276,424 67,055 10,736 227,252 513 581,980
R20125151H At 1 January 2012 150,744 120,600 14,450 98,384 1,692 385,870
B3 /(X8%) ABFIER  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
statement of income 17,058 (33,247) (9,860) 49,562 (767) 22,746
R2012%12A831H At 31 December 2012 167,802 87,353 4,590 147,946 925 408,616

F-110

RIBEFHBUEEIEAR - HBEEAEEDFAEER
RIERBFE o 5 H 75 R R A A ] fUEEH A
BEDHA  UERLFRADARBEBROELRAE
o

ANEEI K N2013F12A3IBEEAEARE
405,687,0007C (20124 : A R %403,407,000
L) M BEEEREENECEHMEBHEEARK
101,422,000t (20124 : AK%100,852,0007T) °
FBELEHBERERAFERIHE -
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In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations,
tax losses could be carried forward for a period of
five years to offset against its future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of RMB101,422,000 (2012:
RMB100,852,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to RMB405,687,000 as at 31 December
2013 (2012: RMB403,407,000). All these tax losses
will expire within five years.
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25 RIEFRSH (m 25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
RIEFEHER Deferred income tax liabilities
henk
NRAEE HENR BERA  HETAR RE
s WEFAR AR5 FHEE  WRIENE NEifE fit
Fair value
gains on Elimination of  Carpark cost Undistributed  Depreciation
investment  Acquisition of inter-company allocation profits of PRC  of investment
properties  subsidiaries  transactions differences  subsidiaries properties Total
ARBTR  AREFTT  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETRT  AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(P& @)
(note (a))
342013%51}5]1 A At 1 January 2013 282,993 3,120 6,363 145,182 12,637 - 450,295
TH/(B5) AHHER Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement
of income 9,460 (74) 1,993 22,420 1,11 19,299 64,869
#201312831A At 31 December 2013 292,453 3,046 8,356 167,602 24,408 19,299 515,164
}}*20125!51}31 = At 1 January 2012 275,221 6,432 7,465 77,349 - - 366,467
T/ (EQ) ABFER Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement
of income 7772 (3312) (1,102) 67,833 12,637 - 83,828
#2012612831A At 31 December 2012 282,993 3,120 6,363 145,182 12,637 - 450,295
(a) M2013F12A318 - AEE 2 gt BEIEIMNE (a) As at 31 December 2013, deferred income

BEEEETPBETARIMARE LAY
EE%IJEF?EE&H%Féfzﬁaﬁi‘ﬁ%u%%ﬁ&? IEE A

SR AaE ARM24,408,0007T (20124 + A
Eﬁ%12,637,000n)

M2013F12A31H - A& E K 5t B 5%
MNEEERLEETHPERTFRAGBAREAR
#3,118,926,0007T (2012 : A R #&
2,470,027,0007T) &) B H 7] 55k A1) B 1E [
R P S TR A M SR AR R IR E PR IS AR
BEAR155,946,0007T (20124 « AR
123,501,0007T) * EJYHRZEFHERIER
BEE -

tax liabilities of RMB24,408,000 (2012:
12,637,000) have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable upon
remittance, in respect of a portion of the
unremitted distributable profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries attributable to the investors
outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2013, deferred
income tax liabilities of RMB155,946,000
(2012: RMB123,501,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that
would be payable upon remittance,
respect of the unremitted distributable
profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC
amounting to RMB3,118,926,000 (2012:
RMB2,470,027,000) as such profits are
intended to be reinvested.

in
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26 WA 26 REVENUE
HZE2013F M2012F12A318 LG E - AEENE Turnover of the Group consists of the following
HEREUTSERA ¢ revenues for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012:
BZ12A318LFE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
SHEMEWA Revenue from sales of properties 20,421,811 17,341,932
MEERUA Revenue from property management 182,501 121,469
GEGAL PN Rental income 102,356 35,620
HAh Others 64,587 18,245
20,771,255 17,517,266
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27 HiwA HMBEX S His - F 27 OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES/

H OTHER GAINS - NET
BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
H g A Other income
BT Ah Government grants 63,694 4.433
AEHESREEREWA()  Dividend income on available-for-sale financial assets (c) 6,605 5,042
BIFE AL ES 2 #E@E) Compensation for land requisition
by the government (a) 81,375 -
151,674 9,475
Hinpixx Other expenses
B Donations (4,152) (4,347)
Hitz — B8 Other gains - net
HE—RTFRBIELEN Gain from disposal of a subsidiary (b)/(Note 38)
Wz (b),(FI5E38) 46,000 -
HEWE  MEMBEBELD Losses on disposal of property, plant and
[E518 equipment (384) (55)
BUSYI L E S KBS 2 8EE  Compensation for cancellation of property
sales contracts 9,734 13,686
Hifb Others (9,080) (5)
46,270 13,626
(a) HA2013FE11A278 - EMNFHEERZEER (a) On 27 November 2013, the land use
NEFENFHBAREBEN M EAER rights of new airport road project, owned
HMNTEIEE T B#ERLKE - BRFEER by Changzhou Future Land Real Estate
A ANR#127,986,6007T - RIHBREENE Development Co., Ltd., was recalled by
R A% - ARMS81,375,000 T W EFER o Changzhou Xinbei Land Reserve Center.
Total compensation for the requisition is
RMB127,986,600 and after netting off
the net book value of the assets, a gain of
RMB81,375,000 was recognized.
(b) FA2013F 128138 » AEERE=FHER (b) On 13 December 2013, the Group disposed
NI ESE X AR ATIN100%8E = of its 100% equity interests in Changzhou
AU zE A FR#46,000,0007T © Future Land Guangchang Property Co.,
Ltd. to a third party, resulting in a gain of
RMB46,000,000.
() BEWMARBEIELTIRE ° (c) The dividend income is from unlisted

investment.
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28 BMEIHIHFAX

28 EXPENSES BY NATURE

STAHENA - HEFE KA RITRAX MRS Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

M

marketing expenses and administrative expenses
are analysed as follows:

BZ12A318LFE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
+ b (s MR A Land use rights costs 4,770,651 4,025,794
BB Construction costs 9,101,315 7,684,444
BEAREFE Capitalised interest 770,865 732,328
BER LM INE®Q) Business tax and surcharges (a) 1,166,306 977,980
T LFEYERBERE Accrual of provision for properties held for sale 79,588 -
Y - BEFRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(MI5E7) (Note 7) 19,453 19,977
| EESE (F5E9) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 2,418 1,531
RITFESE Bank charges 18,610 9,304
BIpA (FI530) Staff costs (Note 30) 609,667 478,739
BEE Entertainment expenses 72,568 68,393
ENFER R LA IR Stamp duty and other taxes 56,295 31,739
EXER Professional fees 6,714 32,436
=B Bl & Auditors’ remuneration 3,200 3,280
HEMD Sales commission 151,057 185,620
EErEEER Advertising and publicity costs 309,961 229,603
AERX Rental expenses 36,820 21,897
EZIRE A Travelling expenses 27,805 9,451
HEmEx Other expenses 156,805 119,659
PR C SEEFIL A A Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses
1T B S 485t and administrative expenses 17,360,098 14,632,175
(a) REBRFRETFRAGEREEEYWERARM (@)  The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are

HE AN % EED - k&R RRE

subject to business tax and surcharges.

REEFREN10%E12%84 - Business tax is levied at 5% of revenue from

sale of properties and rental income, while
surcharges are 10% to 12% of business tax
payable.
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29 MENEK - FHE 29 FINANCE COSTS — NET
BZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F 20124
2013 2012
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 K AR Finance costs
—RITER - BARE - — Interest on bank loans, senior notes,
ErEmB MR A trust financing arrangements and borrowings
Hih e migEnERen from other financial institutions
A (1,209,771) (1,015,746)
— B BAREFE — Less: Interest capitalised (Note 8 and Note 15)
(M=E8 R FfT=E15) 682,959 856,034
(526,812) (159,712)
— HEEEHEHAMESWZEEE - Net foreign exchange gains relating to borrowings 63,782 -
—HRE RIREEFEY - Net foreign exchange losses on cash and
BREMIE H B8 %58 cash equivalents (53,663) -
BERK AL (F5E35) Total finance costs (Note 35) (516,693) (159,712)
BRI Finance income
— SRITIFER A EU A (B1EE35) - Interest income on bank deposits (Note 35) 121,793 48,052
Rl & R AN E R Net finance costs (394,900) (111,660)
30 BIAK (BEEEHS) 30 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)
HZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124F
2013 2012
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEMHFE Wages and salaries 477,463 360,519
RIS Pension 39,260 30,776
H bR Other welfare benefit expenses 67,203 50,747
BHRAFRBEERIIRGD ZE) T E Pre-IPO share award scheme
—BiEEEEE (:20) — value of current employees (Note 20) 25,741 36,697
SEAER (H5E28) Charged to statements of income (Note 28) 609,667 478,739
EEEE Number of employees 4,896 4,127

AEEH A T EES 2 INH BT EE RN E RN
TREHEREELSRRAE  BRENK B8R EF
R E AR A &) o AN 5 H 3 M L 4 B KB T8 A&
s,

All Chinese employees of the Group participate in
defined contribution employee social security plans,
including pension, medical, housing and other
welfare benefits, organised and administered by the
governmental authorities. The Group has no other
substantial commitments to employees.
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30 ETARAK (BEESME) @ 30 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (cont'd)
REBBEET  AEEREETIELTEN—TLLHIA According to the relevant regulations, the premiums
ETFBIBRT FRMER FRIERRE REHNTEH and welfare benefit contributions that should
o WSSt S REZBERN - be borne by the Group are calculated based on

percentages of the total salary of employees,
subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the
labour and social welfare authorities.

(a) EERFETHRAENHES (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
BEENTETHRAENMESIIRIOT The directors’ and chief executive's

emoluments are set out below:

BRAH
¥R RERRS
ne Ht2a EXES  BIGTEIMR #EE B3t
Salaries Retirement Pre-IPO
and other  Performance scheme  share award
EEN% Name of director Fees  allowances related bonus contributions scheme Total

ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HZ2013512831ALEE  Year ended 31 December 2013

TERE() Mr. Wang (i) - 1,767 3,200 33 - 5,000
EAR() Tan Weimin (ii) - 720 - 30 - 750
=t Min Yuansong - 1,160 3,300 40 1,203 5,703
2R Liu Yuanman - 867 2,100 33 752 3,752
BN Lv Xiaoping - 1,367 3,100 33 1,805 6,305
KA Huang Maoli - 1,080 1,920 - - 3,000
FEER i) Wang Xiaosong (iii) - 1,367 3,100 33 1,203 5,703
BIE Nie Meisheng 250 - - - - 250
RER Chen Huakang 250 - - - - 250
R Zhu Zengjin 250 - - - - 250
750 8,328 16,720 202 4,963 30,963

EZ20126128318LEE  Year ended 31 December 2012
TEREN) Mr. Wang (i) - 1,784 1,200 16 - 3,000
EHRR Tan Weimin - 507 960 3 1,148 2,648
BRI Min Yuansong - 944 1,140 16 1837 3,937
2R Liu Yuanman - 704 780 16 1,148 2,648
BN Lv Xiaoping - 1,424 960 16 2,756 5,156
BH Huang Maoli - 1,080 - - - 1,080
BE Nie Meisheng 23 - - - - 3
RER Chen Huakang 23 - - - - 23
Rk Zhu Zengjin 23 - - - - 23
69 6,443 5,040 97 6,889 18,538
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30 EIRAK (BESE=EMHE) @

(a)

(b)

(c)

ESRIETHRAENME (8)

(i) RRABMEBITRABRRTRE  H
TRARREP—RESE -

(ii) BARKLAEN2013F10 188 BHEAR
NERITESE -

(i)  FEEMREER2013F10A18FES(E
BARRRIERITES -

EEBREHAL

HZE2013F12A318L5E  AEERER
SHMALTERERSG (201290 : =4) £F
BEZHEER EX 25D TR RB -

HZE2013F K20129F12A31HILFE © &
BEEgAM ARG &R A TRANSERERF
{R] B < VB &5 hn B8 sk 72 hn B8 sl B B AN S @I RS )
RE SR E S E AR EE -

30 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(c)

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Cont'd)

(i) The chief executive of the Company
is Mr. Wang, who is also one of the
directors of the Company.

(i) Mr. Tan Weimin resigned as executive
director of the Company with effect
from 18 October 2013.

(iii) Mr. Wang Xiaosong was appointed
as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 18
October 2013.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2013 include
five (2012: three) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above.

During the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012, no director or any of the
five highest paid individuals received any
emolument from the Group as an inducement
to join, upon joining the Group, leave the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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31 FisHiAxX 31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F 20124F
2013 2012
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
& HATIS R Current income tax
— R E I ER - PRC land appreciation tax 866,582 636,150
— REERER — PRC corporate income tax 761,242 535,545
§ 1,627,824 1,171,695
\ EIEFTISHE (MF5E25) Deferred income tax (Note 25) (108,495) 61,082
FEINTHEHERE Total income tax charged for the year 1,519,329 1,232,777
REEBRFTEHAIA B FTEE A RIRE AR S E S The income tax on the Group’s profit before income
TEARMEBEBEGHOHETENERSTE © L&Y tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
mr arise using the enacted tax rate of the home
country of the companies within the Group as
follows:
BHZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
AR®T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MR TS 55 A R)E Profit before income tax 3,236,466 2,818,161
AR £ i IR E T PRC land appreciation tax (866,582) (636,150)
2,369,884 2,182,011
R25%EATEMERGTESNATER  Income tax calculated at statutory rate of 25% 592,471 545,503
AR HE A (a) Non-deductible expenses (a) 63,730 17,734
FERRRE U A Non-taxable income (1,651) (1,260)
BABAEARERNTISER Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (15,147) -
KRERBELEHRBBEEN Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets
MISEE 570 22,845
BEFERIERE Prior year tax adjustments 1,003 (832)
AR FE AR PRC withholding tax 11,771 12,637
AR IR E R PRC land appreciation tax 866,582 636,150
Fristim x5 Total income tax expense 1,519,329 1,232,777
(a) REEMMmE T HRAYEEREEL (a) Non-deductible expenses for income tax
EENFBEHY  FERMERNHEZIET purposes mainly resulted from interest
BB EENFAS - expense on senior notes, the expense

in relation to the share award and
non-deductible entertainment expense.
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31

FrEfiExX @

EEFNBH

REBARUEEFHERIELEE  FAKEERAE
AR B B AR RORF (20124 - )

HEIEERER

REFECEMERE((REMBERED A%
BETRPEABHNFRBERNEERFRER
25% °

CEMSHEREERMBAUARTPFREERCES
200851 A1HREAHEN W EPBIFING BT
i8R BRI S BEAN10% M TEFIEL - i 72008
FIATBREEN KRS IRAFAER P HMNZIEN
o RIBEPEBEEBITUNTBROLHE  AEEE
RERBIRNES - Al ERABIRMS%ENIIE -
HE2013F12A31BLFE  ASBEpHEPHERE
EEHINDRFIZS %O LT IRP EBEBINHEE
AR #11,771,0007T (20124 = A R #12,637,000
TL) o AEERERHZEFRATARMNBKREERTE
BESTERARRRDERZETRRNKRISHE
F o

T IBER

B+ 1 IR (B A SR B WD R PR S SRR = AT FR A 2
(BRETHEREREERLMAAMEREFD B
T B ERN F30% 260%H) 2 M B R U - IR
BHFBRAIIEMEHRMA -

31

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont'd)
Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits in
Hong Kong during the year (2012: Nil).

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
("CIT Law"), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiaries located in mainland China is 25%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by
a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside PRC for earnings generated
beginning 1 January 2008 and undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. A lower
5% withholding tax rate may be applied when
the immediate holding companies are established
in Hong Kong according to the tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
accrued for PRC withholding tax with amount of
RMB11,771,000 (2012: RMB12,637,000) based on
the tax rate of 5% on a portion of the earnings
generated by its PRC entities. The Group controls
the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that a majority
of these earnings will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including lease charges for land use rights and all
property development expenditures, and is included
in the consolidated statement of income as income
tax expense.
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32 BREAEF 32 EARNINGS PER SHARE
FRERERTHIRAAREZREGA AEEAREZFE Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
BRUAFERNDETEBRINELSHETE - by dividing the profit of the Group attributable to

equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
‘ 2013 2012
- RAFERIEE AFEG Consolidated profit attributable to equity holders

BHAE (AR¥TIT) of the Company (RMB'000) 981,262 930,819

BB TR E (TH) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ("000) 5,668,000 4,368,167
BIRERERN (ARET) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.17 0.21

1

BREZE2013F K2012F12 A31H IEFE W (T As there were no dilutive options and other dilutive
BEERE IR E 4 BT EE BB B BT R - ) potential shares in issue during the years ended
BREERNEGRERZTAER - 31 December 2013 and 2012, diluted earnings per

share is the same as basic earnings per share.
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33 KA 33 DIVIDENDS
BZ128310LFE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
¥R R HARR B & E AR Proposed final dividend of RMB0.05
AR#0.057T (2012: RMBO0.05) per ordinary share
(20124« AR¥0.0570) 283,400 283,400

34

FARAWES KPS (2012F : F) -

MR2014F3F17BRITHES SR L EFERE
ARG EERIEE2013FERPBREFR LM A
R¥0.057T #0800 B L F B 75 TR ok [ B A e
MRS - HFEREN AR EERRAFASHER
BREAHZE2014F12A31B EFEMNRMDRER
Bt o

MR2013F5 422 B BT AR RBEEF RS 4E
202F REREFR LB/ ARKCOST  HAR
#283,400,0007T ° sZMEEMR2013FRLI LT -

ARREEARELEER

AAAA2010F4 8238 =M A - H E2013F12
A3MBLEFE  ARAHEEABEEEINAEAR
#£225,822,0007T (20124 : AR ¥4,058,0007T) °
ERARRFBHREP AL -

34

No interim dividend was declared during the year
(2012: Nil).

At a Board meeting held on 17 March 2014,
the directors proposed a final dividend for 2013
of RMBO0.05 per ordinary share using the share
premium account. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of share premium for the year ending 31 December
2014 upon approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The final dividend in respect of 2012 of RMB0.05
per ordinary share, amounting to RMB283,400,000
was approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 May 2013. The amount was
paid in 2013.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated on 23 April 2010.
The loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted
to RMB225,822,000 (2012: RMB4,058,000), which
have been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.
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35 REEE (FiA) /R 35 CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ETSFRRIHE Profit before income tax 3,236,466 2,818,161
: BT SIEEL AR Adjustments for:
§ — & (M528) - Depreciation (Note 28) 19,453 19,977
\ — B8 (M5E28) - Amortisation (Note 28) 2,418 1,531
—HEDE  BEME ~ Losses on disposal of property, plant and
EEMEE (f5E27) equipment (Note 27) 384 55
- HE—RTFAREENRE — Gains from disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27)
(Pt &E27) (46,000) -
— BRRFEERRN, 26 — Pre-IPO share award scheme expenses (Note 20)
&I (FfRE20) 25,741 36,697
—BEMEA R BEKE — Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 8)
(P5E8) (37,839) (31,086)
- REIFE (NERHEE) - Accrual of provision for properties held
MEFHREE (MiE28) (or under development) for sale (Note 28) 79,588 -
- ZIFE (NERHEE) - Reversal of provision for properties held
YRR D (or under development) for sale (Note 15)
(PizE15) (160,779) (132,988)
) YN - Share of results of an associated company
(PfFzE10) (Note 10) 11,422 5,110
—AftHESREERSKA — Dividend income on available-for-sale financial
(BF7E27) assets (Note 27) (6,605) (5,042)
— BB (FF5E29) — Finance costs (Note 29) 526,812 159,712
— BEEHBNE RS FE — Net foreign exchange gains relating to borrowings (63,782) -
-~ HRe RIREEENERN - Net foreign exchange losses on cash and
[E 5 B8 3 58 cash equivalents 53,663 -
— FI B YA (FF3E29) — Interest income (Note 29) (121,793) (48,052)
BEEEED Changes in working capital
— B R IER AR I — Restricted cash relating to operating activities
R (ME18) (Note 18) (109,906) (603,964)
— ME AR FIE - Prepayments for leasehold land 1,028,349 (1,624,692)
- RIHEREREEDE — Properties held or under development for sale
(TBEEXEFE) (excluding capitalised interest) (3,509,090) 642,330
— B 5 RHEMBEYIER - Trade and other receivables and prepayments
AR FIE (646,673) 57,861
— BEYEEMNFIE - Advances from pre-sale of properties (1,428,827) (1,111,151)
— B MEMERNZIEA - Trade and other payables 228,240 2,977,485
WEES) (FTR),/ FiisHE Cash (used in)/generated from operations (918,758) 3,161,944
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35 REEDH (A FBRE w0 35

RAEHRERERA - HEVE - BEMRBNHME
HIRBHE

CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS (cont'd)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

BZE12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
2013%F 20124
2013 2012
AR®EF T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREEE (BFE7) Net book value (Note 7) 16,043 890
HEME - MEMEEBESER  Losses on disposal of property,

518 (fE27) plant and equipment (Note 27) (384) (55)
HE—MFAREENEIE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (79) -
HEWE  BEMREFTSHIE Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 15,580 835

36 &R 36
(CRN/ESZE S35

R2013F K2012F12 8318 » HMAEAER
EHAZAOMERE I HIOT ¢

COMMITMENTS

(a) Property development expenditure
commitments

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, property
development expenditure committed but
not yet incurred are as follows:

®W12H31H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR® T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRI #E R B E Contracted but not provided for 11,748,357 8,376,039

i 3 B 2R G PR 2 A Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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36 AIE () 36 COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

(b) REHERRE (b) Operating lease commitments
FA2013F K2012F 128318 » Bt& TUATRA As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
BUEREHERANBATEFTMELSN K future aggregate minimum rental expenses
RxEAES HAEHERA A TR - in respect of certain office buildings held

under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable in the following periods:

MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within 1 year 12,234 13,399
—Zh%F 1 to 5 years 24,306 10,432
hFE After 5 years 25,908 -
62,448 23,831
() WEAE (c) Investment commitments
20134 2012128318 & &K E W As at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
N committed investments are as follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
M HESREENRERE Committed investments in available-for-sale
financial assets 15,000 55,000
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36 ARAIE @)
(d) KEHEEKES

R2013F K20125E12 8318 » g REE
AT B S EMEMELEN R KR
RS W B RS AT BERIURER -

36 COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

(d) Operating lease rentals receivable

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings are receivable
in the following periods:

MW12831H

As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012
ARET ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within 1 year 83,349 54,217
—Zh%F 1 to 5 years 171,150 152,780
hFE After 5 years 57,044 118,774
311,543 325,771

37 MBEREIEAEE

(a) EBBMEMER

R2013F K2012F12 8318 » REERILE
BEREVSEREEANKAGBENOT

37 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) Guarantees on mortgage facilities

The Group had the following contingent
liabilities in respect of financial guarantees
on mortgage facilities as at 31 December
2013 and 2012:

M12831A

As at 31 December
2013 20124
2013 2012
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RAEBVENETERN Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for

RIBEE (B A IER certain purchasers of the Group's properties 2,980,716 3,993,685

i 3 B 2R G PR 2 A Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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37 HMBERRIBEEE @

(a)

(b)

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited

RIERMENER (8)

AEECAAEBYEE TERTHRITH
E UHERNERETREER - ZS5E
RERTIREERL : (VEHEMARES
REBRAEPFELAER - LB —REERE
REKBTFEIME=FRNEL - WHZIBIER
TR (VW EBEREEIZBER -

REBEERGR EXFERERRBER
B AREAABERRTEEERERNIZ
BATBREFMNERTE MAKEERE
BEWHERMENEERERAAE - A5E
MERBARBRBAMERKR EFTRR
BERER MR/ Bk - AR
EBEFENUBRERALIFEKX -

DEER

R2013F &2012F12A831H » AEBK TR
AIFLIE R (Ma¥22) HEERREE TEER -
BEERASTRARERAVBEREMNERE
jﬁ% °
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37

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Guarantees on mortgage facilities
(Cont'd)

The Group has arranged bank financing
for certain purchasers of the Group's
properties and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchaser for
repayments. Such guarantees will terminate
upon the earlier of (i) the issue of the real
estate ownership certificate by government
authorities to the purchaser which will
generally occur within an average period of
two to three years from the completion of
the guarantee registration and submitted to
the mortgage bank; or (ii) the satisfaction
of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default of mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principal
together with accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. The Group's guarantee
period starts from the date of grant of
mortgage. The directors consider that the
likelihood of default of payments by the
purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value is
immaterial.

Corporate guarantees

There are certain corporate guarantees
provided by the Group’s subsidiaries for
each other in respect of borrowings (Note
22) as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The
directors consider that the subsidiaries are
able to sufficiently financially resourced to
settle their obligations.
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38 HEFLARKRER

(a) HEEMNHFHESEXRRAF

H20135F12A138 -
125,156,000 HER E M ES EEFR

NEIHI100%REHE -

NS

38 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS

(a) Disposal of Changzhou Future Land
Guangchang Property Co., Ltd.

A A B On 13 December 2013, the Group disposed

of its 100% equity interests in Changzhou
Future Land Guangchang Property Co., Ltd.
at RMB125,156,000.

ARBEFTT
RMB’000
B8 & Cash received 90,000

B E TR AR R A B W R Receivable in connection with the disposal of
a subsidiary 35,156
BERE Total consideration 125,156
HEFEE Net assets disposed of 79,156
HEMEKE Gain on disposal 46,000
P ERENEERSBRENT ¢ The aggregated assets and liabilities in
respect of the above disposal were as

follows:
ARBEFIT
RMB’000
REMRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 157
TETFRIE Prepayments 6
B 5 ME Ath UG IE Trade and other receivables 41,545
TIFESNEEEEYE Properties held or under development for sale 38,022
M - BEFRE Property, plant and equipment 79
RIEFTBHEE Deferred income tax assets 4,716
B 5 M E th fE 1 58 Trade and other payables (5,369)
HEFEE Net assets disposed of 79,156
BUER® Cash received 90,000
BTN ETFRARNRERESEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the

subsidiary disposed of (157)
HEZBELFEESTA Net cash inflow from the disposal 89,843

B BIZRAMAT Future Land Development Holdings Limited | F-127
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39 BELRS 39 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) BELSEBRERESNER (@) Name and relationship with related
parties

=L BF

Name Relationship

FEE RARNERBERNLES

Mr. Wang The controlling shareholder and a director of the Company

TREM A TRENREKE

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
IENBBEEEARAR

Jiangsu Future Land Shiye Group. Ltd.
PEBZHEMEREERLDF

Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
LTt EIEER AR

Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate Co., Ltd.
ERLEREREARAA

Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd.
BEEIRERERAA

Hong Kong Achievement Development Ltd.
SHRIRKBR AT

Heroic Time Global Ltd.

ARIBRAR

Exalt Creation Ltd.

EERBERBERAA

Hong Kong Flourishing Development Ltd.
BEREBFERBRAA

Hong Kong Perpetual Development Ltd.

ﬁiﬁﬁéﬁgﬂﬁﬁlﬁf‘j Future Land Development Holdings Limited
— =443k 2013 Annual Report

Family member of Mr. Wang
FREFRND

A company controlled by Mr. Wang
REENEERE]

An associated company of the Group
TEBEWGERE

A jointly controlled entity of the Group
KRAHF AT

A subsidiary of the Company
KRAIEFAF

A subsidiary of the Company
RRREF AR

A subsidiary of the Company
RRBHF AR

A subsidiary of the Company
REEK)TFRF]

A subsidiary of the Group
REENT LA

A subsidiary of the Group
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39 BEAIXRZ @)

(b) HRBEEIHNXS
F5EM

REE2013F128318IEFE - REEETT

TUTEERTRS

39 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont'd)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Group

During the year ended 31 December 2013,

: the Group has the following related party
transactions:

BZ12A31B8LLEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR®TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(i) MEAESEM (i) Fundings to a related party
— e B E M E - Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate
BRAF Co., Ltd. 362,565 -
(ii) 2R B BAES BN (ii) Fundings from a related party
— BB ZHEE - Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate
FEBARAE Development Co., Ltd. 230,000 -
(iii) S E R (iii)Sales of services
- EEB W EE - Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate
AR AR Development Co., Ltd.
3,240 -
(ivEEEE (iv)Transfer of liabilities
—IHFWMEFEEEBR AR - Jiangsu Future Land Shiye Group. Ltd. - 44,000
(v) EFEERERETHRS (v) Gain from transaction with non-controlling
gz (FEEa0) interests (Note 40)
—FRERTENEE - Mr. Wang and Mr. Wang Xiaosong 246,942 -
(vi) HABESBEEHNYE (vi)  Occupation of properties owned

REBETFTFRARMEETENE LS
EMBEEEBRI20EFANET
MEELERS:  BHATNEIMNE
e (BEZE2013F12A318LFE
EIED)

by a related party

Some subsidiaries of the Group
occupied certain properties with
total gross floor areas of 720 square
meters owned by Mr. Wang Xiaosong
for operational use, which is free of
charge (Same for the year ended 31
December 2013).

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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39 BERXRS @ 39 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)
(b) EHBEEINRS (8) (b) Transactions with related parties
(Cont'd)
(vii) FEEEE RN (vi) Key management compensation

?EEMEE BRES (MITHIEHR
17) - B HEE - BIBEFIAEEBYIE -

Key management includes directors
(executive and non-executive), chief

financial officer, vice presidents
and assistant presidents. The
compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is
shown below:

EﬁEIEEﬁ%EHIM’EH%IgﬁfiE
2RI

BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
2013% 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HehEtEHESREF Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 45,263 36,597
BB 2B Post-employment benefits - 48
45,263 36,645
ARQF Company
BZ128310LFE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR%ETR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(i) BEFESBEX (i) Fundings to a related party
— BAERERBRAT — Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd. 2,970,844 717,787
— AR ERBRAA — Hong Kong Achievement Development Ltd. 143,441 -
3,114,285 717,787
(i) BEELFBX (ii) Paid on behalf of a related party
— RRIRIKER QA — Heroic Time Global Ltd. 11 _
— FAIBRAA — Exalt Creation Ltd. 11 _
— BERBRERERAT — Hong Kong Flourishing Development Ltd. 10 -
—BBEFERARAQT - Hong Kong Perpetual Development Ltd. 10 -
— BB ERERAT — Hong Kong Achievement Development Limited = 60
42 60

F-130 ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited

— =% 2013 Annual Report



B Ot R R EE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

39 BEAIXRZ @)

() EELSHEH

39

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

(c) Related-party balances

rEH Group
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(i) EWEEAFIE (FfaE16) (i) Amount due from a related party (Note 16)
— BB A E - Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BRAF] 362,565 -
— B8 ZHEERE - Shanghai Wan zhi Cheng Real Estate
HRAF] Development Co., Ltd. = 180,000
362,565 180,000
(ii) FEISREE S FE (HfaE24) (ii) Amount due to a related party (Note 24)
— B8 ZREERE - Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate
AR AA Development Co., Ltd. 50,000 -
FNE Company
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20135 20124F
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(i) FEWBIES=E (HEE16) (i) Amounts due from related parties (Note 16)
— BARBRERAR AR - Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd. 3,688,631 717,787
— BB ERARAT - Hong Kong Achievement Development Limited 143,501 60
— ZREREGRAT] — Heroic Time Global Ltd. 11 _
— FABRAF — Exalt Creation Ltd. 11 _
—BARREREBRAF - Hong Kong Flourishing Development Ltd. 10 -
— BEBEFERERAA - Hong Kong Perpetual Development Ltd. 10 -
3,832,174 717,847

FEMFNFE 1S B SE T SRR IR IR - 2B H

FERBAZER -

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

The amounts due from and due to related
parties are unsecured, bear no interest and
are repayable on demand.
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40 EFEHIESETHRS

201398 23H -

BEREBRA
20,000,000 * WEIWIEAEEF A

1) H96.22% % - X 51 -

HAbE#E SRS -

%ﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁlﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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AEBMIABEAAERE
200,000,000t AR EE NI BRI EBR QA
([8#E]) 590. 91%%% EEA—RATMNIME
AR RAR AEIRELAERTHE
Mﬁ'ﬁiiéﬁ;ﬁﬁ HEHRRERGAHMRTERARE
Al BEEE
BEREEFAREMNSHERERAT ([FMNE
BEKABAEETR

A REMNEEAFEESIERLLIE6.22% /R =
0.57% o BN REQ R EEEFTEEHERGES
MNEFFEERBTEAR246,942,000 K = 5B 1E

40

TRANSACTIONS WITH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 23 September 2013, the Group injected a
capital of RMB200,000,000 to acquire 90.91%
equity interest of Changzhou Future Land Wande
Investment Co., Ltd. (“"Wande"”), a company
spinned off from Changzhou Future Land Wanbo
Investment Co., Ltd., which is wholly owned by
Mr. Wang Zhenhua and Mr. Wang Xiaosong, but
not a subsidiary of the Group, with its original
total paid-in capital of RMB20,000,000. Wande
directly holds 6.22% equity interest of Changzhou
Wealthzone Development Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou
Wealthzone"”), a subsidiary of the Group. After the
transaction, Wande became the subsidiary of the
Group, and the non-controlling interest portion of
Changzhou Wealthzone decreased from 6.22%
to 0.57%. The difference between fair value of
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of Changzhou
Wealthzone of RMB246,942,000 representing a
gain is recorded in other reserves.



B Ot AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

41 FREHE

AEBETFRAN2013F K20129F12 A31BHFIEE

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31

T December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
R12A31BEERER DL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRITA
NAEH AL YA SMEE BRRE 20135 20125 B
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARBTRT AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
TETANERBERA A 199637268 5,000 5,000 56.94% 53.70% YEER
Jiangsu Future Land Property 26 March 1996 Property management
Management Co., Ltd.
MREREEERAR 1996464 14H 600,000 600,000 97.15% 91.62% MEFELHE
Future Land Holdings Co., Ltd. 14 June 1996 Development and sale of
properties
LEIERG AR AR 19974108108 1,593,187 1,593,187 57.18% 53.93% MEREREE
Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. 10 October 1997 Development and sale of
properties
BNFHEERBEARA ) 199854 A26H 1,100,000 1,100,000 54.78% 51.66% MERERHEE
Changzhou Future Land Real 26 April 1998 Development and sale of
Estate Development Co., Ltd.(a) properties
BNERERERLOF 200254 A27H 321,800 321,800 99.43% 93.78% MEMELHE
Changzhou Wealthzone 27 April 2002 Development sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
HRMBEIEREERAA 200249A9H 120,000 120,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERES
Nanjing Future Land Chuangzhi 9 September 2002 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
TENHAIERMERRAR 20034 1A29H 10,000 10,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERHEE
Shanghai Future Land Chuangzhi 29 January 2003 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 210,000) 210,000) properties

HiH R IERBMR AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited | F-133
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A31AEMERER Dt
Percentage of attributable

equity interest as at
31 December

EES BATH
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 2013% 201256 EEEH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB’000
N ERRHEBRAR 200343 A419H 410,000 410,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Shanghai Future Land Wanjia Real 19 March 2003 Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. properties
LEFREENEREERL 20035114278 500 500 56.75% 5352% MEER
Shanghai Future Land WanJ|a 27 November 2003 Property management
Property Service Co., Ltd.
BRI ERERE 200497 16H 350,000 350,000 56.70% 53.48% MEREREE
BRAF) 16 September 2004 Development and sale of
Changzhou Xinlong Chuangzhi properties
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (a)
FNIRERERERRLD 200459A17H 100,000 100,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Suzhou Future Land Wanjia Real 17 September 2004 Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. properties
BN ERRERAARAF 2005454200 3,000 3,000 55.74% 52.57%  BEHE KET
Changzhou Future Land Wan Jia 20 May 2005 Construction design and
Construction Design Co., Ltd. consulting
FMBERHEREERAR 2005657278 10,000 10,000 55.09% 51.96% MEREREE
Changzhou Dingjia Property Real 27 May 2005 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 100,000) 100,000) properties
BINFARBEHEREERARF 20056128278 10,000 10,000 56.99% 5375% MERERHEE
Changzhou Future Land Dongjun 27 December 2005 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Real Estate Development 100,000) 100,000) properties

Co., Ltd.

— =% 2013 Annual Report
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41 FRAEFHE @

AT

Company name

EMAYL, HIAH
Date of
incorporation/
establishment

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A31BEERER DL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EEH BEITA

RUFRREERER DA

Kunshan Future Land Chuangzhi

Development Co., Ltd.

BN EELEEREBRAA
Changzhou Future Land Assets
Operation and Management

Co., Ltd.

EMNFRENEMEREERAA
Changzhou Future Land Zhidi Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BNFHESEZRERAR
Changzhou Future Land

Guangchang Property Co., Ltd.

BNESRAERFERAR

(REMZATSREERAT)
Changzhou Jia Chi Auto Parts

Co., Ltd.

EMNERFHEHEREERAR
Changzhou Wanfang Future
Land Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.

200644578
7 April 2006

2006 10H24H
24 October 2006

20064128138
13 December 2006

2006128138
13 December 2006

200751 H16H
16 January 2007

200762 H6H
6 February 2007

TMER BRRE 2013% 2012F TEEH
Authorised  Issued and
or registered fully paid
capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
290,000 290,000 54.83% 51.71%  MERBREE
(2012: (2012: Development and sale of
300,000) 300,000) properties
1,000 1,000 56.94% 5370% BEEERER
Asset operation and
management
10,000 10,000 54.78% 51.66% MEREREE
(2012: (2012: Development and sale of
90,000) 90,000) properties
62,000 62,000 - 91.62% MEHERHEE
Development and sale of
properties
15,000 15,000 54.78% 51.66%  WEMHAM
Marketing research of
properties
650,000 650,000 54.84% 51.72% WMEREREE
(2012: (2012: Development and sale of
30,000) 30,000) properties
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41 FREHE @ 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’d)
RR2A3MBEEREG DL

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EEH BEITA

Ak ERL R HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
- Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
{ ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
FMNBREERBERAR 2007%2A6AR 220,000 220,000 97.15% 91.62% MEMERHE
Changzhou Fu Long Real Estate 6 February 2007 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
FNAHEBREZRRAF 200755A16H 165,000 165,000 97.15% 91.62% MEMBERBE
Changzhou Future Land Wanbo 16 May 2007 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 615,000) 615,000) properties
PERFBEMEREARAT@)  2007F5A31F 400,000 400,000 57.18% 5393% MERBREE
Shanghai Dongjun Real Estate 31 May 2007 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. (a) properties
BHMHEREEERAT 2007F8F14H 420,000 420,000 57.18% 53.93% WEREBLNE
Wausxi Future Land Wanjia Property 14 August 2007 Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. properties
BMFHAIEEEARAT 2007104116 500,000 500,000 57.18% 53.93% MEREREE
Suzhou Future Land Chuangjia 11 October 2007 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
BNEREFHAERA 200851A18H 1,000 1,000 57.18% 5393%  HHARE
Changzhou Wanijia Property 18 January 2008 Consulting

Consultancy Co., Ltd.
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A3MAREREE I
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EEH BEITA

Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 2013% 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREREZARAE 20084 1424H 220,000 220,000 97.15% 91.62% YMERERHE
Future Land Wanbo Property 24 January 2008 Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. properties
DA EEEERAF 2008537208 760,000 760,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Shanghai Future Land Chuangjia 20 March 2008 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
BMFHRARHERRAR 200956 A4H 360,000 360,000 56.99% 53.75% MEREREE
Changzhou Future Land 4 June 2009 Development and sale of
Dongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
MRIHEAIEEHREFRAR 200967H2H 18,000 18,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Nanjing Future Land Chuangjia 2 July 2009 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
BHFHEBEHEERAR)  2009F9A11H 700,000 700,000 54.78% 51.66% MEREREE
Changzhou Future Land Jinjun 11 September 2009 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (a) 470,000) 470,000) properties
BHmEREEERARA) 2009411 /26H 20,000 20,000 54.78% 51.66% MEFERBE
Changzhou Hengfu Property 26 November 2009 Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. (a) properties
BHFAEERMERBRAR@ 2009124100 700,000 700,000 54.78% 51.66% MERERIEE
Changzhou Future Land Wanjia 10 December 2009 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (a) properties
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A3MAREREE I
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EES BATH
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 2013% 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB’000
BHFREERMERRAR 2009%12A28H 800,000 800,000 97.15% 91.62% MERERHE
Changzhou Future Land Hongye 28 December 2009 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
BRINEERHERRR 201051A13H 310,000 310,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERHEE
Nanjing Future Land Wanj|a Real 13 January 2010 Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. properties
BMFHAIEFLEREERAR 2010614220 520,000 520,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Changzhou Future Land Chuangjia 22 January 2010 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
LENHAIEEEERAR 2010517268 10,000 10,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERHEE
Shanghai Future Land Chuanghong 26 January 2010 (2012 (2012 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 420,000) 420,000) properties
EMFRRERARABRD 201042 A4H 500 500 97.15% 91.62% AR
Changzhou Future Land Keda 4 February 2010 Consulting
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd.
M EARERFAARD 2010244 500 500 97.15% 91.62% MEREREE
Changzhou Future Land J|ngd|an 4 February 2010 Development and sale of
Architectural Design Co., Ltd. properties
B BEHERRL A 2010537268 820,000 820,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERHEE

Shanghai Future Land Jinjun Real
Estate Co., Ltd.

F-138
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41 FRAEFHE @

AT

Company name

MR/ R A

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A3MBEERER DI
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRITA
TMER BRRE 2013% 2012F TEEH

BHFHAIERMEERRA))
Wuxi Future Land Chuangzhi Real

Estate Co., Ltd. (a)

BN EREHERRRF

Changzhou Future Land

Wansheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.

ERLEBERBRAR(D)
Hong Kong Prosperity
Development Ltd. (b)

BREAMERBEBRRAD)

Hong Kong Achievement

Development Limited (b)

EMTHEREEERERAA
Changzhou Future Land Injoy
Commercial Management

Co., Ltd.

TENNEBEEERRAR
Shanghai Future Land Wansheng

Property Co., Ltd.

BRI A EERRLF

Nanjing Future Land Yunsheng

Real Estate Co., Ltd.

201045 A6H
6 May 2010

2010F6A12H
12 June 2010

201058 A30H
30 August 2010

20108 H30H
30 August 2010

201011 A8H
8 November 2010

2010 11A108

10 November 2010

201011 H198

19 November 2010

Authorised  Issued and
or registered fully paid
capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
500,000 500,000 57.18% 5393% WEREREE
(2012: (2012: Development and sale of
200,000) 200,000) properties
120,000 120,000 97.53% 91.98% MEALRHEE
Development and sale of
properties
10 - 100% 100% HERH

Investment company

10 3 100% 100% 1REAA
Investment company

10,000 10,000 97.15% 91.62% MEFEERHE
Development and sale of
properties

10,000 10,000 97.15% 91.62% MEREREE
Development and sale of
properties

860,000 860,000 55.02% 51.89%  MEMERHE
Development and sale of
properties
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A31REERER DL
Percentage of attributable

equity interest as at
31 December

EES BITH
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR EEBERRAA] 2010511 A30H 10,000 10,000 97.15% 91.62% HEAEEEE
Changzhou Future Land Hongye 30 November 2010 Department store
Baihuo Co., Ltd. management
BONREBEEERLT 201151768 500,000 500,000 97.24% 91.17% MERELHE
Wauxi Future Land Wanbo Property 6 January 2011 Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. properties
TEMHNEREEBRAR 201143A22H 10,000 10,000 75.96% 71.64% MERERBEE
Jintan Future Land Wanjun 22 March 2011 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
ROMHEBEEERA 2011434280 420,000 420,000 97.15% 91.62% WEFERREE
Changsha Future Land Wanbo 28 March 2011 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
BMENBEERLF 201154/22H 500 500 97.15% 91.62% EEHEERE
Changzhou Injoy Baihuo Co., Ltd. 22 April 2011 Department store
management
e R ERRAR 2011454104 589,000 589,000 55.02% 51.89% MERERES
Shanghai Future Land Chuangyu 10 May 2011 (2012: (2012 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 30,000) 30,000) properties
RUFBAZEHRERRLR 2011567208 460,000 460,000 57.18% 53.93% MEREREE
Kunshan Future Land Chuanghong 20 June 2011 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 370,000) 370,000) properties

%ﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁlﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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HZE20134%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2013

41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A31BEERER DL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EES BRITA
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIFHESEEBRAR 2011464230 100,000 100,000 77.16% 72.78% < YEREREE
Kunshan Future Land Chuangyu 23 June 2011 Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
IR SEAREEERAR  2011F9A7H 1,000 1,000 54.78% 51.66%  #¥  EEMEZEERMN
Changzhou Future Land Rui Yi 7 September 2011 RRBHERS
International Co., Ltd. Property, hotel
and conference
management;
apartment leasing
services
FMERETSHEERAF 20115 9A158 5,000 5,000 54.78% 51.66%  MEmISHEH
Changzhou Jiafeng Market 15 September 2011 Marketing research of
Research Co., Ltd. properties
Y BEBNEERERLA 2011F9A21R - - - 91.62% MEER
Changsha Wanbo Property 21 September 2011 (2012: (2012: Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 500) 500)
BMEHERESAEERER 201264450 5,000 5,000 97.15% 91.62% HEAEEEE
NS 5 April 2012 Department store
Changzhou Injoy International management
Plaza Commercial Management
Co., Ltd.
RENBEREEBRAT 2012590 400,000 400,000 97.15% 91.62% MEMERHE
Wuhan Future Land Hongsheng 9 May 2012 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited F-141
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F-142

41 FRAFE @0 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A3MAREREE I
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BATH
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 2013% 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB’000
HEERFEHEREERAR 20095F9A7H 638,000 638,000 55.02% 51.89% MEREREE
Shanghai Fuming Real Estate 7 September 2009 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 338,000) 338,000) properties
EMAREEHEERERAR 201266198 - - - 99.16% MERERHE
Changzhou Kaisheng Real Estate 19 June 2012 (2012: (2012: Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. 20,000) 20,000) properties
FNFWAIEREFR A 201248 A13H 300,000 300,000 57.18% 53.93% MEREREE
Suzhou Future Land Chuangheng 13 August 2012 (2012 (2012: Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd 20,000) 20,000) properties
LEERENBEERERAR 20126128310 5,000 5,000 97.15% 9162% AERMEERE
Shanghai Qingpu Injoy 31 December 2012 Department store
Commercial Management management
Co., Ltd.
EFHEREEEARD 2013F1716H 360,000 360,000 55.02% - MERERHEE
Shanghai Future Land BaOJun 16 January 2013 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
BNERREEERRAA] 2013F1A228 450,000 450,000 97.15% - REEEEE
Changzhou Wansheng Property 22 January 2013 Department store
Management Co., Ltd. management
BRINAEEREFRAR 2013F3A14E 550,000 550,000 55.02% - DEREREE

Nanjing Future Land Chuanglong
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

%ﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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41 FRAFE @ 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A31BEERER D
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRITA
Ak ERL R HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
FNEERFHEERERAF 2013%5415H 452,000 180,802 98.57% - DEREREE
Changzhou Future Land Huisheng 15 May 2013 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
BRI ERRERAR 2013558158 612,000 612,000 98.57% - DEREREE
Changzhou Future Land Yuesheng 15 May 2013 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
BB EERERAF 2013F5A158 756,000 303,309 98.57% - DEREREE
Changzhou Future Land 15 May 2013 Development and sale of
Zhuosheng Development properties
Co., Ltd.
ERRFBERAFD) 201355R28H 300 - 100.00% - RERH
Heroic Time Global Limited (b) 28 May 2013 Investment company
BT EREERAR 2013%6A78 270,000 270,000 100.00% - DERBREE
Zhenjiang Future Land Kaisheng 7 June 2013 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
BN AEHEEREBRAA 2013F6520H 1,228,800 1,122,577 36.62% (c) - YERBEREE
Suzhou Future Land Kaituo 20 June 2013 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
FNBEEHEERBRAR 201346 720H 450,000 170,013 100.00% - DERBREE
Suzhou Future Land Bosheng 20 June 2013 Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. properties
FEIBR (D) 201356A27H 300 - 100.00% - RELT
Exalt Creation Limited (b) 27 June 2013 Investment company

39 % R Z KRG BR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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41 FRAFE @0 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A31BEERER DL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BITH
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
FIFHAIREXERLA 201357818 30,000 30,000 40.03% (d) NERERHEE
Suzhou Future Land Chuangsheng 1 July 2013 Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. properties
B R ELEYNG() 201357A16H 8 - 100.00% RERT
Hong Kong Flourishing 16 July 2013 Investment company
Development Limited (b)
EEETERBRAF(D) 201357R168 8 - 100.00% RERTF
Hong Kong Perpetual 16 July 2013 Investment company
Development Limited (b)
FNENBRERERAR 2013F7A198 5,000 5,000 97.15% AEREEE
Suzhou Injoy Commercial 19 July 2013 Department store
Management Co., Ltd. management
BMEEERERARAR 201358728H 2,000 2,000 100.00% AR
Changzhou Derun Consultancy 28 August 2013 Consulting
Co., Ltd.
BHFAERRERRAR 20135F9H9H 220,000 220,000 90.91% RARF
Changzhou Future Land Wande 9 September 2013 Investment company
Investment Co., Ltd.
MMFHAEE HEREBRAR  201359727H 320,000 320,000 57.18% MERERBE
Hangzhou Future Land 27 September 2013 Development and sale of
Chuanghong Real Estate properties
Development Co., Ltd.
MMFASEFEHEREBRAR  2013510A8H 100,000 100,000 57.18% MEBBEREE

Hangzhou Future Land Dingghong 8 October 2013

Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

— =% 2013 Annual Report
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A31BEERER DL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EES BRITA
Ak MR/ R A HfER BERE 20135 20125 FBEE
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARETR  AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
KRR ESEEMEERAF 2013F 108258 720,000 365,355 100.00% - YEERREE
Zhangjiagang Future Land 25 October 2013 Development and sale of
Dingsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. properties
MMFAEEE EREBRAR 2013511 A6H 100,000 100,000 57.18% - DERRREE
Hangzhou Future Land 6 November 2013 Development and sale of
Chuangsheng Real Estate properties
Development Co., Ltd.
AR EREREERERAF 2013511450 450,000 306,585 100.00% - DERBREE
Danyang Future Land Hongsheng 5 November 2013 Development and sale of
Real Estate Development properties
Co., Ltd.
BMEEAAEEARAA 20135114278 122,216 122,216 100.00% - AR
Changzhou Saifu Consultancy 27 November 2013 Consulting
Co., Ltd.
RUFNEEEHEXREMRAR 2013%12A318 10,000 10,000 54.83% - DERRREE
Kunshan Future Land Wanlong 31 December 2013 Development and sale of
Real Estate Development properties
Co., Ltd.
* K2012F5 8168 - AL ELAREARYE311,157,000T e Hi8 B 85 * On 16 May 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in

WEMBFERAR ([LEEH]) 100%kE - EFR A WAKBEER

REEWE - MAFREBE0 - RUEREEKRBAR -

Shanghai Fuming Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Fuming”), at a consideration of RMB311,157,000. The directors
consider this acquisition is an asset acquisition in substance rather
than a business combination and therefore is accounted for as an

asset acquisition.
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41 FRAEFHE @

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

(a) MR2013F K2012F 128318 » XRFFAH (a) Certain equity interests in the subsidiaries of

ETRESHERTIAER (HE22) - B

B ST

the Company were pledged for borrowings

as at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively (Note 22). For details, please
refer to the table below:

MR12H831H
As at 31 December
20134 20124
2013 2012

TR ER D BR A A

Number of legal person shares of Jiangsu Future

EABREE Land Co., Ltd. 50,000,000 874,500,000
FERAEEREGR AT Percentage of equity interests in Shanghai
REB Dt Dongjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. - 100%
BMNMEREEXARAR Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
AR B 7 () Hengfu Property Co., Ltd. (i) 100% 100%
BN EEREBR AR Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
kiR D Future Land Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. = 70%
EISHBAIERIEAR AT Percentage of equity interests in Wuxi Future
IRHEE Dt Land Chuangzhi Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 100%
BN EEEERZEER AT Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
B Dt Future Land Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 100%
BN A EERRAR Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
B DL Future Land Jinjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. = 100%
0 BMHEEEXERAGTKRES IR (i) The equity interests in Changzhou

TTER T AR - Rtz oh - PR
MFEEMIREORETRELHT

LA -

F-146 | #¥REZEKRER AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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Hengfu Property Co., Ltd. were
pledged for bank borrowing. Other
than this, all other equity interests
pledged were for trust financing
arrangements.
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41

FRAEFHE @
b) AAFARZEFIAFAEXMEHESBRE .

ZE
MZEFARREMTAREESBEES
feHE - ZETFARREBKY - MATAHA
FRRRFBAMKY - FTEFRARIY AR
[RAR]

e

R2013F6 5208 «© A & B &K 7 & MM Sl
MEWEZRAERLAA REMEL A
75,000,000 7T » IRBEEFEREWZE - £=
FREEEETE 129,800,000 T » &KL E
% AEBERBZMNINEFEHEZERER A
I T E36.62% @ MAEBZEH65%H

ks
RERE -

BERERARIMNEERBENABTEEMBELIZY
BNEERREE=NREEFLAEE -
1B B AR EARTE A AR AEE
BHIMRET - FE - RIEZ0EEXT (B
HERAEBEREMA  REBHEREF =
HREFEFTINEMBE)  ARBEREAER
BARIARXBREFMAEEEBETY
HERARZENEENES -

41

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

(@]

The Company has direct or indirect equity
interests in these subsidiaries which have
direct or indirect equity interests in the
other subsidiaries. These subsidiaries were
incorporated in Hong Kong and all the other
subsidiaries were established in mainland
China. All the subsidiaries are limited liability
companies.

On 20 June 2013, the Group set up
Suzhou Kaituo Development Co., Ltd.
with the original registered capital
of USD75,000,000. According to the
cooperative development agreement, a
third party investor injected the capital with
amounts of USD129,800,000 thereafter.
After the capital injection, the Group’s share
holding in Suzhou Kaituo Development Co.,
Ltd. dropped to 36.62% while the Group is
entitled to 65% of the operating results.

The operation environment and structure
of the project company require that all the
major financial and operating policies are
determined before third party investor is
entered into. The project company may
not deviate from its approved purpose and
design in any material respect. At the same
time, according to various legal documents,
including the articles of association of the
project company, investment agreements
and other agreements with the third party
investor, the Group retains the power to
operate and manage the project company in
the ordinary course of business and the day-
to-day management of the project company.
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FRATEFHE @

AR A5 B 5718 %4 af K T A ) B N T
AEEXRBRAAIFAARART0%E S ° B
b AREHEEHERREL R /R40.03% @ AR
ASIESVNGIE ZoEell

BRI

MR2013FN2A3MAMEEREZLEAR
A R #3,876,311,000t © H & A B ¥
3,030,583,0007T & ;T & ¥ W 0 &= B 9
ERAR(I&HFTWH] A MARE
795,241,000t AR BREM I HE HER R
BRAF ([ERMHIR]) o HpF AR IEE
fEEEE I RE K ©

ERRH

e REFERARK7,604,735,0707T )54
FEEE - W2 E HhE S5 IR A ATARER -
ZESWENIZESROGTIHEERGLEES
(WIEFEBIEFRE) KR -

FEBEARNFER
=

EENFLRAMBEY

NTEHIEEYAEEBE AN IR ERS
HEFRRPEERBE - 588 HIF 2 54
HETHR S - FL2HM 40 -

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ"j Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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41

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(d)

Suzhou Future Land Chuangjia Property Co.,
Ltd., the Company’s 57.18% held subsidiary,
holds 70% interests in the Company. Hence,
the effective rate owned by the Group is
40.03%, but the Company has control over
the entity.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31
December 2013 is RMB3,876,311,000,
among which RMB3,030,583,000 is for
Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd (”Jiangsu
Future Land”) and RMB 795,241,000 is
attributed to Suzhou Kaituo Development
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Kaituo”). The non-
controlling interests in respect of other
subsidiaries are not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of
RMB7,604,735,070 are held in China
and are subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information
on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for each subsidiary that has
non-controlling interests that are material
to the Group. See Note 40 for transactions
with non-controlling interests.
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41 FRAEFEF@® 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
(e) BARIEIERRER (B) (e) Material non-controlling interests (Cont’d)
BERRREE Summarised statement of financial
position
STERET B&MEl
Jiangsu Future Land Suzhou Kaituo
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR AR%®TT
mEh Current
BE Assets 32,530,404 28,081,425 1,828,555 -
AaE Liabilities (20,895,838) (20,635,568) (780,774) -
BREEERE Total current net assets 11,634,566 7,445,857 1,047,781 -
e Non-current
BE Assets 1,355,673 1,199,222 161,198 -
AaE Liabilities (6,109,297) (3,268,644) (100,000) -
WIEREEEFE Total non-current net assets (4,753,624) (2,069,422) 61,198 -
BEFE Net assets 6,880,942 5,376,435 1,108,979 -
ZHRRRPE Summarised statement of comprehensive
income
STERET &M e
Jiangsu Future Land Suzhou Kaituo
2013 2012 2013 2012
201345 20124 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR AR%®TT
ek Revenue 16,583,969 14,300,447 = -
BIREWMHE N A BEWEEM  Profit before fair value gains
FriS B2 AT aI FE on investment properties and
income tax expense 2,973,596 2,336,309 17,919 -
EFHEX Income tax expense (1,336,666) (981,372) (4,321) -
K12 FE Post-tax profit 1,636,930 1,354,937 13,598 -
ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁéi‘ﬁ'gﬁ Total comprehensive income 1,636,930 1,354,937 13,598 -
IR ERT Total comprehensive income allocated
£ﬁ45lfm,%@%ﬁ to non-controlling interests 747,255 641,408 (3,513) -
BER2 &SR] s Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests 65,546 32,774 - -
F-149
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41 FRATFHE @ 41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
(e) EARIEERER (B) (e) Material non-controlling interests (Cont’d)
HERERYE Summarised cash flows
STERET M e
Jiangsu Future Land Suzhou Kaituo
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTET AR®BTR ARETRT

RETBMERENE Cash flows from operating activities
ST EI TS (FRA) 34 Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 637,354 2,869,557  (1,025,935) -
2AFE Interest paid (698,033) (692,471) - -
DGR Income tax paid (851,190) (871,417) — -
wEES) (FTA),/ Fiis Net cash (used in)/generated
IR E5E from operating activities (911,869) 1,305,669 (1,025,935) -
WEEBEGE (FTA) Net cash generated from/
IR 4 HE (used in) investing activities 102,844 (34,668) (128,395) -
BMEEEAME,(FTA) Net cash generated from/
e F58 (used in) financing activities 1,929,479 (1,713,473) 1,307,577 -
BEMBAELZEYENM -  Net increase/(decrease) in cash
CRA) BEE and cash equivalents 1,120,454 (442,472) 153,247 -
FYINRESTIRELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 3,150,165 3,592,637 - -
ERNIBELFIBLEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 4,270,619 3,150,165 153,247 -
i ER AYMEERNATIRTSBTHNEEE o The information above is the amount before intra-

group transactions elimination.
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